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Alabama National BanCorporation is the holding

company for twelve bank subsidiaries in Alabama,

Florida and Georgia. These banks provide retail,

commercial, investment, brokerage, trust, leasing,

insurance and residential and commercial mortgage
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...it is no accident that we use the term “share owners”™
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rather than the more commonly used “shareholders”.
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We want to make it clear to our existing and potential
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investors that we view the maximization of long term
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share owner value as our primary purpose.
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We are pleased to share with you this report on your company’s performance in 2006. In the pages
that follow, you can review a detailed discussion and analysis of the year, but we want to share

—

with you our thoughts on several key areas. For the year, Alabama National reported diluted earnings per
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share (EPS) of $4.17, up 9.1% from the $3.82 reported in 2005. Net income grew to $79.8 million, up
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19.7% from 2005°’s $66.7 million. Return on average equity was 11.4% for the year, return on average
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tangible equity! was 17.2% and return on average assets was 1.18%. Share owners’ equity (“book value”)

as
]
]

grew to $853.6 million, and tangible book value! grew to $522.5 million. Book value per share grew
24.3% to $41.51, and tangible book value per share! grew 5.0% to $25.41. In February 2007, we
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] announced a 9.3% increase in our annual dividend rate to $1.64, the tweifth consecutive annual increase
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since our initial dividend in 1995. Since that 1995 initial payment, our d1v1dend has grown from $0.20
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per share to the current 2007 annual rate of $1.64.
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As we will discuss further below, asset quality has always been a focus of your management team,
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and we believe it is fundamental to our long-term success. Non-performing assets were 0.21% of total

loans and other real estate at December 31, 2006. The company has a consistent and continuing practice of
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having no loans accruing interest that are 90 days past due. Our net charge-offs for the year 2006 were
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'$898 thousand, or 0.02% of average loans and leases. Qur allowance for lean and lease losses was
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- $68.2 million, or 1.25% of tatal loans and leases (excluding loans held for sale) and represented 625% of
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non-performing loans. Superior asset quality is a continuing discipline for our company in all economic
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environments. Our loan underwriting standards should be consistent through good and bad economic
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cycles. Qur customers and employees should be able to expect consistency in credit standards, and we
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should make decisions that we believe meet those standards.
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We want to address some of our accomplishments during 2006 as well as some areas where

we have opportunities to improve. In addition to the 9.1% diluted EPS growth in 2006 over 2005,
accomplishments include the following:
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Expansion of the company in growing markets: During 2006 we completed two acquisitions that

F s significantly increased our presence in markets of strategic importance to us. In April, we acquired

Florida Choice Bank in greater Orlando, followed by the October acquisition of The Peachtree Bank in

greater Atlanta. With the addition of these banks to our pre-existing Orlando and Atlanta franchises, we

r
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now have assets approaching $1 billion in each of these important and growing markets. More importantly,

we added two great teams of enthusiastic and successful bankers to our company. These acquisitions,
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combined with organic growth, led to our company being 29% larger by asset size at December 31, 2006

IOICIEIE

F
1

S| S .

than a year earlier. We do not focus on size alone, but we do believe that profitable growth in markets with
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potential for further growth enhances share owner value.
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| See page 4 for a reconciliation of these non-GAAP measures.
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Connnued successful management of credit risk: We mentioned this topic above, but it beall"s repeating.
Throughout our history, credit risk management has consistently been a major strategic focus for this managemem
team. We believe we should be able to lend money and get paid back all of the principal with mterest Qur record
has not been ||Jerfect {and by definition, we therefore have room for improvement), but we believe we have exhibited
superior credit loss performance over a sustained period of time. In fact, since January 1, 1996 (when this' _management
team began If:'ading Alabama National), our originally-reported cumulative net charge-offs have totaled]seventy-two
basis points {(0.72%). This equates to an average annual net charge-off of between six and seven b351s points. Qur
goal is to brmg3 this number down to zero, so we still have some work to do, but these results are gratlfylng -nonetheless.
If the economy deteriorates, we hope this culture of asset quality excellence will allow us to further outperform the
industry in this most important area of risk management.

While we| are proud of our accomplishments, we also have a number of challenges and opportumt]es for
improvementyin our execution and performance. These include the following:

Net interest margin (NIM) compression: Our net interest margin dropped in 2006, from 3. 93% in 2005 to
3.88% in 2000 In addition, the decline increased in the latter half of the year, as our NIM in the last two quarters
was 3.81%. While these changes may seem small, every basis point (0.01%) is worth $690 thousarlld in pre-tax
income {or approximately two cents per share after tax) on an earning asset base of $6.9 billion. We hope we will
remind ourselves of that number every time we price a loan or deposit relationship. d

Core deposit growth: Another important factor in improving our net interest margin is core deposit growth.
Just like a manufacturing company, a bank needs raw material. In our case, that raw material is core deposns Our
company hasfa demonstrated ability to grow its loan portfolio. While we have also been able to mcrease core
deposits, we pave typically grown them at a lower rate than our loans. Having a reliable and reasonably priced
source of funding is the single most important factor in our ability to grow our net interest margin, and our success
in this area is :crucial to our future growth. We are working on ways te better utilize our outstanding base 'of employees
to grow our bfinkmg relationships, including core deposits. We are convinced we have the right people located in
the right places operating in the right operating structure, so our task is therefore one of execution. This is not an
area in whichthere are any easy or quick fixes, so our focus has to be an every day discipline and w1||}requ1re time
to show meaningful improevement.

Fee income growth: We have several opportunities for improvement in our non-interest income busmess lines,
ranging from our fixed income and mortgage businesses to our service charges. We have done some w|0rk in these
areas and we hope to improve the profit contribution in areas we can influence. While we understandithat some of
these busmesies have inherent volatility due to differing interest rate environments, we need to ensure our operating
structure is ofie that allows us to maximize our return in all environments. ”

We are pr(llud of our team of employees, and we believe you would be as well. They accomplished a lot inayear
of tough condmons for our industry. While we can always find ways in which we can improve, we béheve we are
blessed with & group of intelligent and motivated bankers in all areas of this company. It is also more Ithan just an
ancillary beneft that they are a pleasant group to work with, s such an environment is important in a'culture such
as ours that re,wards performance and discourages big egos. 1:

As in letters in prior years’ annual reports, we again want to reiterate the values we hold and reflect how these
beliefs and our actions tend to differentiate our company from many other financial institutions.

We believe managers should think from an owner's perspective. ANB's executive management a"..d board hold
significant personal ownership in the company. Our subsidiary bank presidents have compensation structures that
motivate them to behave as if they own their bank. We believe this owner’s perspective is more Ilkely to generate
maximum long term value for our share owners. Along these lines, it is no accident that we use the'term “share
owners” rather than the more commaonly used “shareholders”. We want to make it clear to our existing and potential
investors that; we view the maximization of long term share owner value as our primary purpose. As expressed
by Warren Buffett the term “shareholders” implies a more temporary viewpoint than we think appropnale far our
management |)h|losophy We think of each of our share owners as owners, not holders, of a piece of our company.

We belleve that a distributed decision-making process is superior to a centralized one. We believe that managers
located and operatmg in their banking markets create a more successful company than one in whlch senior
management tries to make all of the decisions from “headquarters”. For this reason, we have multiple bank
charters with|multiple bank presidents. We provide systems, credit policies, audit and compliance éomrols and
product offerings to these subsidiaries, but our job is to support these banks in achieving their success within their
i
u
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LETTER TO OUR SHARE OWNERS

markets. This steucture is unusual for the banking business, as it is inherently less streamlined and cost-efficient
than a centralized structure. However, we want our bank presidents and their management teams to feel ownership
in their decisions and ownership In their bank’s performance, and we believe superior results will follow.

We believe in a candid, straightforward culture that is realistic about our business. We must be realistic and
consistent in our assessments of loan quality and collateral values. When a loan experiences difficulties, we need
to identify it as a problem and take the appropriate action. Ignoring a problem and hoping it gets better by itself is
rarely a successful problem asset strategy in the banking business. To the contrary, a bank that recognizes its
mistakes early and works to correct them will have lower loan losses and better asset quality in the long run than
one that postpones the recognition of a problem. It is this belief that leads to some of our absolute policies, such as
having no loan 90 days past due and still accruing interest. We believe this culture also resuits in a more effective
management of problem loans, as a preblem cannot be resolved if it is not acknowledged.

We believe continued and consistent adherence to these fundamental values will result in long-term compounded
growth in our earnings per share and, ultimately, in long-term compounded growth in our per share value.
We continue to face exciting opportunities and challenges in both our industry and the markets in which we operate.
As we attempt to capitalize on these opportunities and challenges, you should know that we do so as owner-
managers. Qur perspective is that of an owner, a perspective we think makes us better managers. We believe you
should demand nothing less from us.

We have shared our priorities with you each year in this letter since the 1995 Annual Report, and we do so again
this year. These clearly focused priorities represent our plan for the future: '

+ Maximize the growth and profitability of our basic business lines. )

« Expand our financial products and services to meet the changing marketplace and the needs of our customers.
« Develop additional markets and revenue sources to further utilize our delivery system.

- Integrate more efficient and productive technology systems that exceed our customers’ expectations.

Our share owners and customers have placed great confidence in ANB. Thank you for your investment, support,
and encouragement in motivating the growth and enhancement of the value of our company.

. H Foterd 2o WM -
JOHN H. HOLCOMB, 111 RICHARD MURRAY, IV

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Operating Officer

L=< =

WILLIAM E. MATTHEWS, V
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

RECONCILIATION TABLE
(in thousands except per share data)

Tangible Book Value Reconciliation Return on Average Tangible Equity Reconciliation
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2006 2003 2006 2005
Book value $853,623  $571,879 Average equity $702,313  $550,494
Intangible assets (331,118)  (157,429) Average intangible asseis (237.845)  (155,809)
Tangible book value $522,505  $414,450 Average tangible equity $464,468  $394,685
Book value per common share $41.51 $33.40 Return on average equity 11.36% 12.11%
Effect of intangible assets per share (16.10} (9.20) Effect of average intangible assets 582 4.78
Tangible book value per share $25.41 $24.20 Return on average tangible equity 17.18% 16.89%
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ANB EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

WILLIAM E. MATTHEWS, V, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; WILLIAM R. IRELAND, IR., Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Management Officer;
DAN M. DAVID, Vice Chairman; JOHN H. HOLCOMB, 11l, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer; RICHARD MURRAY, IV, President and Chief Operating Officer,
JOHN R. BRAGG, Executive Vice President, Retail and Banking Operations.
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2004 2005 2006 . 2004 2005 2006

REVENUE (a) LOANS (b}
{IN THOUSANDS) (IN MILLIONS)

o [ [
] $236,037
] $271,570
I § 1 2,398
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(a} Revenue is defined as the sum of net interést income plus noninterest income.
{b) Year-end loan and lease balances, excluding loans held for sale.




ANB BANK LOCATIONS

Alabama National BanCorporation operates 102* banking offices
in the Southeast, ranging from North Alabama to South Florida.

Decatur '.

.
o P Sz
: .f ] padvitte
l‘. Tuskegee

3 a Galnesville
§ ERotirshores 9 Palm Coast

]‘ . ] ormond Beaeh™ -

I First American Bank
35 Locaticns
Assets: $3.0 billion

H Indian River Natignal Bank
10 Locations
Assets: $798 million 2 aples

Bl First Gulf Bank, N.A.
12 Locations
Assets: $654 miillion

Bl The Peachtree Bank ..
4 locations 8] Georgia State Bank

Assets: $577 million 9 Locations

Assets: $409 million

B Florida Choice Bank '
7 Locations a CypressCoquina Bank

Assets: $536 million 5 Locations
Assets: $310 million
B Community Bank of Naples, N.A.

6 Locations M Mmillennium Bank

4 Locations
Assets: $190 million

Public Bank e
8 Locationg: 7' o @ ‘Bankof Dadeville

Assets; $424 ,hlocation | Tz,

Assets: $84 miliigg -
1275 a ang

R Cenking offices as of
B 1cY31, 2007, Assets
asfof- December 31, 2006.
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During 2006, First American Bank leveraged the aperational
and marketingisynergies begun with the 2005 merger of
affiliate banks in nine Alabama counties. The operating structure
post-merger retains‘ local decision-making within each market.
“This balance between increased efficiency and unsurpassed
customer service hlelped us build market share in the three
rapidly growing markets that our 900 employees serve through
35 branch banks,” .,ald James R. “Skip” Thompson, the bank’s
President and CEO The Huntsvilie-Decatur Combined
Statistical Area, h:I}me of the NASA Marshall Space Flight
Center and the U. 5. Army’s Redstone Arsenal, hosts a broad
spectrum of innovative technology, research and computer-
related companies.! The market also provides an attractive
. combination of road, rail, air and water transportation options
so vital to manufa‘cturers and industries. To the south, the
greater Birmingharln MSA has evolved into a major medical
research center and a regional hanking and publishing power.

(continted})

Clockwise: C. Wallace Terry, Morgan County CEQ and Mortgage Division
CEQ; James R. Thompson, Ill, President'and CEQ; Eric L. Canada, Lee
County and East Alabama CEO, Jeffrey L. Hodges, Limestone County CEQ,;
W. Evans Quinlivan, Madison County CEQ; William L. Clark, President,
East Central Alabama; Robert B. Aland, Cffji'\tral Alabama CEO.

i}

A
First American Bank

1927 First Avenug North
Birmingham, AL 35203
205-583-3600
www. first-american.com
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Wealth Management: Matt Ellison, Senicr Vice President, Director of Wealth
Strategies; Bradford L. Phelan, President and CEQ, NBC Securities, Inc.;
Joseph T. Keating, Executive Vice President, Chief Investment Officer and Head
of Wealth Management.

| Lines of Business: L.C. “Foots” Parnell, |ll, President, Byars & Company;

Richard H. Pardue, President and CEO, ANB Insurance Services, Inc.; Patricia Toro
Reid, Senior Vice President, ANB Leasing Services; Steven D. Fleming, President,
Mortgage Division; Norman B. Davis, Jr,, Executive Vice President; R, Heath
Holdbrooks, President, Corparate Billing, Inc.

Board of Directors

Lucian F. Bloodworth
Cain Manufacturing Co., Inc
Chairman

Guy S. Clifton
Fairway Investments, LLC.
Vice President

Dan M. David
Alabama National BanCorporation
Vice Chairman of the Board

First American Bank
Vice Chairman of the Board

William Jackson Fite
Fite Building Co., Inc.
President and CEO

John H. Holcomb, 1lI
Alabama National BanCorporation
Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

First American Bank
Chairman of the Board

Willie R. Huff
ABI Capital Management, LLC
Chairman of the Board

C. Phillip McWane

McWane, Inc.
Chairman

10

Richard Murray, IV
Alabama National Bancorporation
President and

Chief Operating Officer

First American Bank
Vice Chairman of the Board

R. W. Orr, Jr.
Petroleum Sales, Inc.
Chairman

G. Ruffner Page, Jr.
McWane, Inc.
President

David Rushing
Clinic for Women
Physician, OB /GYN

William Sexton
Sexton, Incorporated
President and CEQ

Gerry E. Shannon
Triad Properties Corporation
Principal ’

James R. Thompson, IlI
First American Bank
President and

Chief Executive Officer

Temple W. Tutwiler, IlI
Tutwiler Investment Company
President

In recent years, biotechnology and information technology
along with automobile production have grown rapidly. First
Armerican’s third major market consists of Lee and adjacent
counties, part of the 1-85 corridor that is the manufacturing and
industrial hub of east Alabama. The area anticipates increased
prosperity from high-tech industries spun-off from research
conducted at Auburn University.

First American offers a complete portfolio of the highest
quality traditional banking products. In addition, the bank
markets brokerage and insurance products through wholly-
owned subsidiaries, along with leasing, trust and correspondent
banking services. First American lives up to its role as the
lead bank of Alabama National Bancorporation by making
available many of its state-of-the-art bank products to other
Alabama National affiliates. The full spectrum of First
American's services includes those provided through First
American’s Wealth Management Division, profiled on the
following page, as well as those provided through First
American’s other lines of business:

Byars and Company is a commercial mortgage- banking
division involved in the origination and servicing of permanent
commercial real estate mortgage loans for various lenders,
including life insurance companies and others.

- First American’'s Mortgage Division offers a wide variety of
residential mortgage loan options, and its mortgage specialists
are committed to finding the best loan and rate for each client’s
personal needs. Mortgage loan options include Conventional
Fixed Rate, Adjustable Rate, Conventional Balloon,
Construction/Permanent, FHA, VA and Affordable Housing.

ANB Insurance Services, Inc. represents a carefully selected
group of financially sound, reputable insurance companies.




QOur professionals are committed to securing the best policy
with the best company offering the best coverage at the best
price for every busine:ss and consumer client.

ANB Leasing Servlices provides equipment lease financing
services to commercial municipal and not-for-profit entities in

the Southeast and MI(l South. ANB Leasing is recognized as a _

leading provider for rease structuring expertise, competitive
rates, and quality cusmmer service.

Corporate Billing, |lnc. offers accounts receivable manage-
ment programs and bi}ling services specifically directed to both
the transportation industry and automotive/truck dealerships.
CBI services more than 150 clients throughout the Southeastern,
Mid-Western, and Mid-!Atlantic states and parts of Canada.

Just as the bank's product pertfolio must meet diverse
financial needs, thel‘ bank and its employees contribute
considerable time and resources to address the special needs
of each community selrved. “We understand that our success as
individuals and as a bank depends on the quality of life in our
communities,” Thomp‘son said. He added that the availability of
affordable housing is'a recurring need nationwide, and First
American strengthened its ongoing efforts to address this issue
in 2006. “We became* an institutional investor in the Housing
Enterprise of Centrall Alabama and the Housing Fund of
Central Alabama,” Thompson said. “We are excited about
our role in these organizations, which are committed to
significantly increasing the supply of safe, decent, moderately-
priced housing.”

First American is well positioned to build on its strong
2006 performance, “Qur goal is to grow our company by 10
percent earnings gm\fvth compounded and continue to expand
cur market share in all markets,” Thompson states.

The Wealth Management Division

The Wealth Management Division of First American Bank

is committed to pr0\'riding a broad range of custom-tailored

" financial planning, investment management, and trust services
to its clients. These| personalized services are designed to

assist its clients in achieving their long-term financial goals

and objectives. First! American's wealth management team

has built a solid repu:tation in creating comprehensive wealth

management strategiles for its clients.

“We begin this comprehensive approach with the under-
standing that each client’s individual goals are different,”
states Joe Keating. {We take the time to understand those
differences. Only after a thorough, consultative analysis do we
construct a blueprint for achieving these individual goals,
We provide the choicles, recommendations and strategies that
are consistent with that personalized approach.”

First American’s comprehensive, consultative approach to
wealth management involves four distinct services:

First American Asset Management - The asset manage-
ment division specializes in managing comm!()n stock portfolios
of high quality, large cap value companifﬁs that pay above
average dividends and in managing fixed income securities.
First American Asset Management has moré than $1 billion in
assets under management.

First American Trust Services - People today are beginning
to realize that trust and fiduciary services are not just for the
wealthy. They understand that certain [rusts offer a number of
tax and non-tax benefits. In additien, most peop]e want to take
a proactive role in determining the dlstrlbutlon of their estate.
At First American Trust, we can-assure rellapie trust and estate
settlement services to our clients and their families.

NBC Securities, Inc. - As the Investmé!nt affiliate of First
American, NBC Securities, Inc. providesja wide range of
investment, financial and retirement servic%s to individual and
institutional clients. More than 18,000 clliems have placed
nearly $3 billion in investments with NBC Securities, Inc.

Through its Investment Advisory Services Division,
NBC Securities provides clients with access to premier
fee-based asset management programlsls, including the
Professional Asset Management (ProAm) Consulting platform,
which are designed to meet clients’ invéstment objectives
utilizing a combination of separate account professional
money managers, mutual funds, and exchange traded funds
targeting a diversified range of asset classés. The Investment
Advisory Services Division has nearly $1.2 bl“lOn in assets under
advisement, including more than $667 million in the ProAm
Consulting platform.

First American Financial Planning - At First American,
we believe that financial planning is at the ‘heart of achieving
one’s financial needs and objectives. The financial planning
process is designed to educate and inforrrlli our clients about
their estate, investment management, tax, insurance, education,
and retirement planning options. The more informed our
clients become, the more control they wi}l have over these
important, life-long decisions. Our Financ.}al Planning Team
can help clients understand their current situation, establish
measurable goals, create a plan to achievfé those goals, and
then monitor and update their plan on a regular basis.

i
:

A

First American Wealth Managellnent

First American Assel Management

First American Trust Services |

NBC Securities, loc,
Mormber NASD & SIPC

1927 First Avenue North

Birmingham, AL 35203

205-421-2300 !

www.first-american.com 11
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ANB BANKS

Indian River National Bank Board of Directors
I ndian River National Bank serves customers in Brevard, P. Andrew Beindorf Wiltiam B. Marine

Indian River and St. Lucie Counties on Central Florida’s Indian River National Bank ~ GCA Trading Company, LLC
rapidly growing Atlantic Coast. The 10-office community President and . President
bank approached the $800 million asset mark in 2006, ) Chief Exgcutwe Officer Redfish Boats, LLC
“which bank Pre"s.ident and CEQ Andy Beindorf attributes to William C. Graves, IV President
m!r full commitment to the needs of cu§t0111ers and our Tetle.y Groves, Inc. John L Minton
unique brand of one-on-one personal service. President :

: . Triple M. Investment Company, Inc.

Founded in 1985 by local business people, the bank President
continues to distinguish itself from targer, less responsive Griffin A. Greene
banks through high level community involvement, flexible Greene Citrus Keith H. Morgan, Jr.
lending- programs, and quick and easy decision making. Man?gement, Inc. Certified Public Accountant,
“Our people demonstrate day-in and day-out that they truly President Business Advisor
care about the success and satisfaction of customers, their Indian River National Bank
businesses and their families. And the bottom line is we're Chairman of the Board Daniel R. Richey

. . . Riverfront Packing Company, LLC

regarded as the pank of chaice’ by many local businesses Robert A. Grice Chief Executive Officer and
and residenls,” B.emdorf states. Bob Grice nsurance Managing Member

The bank s.dlrecto.rs?, and .approx1ma'tely 170 employe.es Aggncy. Inc. Gulfstream Harvesting, Inc.
hold leadership positions in a myriad of community President President
organizations and take special pride in their support of Indian River National Bank
Habitat for Humanity. “IC's rewarding to help low-to- Vice Chairman of the Board Mary M. Rogers
moderate income, hard-working people achieve the The Packers of Indian River, Inc.
American Dream and obtain affordable housing in our John H. Holcomb, Il Vice Chairman and Secretary
market,” Beindorf states. Alabama National ) _

2006 was a year of superlatives for IRNB. The bank BanCorporation John David Smith
was named “Company of the Year”, the highest honor Cha!rman and‘ . Smith, Todd, McEntee

’ Chief Executive Officer & Company, LLP

conferred by the Indian River County Chamber of Certified Public Accountant
Commerce; “Best Bank” by local newspaper readers; and
“Best Place to Work” by the Melbourne-Palm Bay Chamber
of Commerce for the second year in a row. The bank also
received the “Spirit Award” for outstanding employee
volunteerism from the United Way, which recognized
IRNB for routinely providing local charities and other
non-profit organizations with the largest pool of volunteers
in the community.

IRNB is poised to open a 3-story, 35,000 sq. ft.
headquarters building in mid-2007 in downtown Vero
Beach. The bank also plans to open additional offices in St.
Lucie County and Indian River County during the next
18 months to accommodate rapid growth in these
dynamic markets.

258 20th Ptace
| Vero Beach, FL 32960
=i -. 772-569-9200

INDEAN RIVER NATIONAL BANK www.irnb.com

Friends...Neighbors...Bankers™

. Daniel Bockhorst, Executive Vice President and Senior Lender; P. Andrew “Andy”
12 Beindorf, President and CEQ; Phillip Tasker, Executive Vice President, COO and CFO.
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M. Blaise Adams
First Gulf Bank, N.A.
President

G. Owen Bailey
Infirmary Health System
Executive Vice President

Nathan O. Botts*

Saltmarsh, Cleaveland and
Gund, CPA

Shareholder

T. Frank Burt, Jr.
Baldwin County Commission
Vice-Chairman

Donald P. Jehle
jehle-halstead, inc.
President

J. Randle McKinney
Realty Executives MidSouth
Regional Director

W. Douglas Montgomery, Sr.

W. Douglas Montgomery,
CPA, P.C.

Principal

Richard P. Morette
Morette Company
President and

Chief Executive Officer

Richard Murray, IV

Alabama National BanCorporation
President and

Chief Operating Officer

Neal B. Nash
Martine's Corporation
Vice President

Grover C. Robinson, IV
Grover Robinson and Associates, Inc.
President

Robert M. Seaborn, Jr.
First Gulf Bank, N.A.
Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

Ruben B. Timmons, M.D.
Comprehensive Pain Medicine

& Rehabilitation, Inc.
President

James E. Wright
Wright Drugs. Inc.
Retired

John D. Wright
Investments and Real Estate
Development

Gregory K. Woodfin, D.M.D
Woodfin Cabassa Orthodontics
President

*advisory member

Karen A. Campbell, Executive Vice; Presudent Wade ). Bradford, Executive
Vice President; Robert M. Seaborn, Ir., Chairman of the Board & CEQ;
Bobby W. Ranger, Executive Vice P,esuﬂent M. Blaise Adams, President.
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First Gulf Bank, N.A.
|

When First Gulf Bank was created in| 1997, management
recognized that its employees would be the basis for
the bank'’s success. “We believed then and now that taking
care of employees translates into taking care of business,”
states Robert Seaborn, First Gulf Ban[k's Chairman and
CEO. “We wanted employees who llooked forward to
coming to work and to wearing our banllﬁ’s logo. We wanted
emplovees to understand why, not justihow, we do things
and to value the bank's long-term vision above how much
money we will make today.” The resultg are impressive. At
year-end 2006, the bank’s assets topped $650 million and
the bank’s 200 employees served cus'iomers through 12
offices in Baldwin County, Alabama, a::}'d Escambia, Santa
Rosa and Bay Counties, Florida. Balclilwin County ranks
among the 100 fastest growing coun;lties in the United
States and borders Florida's renowned Emerald Coast,
where Escambia, Santa Rosa and Bay counties have
become some of the fastest growmg vacation and
retirement markets in the nation. The area’s natural amenities
are ideally suited for tourist and real gstate ventures and
for small business entrepreneurs,) and First Guifs
customer base reflects this diversity.

Seaborn expresses pride that the bank’s energetic
employees and directors take leading Toles in the various
communities they serve. “Our people a're like good friends
and family who work well together towards common goals,”
Seaborn states. He cites as an example that First Gulf’s
employees have had 100 percent part1c1patton in their local
United Way campaign for the past 10 years. In addition,
First Gulf has created its own foundation to further expand
its charitable efforts.

Seaborn sees continued growth ahlt?ad, primarily along
the [-10 corridor. “We anticipate ﬁl}ling in our market
between Baldwin County and Panama City and we will
open our 13th office in 2007 to better| serve Panama City.
As we grow, we will continue locking to ?ur holding company
for support when we need it. We rely on their resources
and their technical help. We ask them how do you do this?’
and they are there for us. In tl{"rn they trust us
to make good decisions for our market It's a healthy,
mutually beneficial relationship,” Seaborn said.

2200 Airport Boulevard

"g%FIRST GU;_J]E Pensacola, FL 32504

850—478-4004
WWW, Frstgulfhank com
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The Peachtree Bank

he Peachtree Bank affiliated with Alabama National

Bancorporation in 2006 and brought with it sound
credit quality, a cuiture of customer service, and a highly
successful “rainmaker” philosophy of growth. The $577
million asset bank primarily serves customers in the north-
eastern suburbs of the vibrant Metropolitan Atlanta Area,
where 70 employees operate offices in the Duluth,
Dunwoody, Lawrenceville and Roswell communities.
“More than half of our bank’s customer hase consists of
small businesses and owner-occupied real estate,” states
Monty Watson, The Peachtree Bank’s President and CEO.
“About 35 percent of our business involves construction
lending, and the balance is retail.”

The bank’s management structure is a function of how
the bank was put together and has been the catalyst for its
rapid growth. “When we want to enter a new market, our
first pricrity is to hire a highly experienced, long-time
banker in that market to add to our management team,”
Waison states. “We call these key people with established,
long-lasting customer relationships ‘rainmakers,” and we
leverage their influence to grow the bank. Brick and
mortar come later.” .

“Customers choose us because we offer an outstanding
banking environment, and employees come to us for the
same reason,” Watson states. “Our employees are the best
in our markets and they appreciate the bank’s stability in the
midst of turmoil caused by frequent bank mergers and
new banks entering the market. Add our board’s incredible
support and our participation in charitable and community
causes, and we have a fun and exciting company to
work for.”

While still in a “newlywed” status with our new holding
company, The Peachtree Bank already benefits from the
relationship, according to Watson. “Since our affiliation
with Alabama National Bancorporation, we've added
leasing products, more investment options, commercial
mortgage brokerage services, and government contracting,”
he said.

Watson sees the bank’s growth potential exceeding the
billion dollar mark in organically grown, not acquired,
assets within the next five years. “We will continue
growing our franchise one rainmaker at a time.” he said.

f THQ 9570 Medlock Bridge Road
’ R E Duluth, GA 30097
P E&@H ! 4 E 770u-314-8100
B ANK! www.thepeachtreebank.com
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Robert D. Cheeley J. Paul Maggard
Cheeley Investments, LLC Maggard Ventures, LLC
Real Estate Investor President
Paul D. Donaldson Richard Murray, IV
Donaldson & Associates Alabama National BanCorporation
President President and
" Chief Operating Officer

John H. Holcomb, 11|
Alabama National BanCeorporation  Monty G. Watsen
Chairman and The Peachtree Bank

Chief Executive Officer President and

Chief Executive Officer

John ). Howard
Howard Brothers, Inc.
President

The Peachtree Bank
Chairman of the Boarg

Standing: Jim Olson, Chief Credit Officer; Monty Watson, President and CEQ;
Richard Sikes, President, The Peachtree Bank of Gwinnett; Bob Cash, President,
The Peachtree Bank of North Fulton.

Sitting: Kelly johnson, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Fran Fuchs,
President, The Peachtree Bank of Dunwoody; Tammy Kraus, Senior Vice President,
Construction Lending and Development.




1

Board of Directors

i
W. Riley Allen

Allen and Murphy, P.A.
President and Senior Partner

Dale E. Bartch
Atex Distributing, Inc.
President

W. Kelly Bowman, MD
Health Central Hospital
Family Medicine

Derek C. Burke
WBQ Design & Engineering, Inc. .
President

Jose Camacho
First Lenders Financial Group
Chief Executive Officer

Tom Coletta
Florida Choice Bank
Executive Vice President

John H. Holcomb, 111 |
Alabama National BanCorparaticn
Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

Florida Chaice Bank
Chairman of the Board

David Hurley :
Advanced Marketing International
President !

Stephen LaFreniere
Quest Company
President and

Chief Executive Officer !

Eric Martell, Ph.D.
Real Estate Broker

Gordon G. Oldham, 1lI
Central Florida Exports, Inc,
President

Robert L. Purdon, MD, MBA
Florida Hospital Cancer Institute
Waterman

Radiation Oncology

Thomas J. Sanders, MD
Lake Urclogy Clinic
Urology

John B. Smith

Lake Mechanical Contractors, Inc.

President

Jayson Stringfellow
Real Estate Investor

Randall Strode
Agri-Starts, Inc.
Qwner and President

Cynthia Strollo
Strollo Architects, Inc.
Principal

John R. Warren
Florida Choice Bank
President and

Chief Executive Officer

Arnold Wurst
Region South Enterprises, Inc.
President
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Florida Choice Bank § |l

hen Florida Choice Bank afﬁhqged with Alabama

National Bancorporation in the Spring of 2006,
Florida Choice President John Warren'predlcted that the
affiliation would prove to be . .a good'deal for everyone
concerned - customers, employees management, shareholders
and our parent company.” Today, Warrlen’s prediction has
became reality. “We view our situation today as a ‘greatest
hits album,” where we enjoy the hest characteristics of both
smaller and larger banks. You might say Ii,ve have community
bank responsiveness with regional bank horsepower.
The result is a strong bottom line perfogmance in terms of
earnings growth, return on assets and high credit quality,”
he states. '\

Florida Choice has grown to seven offices and 102
employees in Marion, Lake, Orange and Seminele counties
in central Florida since the bank was formed in 1999. An
eighth office is planned for 2007 The blank s rapid growth
in assets reflects the continuing expldnsmn of Central
Florida’s economy. "About 95 percent of our market is
small businesses, which equates to som(,él 50,000 companies
with annual revenues of at least $5 millllion each. It follows
that small businesses make up the majority of our
customer base, but other banking segments including our
consumer base are also growing,” Warr_én states.

The bank’s strong service-orientf;:d culture is best
nurtured by highly experienced bankers and Warren
expresses pride in how well employees know each other
and work together to maximize strengths and overcome
weaknesses. “It's unusual to have the depth of experience
that we have in a community bank, and it amazes me how

our employees have become such passionate and energetic
bankers,” Warren states.

Warren states the anticipated merger of Florida Choice
Bank and Public Bank in June 2007 will enhance the
community bank cultures shared by both banks. “We’ll
continue to need new talent to deliver our ideals as we grow,
but we will continue to focus on what ||got us here, and on
what has made us successful. And that is local decision
making,” Warren said. He added that”the bank also will
continue using tocal bankers to determir{e gach community’s
needs. “Local decisions ensure we support what is truly
important in each community. It’s just onq;more way we deliver
as a community bank,” Warren states.

AN !

—_— T T~ 18055 U.S. Highway 441
FLORIDA

Mount Dora, FL 32757
352-735-6161 I!
www.floridachoicebank.com

i
Steve Jeuck, Senior Vice President and Chief Financiat Officer; John Warren, President
and Chief Executive Officer; Teague Gi}liland, Executive Vice President and Chief
Operations Officer; Dean Shaheen, E;ecutive Vice President and Senior Lender.
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Bank of Naples, N.A.

At Community Bank of Naples, 79 dedicated employees
embody the philosophy of “Local People Helping Local
People” as they meet customers’ financial needs through
six banking locations in Collier, Lee and Sarasota counties.
“When we opened our bank in 1996, we knew that people
familiar with our markets could best serve them. We feel
that even more strongly today, and we're proving it day by
day, neighbor by neighbor,” states Community Bank
President and CEQ Greg Murphy. “Our philosophy is pervasive
throughout the bank and sets us apart, which is important
in an area where extraordinary growth has attracted the
nation’s major banking competitors.

“A significant part of our business involves construction
and real estate lending, and we're seeing dynamic growth
in health care and related industries as well as businesses
related to our tourism industry,” Murphy states. The bank’s
employees also are more diversified than ever, with Murphy
citing as an example new Hispanic employees added in
several branches to serve the growing Hispanic population.

The bank benefits from a loyal senior management
team, “I'm proud of our management group's continuity and
commitment to our philosophy and to conducting business
with humility, character and with highest ethical
standards,” Murphy said. “Our directors bring us legal,
insurance, medical and construction expertise and add
value to the bank far beyond their ongoing efforts in new
business development.”

Community Bank's relationship with its parent company
has improved the bank's operational infrastructure,
enabling Community Bank to provide such high-tech
services as internet banking without the high costs of
developing such products locally. “The bottom ling is we're
part of a company that respects our cultural values,
provides us with significant technological know-how, and
yet preserves for us the benefits of being fully independent,”
Murphy states.

Murphy sees a larger, even more diversified bank led by
retail growth in the future. “We will expand our
presence with new offices to fill in developing areas of our
markets and seek more retail deposit relationsh'ips'. We see
dramatic growth within an envirenment where our
philosophy gives us an advantage over larger but less
responsive banks.”

5150 Tamiami Trail North
" Naples, FL 34103

239-649-1500

www.cbnaples.com

@mmunity ank
of Naples, N,
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John H. Holcomb, HI
Alabama National BanCorporation
Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

Community Bank of Naples, N.A.
Chairman of the Board

A. James Meerpohl, A.R.M.
Wells Fargo Insurance Services
Managing Director

William Van Meter
Realtor/Developer

J. Greg Murphy
Community Bank of Naples, N.A.
President and

Chief Executive Officer

Brigid D. Soldavini,
Soldavini Accounting, P.A.
Certified Public Accountant

George Vega
Vega, Brown, Stanley, & Burke
Partner

Kendall L. Wise, M.D.
Physician

Kena Yoke
Istand Piling Inc.
Vice President

Le Noir Zaiser
Inovo, Inc.
President

Standing: Jeff Miller,
Senior Vice President,
Retail Banking; Mark
Smith, Executive Vice
President & Senior
Lender; Patrick Philbin,
Executive Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer;
Seated: Greg Murphy,
President and CEQ.
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Donald B. Bailey i
Land Development and Cattle }
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lane Geraci
Micheloni Properties, Inc.
President

Grove Fruit Packing Company, 'Inc

President

David W. Gwynn, Jr. '
HNTB Architects Engineers |
Planners i|
Vice President |

John H. Holcomb, Ii l

Alabama National BanCorporation

Chairman of the Board i
and Chief Executive Officer |

Pubiic Bank
Chairman of the Board

Charles L. Hodgins 3’
Hodgins Home Appliances ]
Owner !

Bob L. Leininger !
Cattle and Citrus i

H. E. McClain
McClain Financial Group
Owner

‘Mark 1. McLin

Winn Dixie Stores, Inc.
Retail Operations

Jack A. Shoffner
Public Bank
President and

Chief Executive Officer

Wayne M. Turner
Public Bank
Senior Executive Vice President

H. Clay Whaley, Jr.
[lihaw Ranch
Owner

Henry C. Yates
Circle Y Groves
Owner

Circle Y Qil Company, Inc,
Owner

‘ |
: Public Bank i
|

Publlc Bank markets a full line of flnanmal services to
individuals and businesses in the Metropolitan
Oriando area, where the population now tops two million.
The bank's 113 employees serve custorl}wrs through eight
full service banks and one loan production office.
The bank’s diverse customer segmen't's range from real
estate to ranching, tourism to truckmg, and the emerging
simulation industry. “Our directors also reﬂect this diversity,
and when you add to this mix our multl-cultura] customer
base, we have a truly exciting gnd fun banking
environment,” states Jack A. Shoffner Public Bank’s
President and CEO. I

Shoffner credits the bank’s mandgement team with
much of the bank’s success. “Several key employees have
been with the bank since we 0pened|26 vears ago, and
most mid-level managers have been w1|th us since the mid
1990s,” Shoffner said. “These managers hold leadership
roles in various charitable and commumty related
programs throughout our market, An”d the charity golf
tournament our employees started 12 years ago has proven
so successful that we added a second tournament in 2006."

Public Bank also is investing in a br]ght group of young
employees by encouraging their contmued financial education,
“You might say we're trying to give these future leaders five
years of broad experience in two years. |We want to expand
their horizons because when it's their turn to lead, we want
them to be innovative and confident,” Sh”offner said,

Shoffner sees an exciting year ahf.yad highlighted by
the merger of Public Bank and Florida Cf'hmce Bank in June
2007. “Public Bank and Florida Chome Bank are much

alike, and combining advertising and qperatlonal budgets
within our overlapping markets just makes good business
sense,” Shoffner said. “The merger| will expand our
combined operations to over 42,000 customers and more
than a billion dollars in assets w1th1n Central Florida.
It will kick up our operations to a hlgher level and make us
even more competitive with both|| community and
regional banks.”

P“blic Bank 2500 13th Street
St. Cloud, FL 34769
Florida 407- 892 7137
ww! publlcbank org

|
Bill Isern, Executive Vice President andlSenior Lender; Wayne Turner, Senior
Executive Vice President; Jack Shoffner, President and CEQ; D. Charles Anderson, 17
Executive Vice President and CFO. i




Georgia State Bank

he banking environment of Northwest Atlanta is a mix

of community banks, mega-banks and de novo banks,
all competing to share in Atlanta’s explosive growth.
Within this complex environment, Georgia State Bank
depends on one simple rule to guide its 115 employees. “We
need a philosophy that new employees can buy into
with ease, so we chose the Golden Rule as our operating
philosophy,” states Ford Thigpen, Georgia State’s President
and CEQ. Thigpen states. “We have followed the Golden
Rule in serving our customers for 21 years, and the reward
is a valued reputation for exceptional service that sets .us
apart from and above our competitors.”

While Georgia State Bank serves all segments of its
market, its niche is small businesses, according to
Thigpen. “We serve the businesses and residents of Cobb,
Polk, Douglas and Paulding Counties, which make up the
Northwest Atlanta corridor,” Thigpen states. “Our product
portfolie reflects our emphasis on small businesses, and
our directors represent a cross section of businesses
ranging from real estate and food service to automobile
sales and law firms. We have a highly experienced
management team that represents a wealth of community
banking experience and, along with our directors,
hold leadership positions in community and charitable
organizations.”

Community hanking fosters close customer relationships
that are difficult to achieve in regionally managed banks,
according to Thigpen. “I’d estimate that 70 percent of our
bank's customers do not realize they are dealing with part
of a $7 billion regional bank holding company. Our
relationship with Alabama National Bancorperation is not
evident to our customers. They know they're dealing
directly with the people who will make the ultimate
banking decisions with them. That's what is most important
to our customers. From our perspective, our relationship
with Alabama National Bancorporation enahbles us to make
larger loans, expand investment services, offer leasing and
insurance products, and in general provide services on a
larger scale than would be possible without the relationship.
We are counting on our relationship to help us keep
up with our growing market's financial needs,”
Thigpen states.

620 Fontaine Read, S.W.
Mabteton, GA 30126
770-941-21C0
www.geobank.com

GEORGIA

STATE
BANK

Board of Directors

James A. Ashcraft
Mother's Finest Catering
President

W. Ray Barnes
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Chairman and President

Thomas |. Browning
Browning and Smith
Attorney

Richard Murray, IV
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President and

Chief Operating Officer

Ford Thigpen
Georgia State Bank
President and

Chief Executive Officer

Ken F. Thigpen
Georgia State Bank
Chairman of the Board

Stephen P. Thompson
State of Georgia
Senator

R. Truman Travis
Retails Sales Management

Melinda Abercrombie, Senior Vice President; Donnie L. Eliott, Executive Vice
8 President; Ford Thigpen, President and Chief Executive Officer; James 8. Smith,
Executive Vice President.
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Robert L. Adams ‘t
Adams Cameron and Company
President

Mark Q. Blanford
CypressCoquina Bank
Executive Vice President

J. Ronnie Bledsoe
JRB, inc.
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Daniel i. Bolerjack,

Bolerjack, Halsema and
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Certified Public Accountant,

Shareholder

William M. Chanfrau
Chanfrau & Chanfrau
Senior Partner

Lee C. Culler
Cunningham Qil Company, Inc.
President
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CypressCoquina Bank

Vice Chairman of the Board @ .

John H. Holcomb, {1l
Alabama National BanCorporation
Chairman cf the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

CypressCoquina Bank
Chairman of the Board

Dipak D. Jobalia
Venetian Bay of NSB, LLC
Managing Partner

James M. McNab
McNab & McNab
Senior Partner

William J. Voges
Root Company
President and

Chief Executive Qfficer

James E. Weite, Jr.
CypressCoquina Bank
President and

Chief Executive Officer

CypressCoquina Bank

CypressCoquina Bank’s 65 employuees have a vesied
interest in the bank's financial ptla[rformance. “Every
employee at CypressCoquina Bank 15” on some type of
incentive plan tied directly to the ban‘s bottom line,”
states jim Weite, CypressCoquina’s President and CEQ.
“And while each of our senior managérs has a different
expertise, we all work as a team to||get new business
and put our employees in the position to achieve the
performance rewards built into their joRs."

The bank serves customers in Flllagler and Volusia
Counties on Central Florida's At]ant&c Coast, an area
attracting a steady increase of retirees and tourists.
“We divide our market into three large Segments - retirees,
families, and businesses,” Weite states! “Our director list
reads like a “who’s who” among ourlmarket’s business
leaders. They extend our marketing efforts and bring us
new business opportunities and 'valuable market
intelligence.” He adds that the directol{‘s join the bank’s
employees in supporting various charitable and community-
related organizations, with a special elllnphasis placed by
the bank on the local United Way camp‘éign.

The bank’s product offerings and strategic direction are
tied directly to its local focus andl;decision making.
“Our marketing plans are market specific, which would be
difficult in a regionally managed b:almk," Weite says.
“At the same time we appreciate the technologically
advanced products, operational efficiencies and the
sharing of information and ideas availléble to us through
our holding company.” "

The bank will continue to be recognized as a market

Joe P. Epton, Jr., Vice
Chairman of the Board;
James E. Weite, jr.,
President and CEQ;

Mark O. Blanford,
Executive Vice President
and Senior Lending Officer.

leader, according to Weite. He anti‘(‘:ipales growth in
products as well as bricks and mortar, ylvith one new office
scheduled to open in the second quarter of 2007, “We will
need this growth to keep pace with cur lmarl-cet's continued
growth and economic diversity,” Weite féaid.

ii
CyPRESS @ Coquina |
i

1020 West Granada Blvd, .
Ormond Beach, FL 32174 |’
H

386-677-6966
www.Cypresscoquina.com




Millennium Bank

Millennium Bank isn’t satisfied with having customers
that are merely content. They want “Raving Fans.”
“We want people out there raving about us, raving about
the quality service they receive at our bank,” states Andy
Williams, Millennium’s President and CEO. The way to do
that, according to Williams, is to stay one step ahead of
other banks in the growing, competitive markets in Nerth
Central Florida. The bank serves customers primarily in
the city of Gainesville and in Alachua and Newberry
Counties, which makes up the region’s cultural, educational
and commercial center and is home of The University of
Florida. One major market component is healthcare, which
includes two major hospitals and the University’s medical
school, with various bio-technical industries adding to the
healthcare mix. Overall, the Alachua County market has
more service industry than manufacturing and has less
tourism than the coastal cities. Millennium Bank believes
that it is well suited 1o meet the diverse needs of this
market. “Our directors’ expertise reflects the market,
which makes them a significant resource to generate new
business and to provide insight into how to do things
better,” Williams states.

Williams applies the bank's “Raving Fan” philosophy to
the bank’s employees also. “We want our employees to
rave about their jobs at Millennium Bank, and we are
challenged to finds new ways to use their extraordinary
talent,” Williams states. “Mining that talent is vital
to achieving the bank's aggressive goals. We want to
double our size over the next five years, adding branches,
and looking at attractive new markets while attaining
the revenue growth and profitability of a truly high-
performance bank.”

While North Central Florida’s economy has attracted
many of the largest banks in the nation, Williams views
other local banks as Millennium Bank’s major competitors.
“The beauty of our relationship with the holding company
is we have the local autonomy so necessary to compete
successfully with other locally-owned banks, but when we
need help to handle the bigger transactions, we have the
backing of our holding company. It’s this combination of
local response and holding company strength that’s key to
our success in this market.” Williams sums up the

relationship with the holding company: “When we need
something, it's there.”

4340 Newberry Road
Gainesville, FL 32607
352-335-0999
wwy.millenniumbank.net
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Retired
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' Bank of Dadeville |

Lake Martin's rapid evolution into on“e of the Southeast’s
premiere vacation and retirement destinations foretells
a future for the Bank of Dadeville a:111d the people‘ and
businesses of Tallapoosa County. “011'11‘ market is ‘small
town USA’ six months of the year and'z:i resort community
the other six months,” states Wayne Elasscock, Bank of
Dadeville’s President and CEQ. The lalée, once the largest
man-made reservoir in the nation, is stimulating the area’s
economy to higher levels as more people are attracted to
the area’s recreational potential and }iigh quality of life,
according to Glasscock. “As this transition continues, we
will need more social, medical and support systems to serve
a significantly larger retirement popul}jation. Filling these
needs will create new business opportunities throughout
the region. And since senior citizens halwe more disposable
income and control larger percentages of wealth, we will
see increased opportunities to expand our bank's services
for individuals as well as businesses,” lglasscock states.

The Bank of Dadeville has servﬁd businesses and
residents of Tallapeosa and adjacent counties for 70 years.
Glasscock credits employee langevity ar;d the resulting high
service quality for keeping Bank of Dadeville among the top
performing banks in Alabama. “Our employees offer
customers extensive banking experience, and we're counting
on that experience to take advantage OII:‘ our market's rapid
evolution,” Glasscock said. “We take pride in how well our
people are adjusting to the changes in &ur market.”

Bank of Dadeville employees take ag;tive roles in various
charitable, civic and economic develoq;mem programs and
strongly support area schools. The bank is a benefactor of

K

Steve Kerr, Senior Vice President; Virginia Fuller, Vice President; C. Wayne
Glasscock, President and CEO, Rand,?ll McClendon, Senior Vice President.

i
-\
|

Tallapoosa County schools, a partner with the area’s middle
school and provides a fund to ass:i‘st school children
throughout the year. ‘I

Glasscock says the bank’s relationship with Alabama
National Bancorporation enables the bank to provide more
services at lower cost. “The technolé‘igy available to us
through the holding company wouldn’t be practical on our
own. The bottom line is our customers:receive the benefits
from our affiliation,” Glasscock states.;i

|

|
242 North Broadnax Street
Dadeville, AL 36853
256-825-4284
www.bank-of-dadeville.com

BANK of DADEVILLE
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Alabama Exchange Bank

Alabama Exchange Bank President and CEQ Robert
Davis distinguishes his Tuskegee-based bank in three
words: “We have credibility.”

“Our reputation is built on being the best bank in our
market for nearly 70 years. We know how to go the extra
mile for customers and how to serve all segments of our
customer base,” Davis states. The bank has earned a
dominant market share, a rale as pillar of the community,
and a high level of prestige for its employees.

The consumer-oriented bank, which has a major
emphasis on single family housing, serves customers in
Macon and its contiguous counties. This is a unique
market, rich in African-American achievements for more
than 100 years and the home of prestigious and historic
Tuskegee University. The University celebrated its 125th
anniversary in 2006. With more than 3,000 students and
approximately 900 faculty and support personnel, the
university is a key component in the area’s economy. This,
along with the Tuskegee Airmen National Historic site and
museum, drives tourism in the area. Tuskegee’s proximity
to Montgomery, along with being located on major highway
links to Atlanta and Birmingham, further expands the
area’s economic opportunities.

Average seniority of the bank’s 35 employees exceeds
15 years, which reflects the bank’s philosophy of treating
employees with the same respect and appreciation as
customers. “Our staff epitomizes loyalty to the extent they
are disappointed when they're not busy,” Davis states.
“The bank’s directors also have long tenures with us, and
it's reassuring to have directors and employees joining
me in helding major leadership positions threughout our
community. We all know that as the community goes, so
goes the bank. That's why we're especially proud of our
success in seeking out prospective customers from lower
economic levels and helping them become contributors to,
rather than dependents on, the local economy.”

102 West Rosa Parks Avenue
Tuskegee, AL 36083
334-727-1730
www.alabamaexchangebank.com

Avasama ExcHance Bank
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Stock Market Information
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trades on the NASDAQ Stock
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Annual Meeting of
Stockholders
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10:00 a.m. Central Time on
Wednesday. May 23, 2007,

at the First American Bank
Building, 1927 First Averue
Narth, Birmingham, Alabama.
Stockholders of record as of
March 30, 2007, are invited to
attend this meeting.
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The table below sets forth the high and low stock prices on a quarterly basis from January 1, 2004 through

December 31, 2006.

2004

2005

2006

The table below sets forth cash dividends declared by the Company for the periods presented.

Date Declared

2004

Feb. 18, 2004
Apr. 22, 2004
Aug. 18, 2004
Oct. 20, 2004

2005

Feb. 16, 2005
Apr. 20, 2005
Aug. 17, 2005
Oct. 19, 2005

2006
Feb. 22, 2006
May 3, 2006

Aug. 16, 2006
Oct. 18, 2006

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

Record Date

Mar. 15, 2004
June 15, 2004
Sept. 15, 2004
Dec. 15, 2004

Mar, 15, 2005
June 15, 2005
Sept. 15, 2005
Dec. 15, 2005

Mar. 15, 2006
June 15, 2006
Sept. 15, 2006
Dec. 15, 2006

High

$55.52
56.98
61.89
65.74

$65.59
66.44
70.49
68.00

$70.26
70.80
70.09
70.00

|
!

Low

§’ $50.14
50.18
i 53.02
|l 58.45

J
\$59.61
| 55.51
§  62.26

59.35

:, $64.55
o 64.78
| 65.48
: 65.70
f
]
|
|

I

[
Payment Date  Per-Share Amount

Apr. 3, 2004
Juty 3, 2004
Oct. 3, 2004
Jan. 3, 2005

Apr. 3, 2005
July 3, 2005
Oct. 3, 2005
Jan. 3, 2006

Apr. 3, 2006
July 3, 2006
Oct. 3, 2006
Jan. 3, 2007

” $0.3125
3125
[———
| 3125
$1.25

$0.3375

3375

| 3375

3375
$1.35

! $0.375

‘ 375
375

| 375

| $1.50

|

|

On February 21, 2007 the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.41 per share payable on Apnl 3, 2007,
to shareholders of record on March 15, 2007, representing a $1.64 annual dividend rate.

d
Dividend Re:nveatment Program: Alabama National has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan available for share owners holding
their shares in cemflcate form. For more information or enrollment materials, please contact Computershare Investor
Services (Alabama National's Transfer Agent), 800-568-3476.

i
|
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph sets ferth the cumulative total stockholder return (assuming reinvestment of dividends) to ANB’s
stockholders during the period beginning December 31, 2001 and ending on December 31, 2006, compared to an overall
stock market index (NASDAQ Composite) and the SNL Bank Index.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total
Shareholder Returns Among ANB, NASDAQ Composite &
SNL Bank Index

Total Return Performance

250
—&— Alabama National BanCorporation
225 {—| —m— NASDAQ Composite —A
—&— SNL Bank Index /"_”_’_‘/
200 /
175
: //
= /4>
©
> 150
) . —e/
£ 125 /;/.//
75
‘\-/
50 t } } t
12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
Period Ending
INDEX 12/31/00 12/31/02  12/31/03  12/31/04 12/31/05  12/31/06
Alabama National BanCorporation 100.00 132.23 163.58 206.05 210.45 228.29
NASDAQ Composite (I} . 100.00 68.76 103.67 113.16 115.57 127.58
SNL Bank Index (1) 100.00 01.69 123.69 138.61 140.50 164.35

(1) SNL Financial LC
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Anntal Report on Form 10-K, other periodic reports filed by Alabama National BanCorporation (the
“Company” or, “Alabama National”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any other
written or oral statements made by or on behalf of Alabama National, may include “forward- Iookmg statements’”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 which reflect Aldbama National’s
current views with respect to future events and financial performance. Such forward-looking statememq are
based on genex'al assumptions and are subject to various risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause
actual results to differ materially from the views, beliefs and projections expressed in such statements.

These risks, uncertainties and other factors include, but are not limited to, those risks discussed under “Item
1A.—Risk Faciors” and the following:

Some factors are specific to Alabama National, including:

Aldb.lmﬂ National’s ability to expand inlo new markets and to maintain profit margins in the face of
pncmg pressures. "

Alabama National’s ability to keep pace with technological changes.

Alabama National’s ability to develop competitive new products and services in a timely manner and
the ack:eptance of such products and services by Alabama National’s customers and potential customers.

Aldbama National’s ability to effectively manage interest rate risk and other market risk, credit risk and
opemuonal risk.

A!abama National’s ability to manage fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities so as to maintain
9ufﬁc1ent capital and liquidity to support Alabama National’s business.

The ‘tblllly of Alabama National to achieve the expected operating results related to the acquired
operatlons of recently-completed and future acquisitions (including Florida Choice Bank and The
Peachitree Bank), which depends on a variety of factors, including (i) the ability of Alabama National to
achieve the anticipated cost savings and revenue enhancements with respect to the acquired operations,
(ii} the assimilation of the acquired operations to Alabama National’s corporate culture, including the
abilit}!r to instill Alabama National’s credit practices and efficient approach to the acquired operations,
(iii) the continued growth of the markets in which Alabama National operales consistent with recent
hl‘;loncal experience, and (iv) the absence of material contingencies related to the acqulred operations,
lncludmg asset quality and litigation contingencies.

The (IObt and other effects of legal and administrative cases and proceedings, claims, settlements and
Judgniwnts. 1

Other factors which may affect Alabama National apply to the financial services industry more generally,
including:

Further easing of restrictions on participants in the financial services industry, such as banks, securities
broke'rs and dealers, investment companies and finance companies, may increase competitive pressures.

Possible changes in interest rates may increase funding costs and reduce earning asset y]B]dS thus
t
reducing margins.

The threat or occurrence of war or acts of terrorism and the existence or exacerbation of general
geop«‘)litical instability and uncertainty.

Pov.slble changes in consumer and business spending and saving habits could affect Alabama National’s
ﬂb1|lly 1o increase assets and to attract deposits.

Powble changes in economic and business conditions that may affect the prevailing inteTest rates, the
preva:lmg rates of inflation, or the amount of growth, stagnation, or recession in the global, U.S., and
southleaslem U.S. economies, the value of investments, collectibility of loans and the profitability of

business entities.




* Possible changes in monetary and fiscal policies, laws and regulations, and other activities of
governments, agencies and similar organizations.

Words such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “project” and similar expressions signify forward-looking
statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements made by or on
behatf of Alabama National. Any such statement speaks only as of the date the statement was made. Alabama
National undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements. ‘
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Alabama National BanCorporation. (“Alabama National” or “the Company”) is a Delaware bank holding
company with its principal place of business in Birmingham, Alabama, and its main office located at 1927 First
Avenue NonhE Birmingham, Alabama 35203 (Telephone Number: (205) 583-3600). Alabama‘Natlonal is
currently the parent of twelve banks (the “Banks”}, summarized below. '

Total Assets at

Bank M P.M
I. First American Bank ... ... e Birmingham Metropolitan Area, Decatur/ ‘
F Huntsville/Athens, Talladega, and '
\ Auburn/Opelika, Alabama $2,998,000,000
2. Indian River National Bank ............. Indian River and Brevard Counties, Florida  $ 797 738,000
3. First Gulf Ba:nk, NA .. ..o Pensacola and Panama City, Florida and
| ‘ ' Baldwin County, Alabama R 654,227,000
4. The Peachtree Bank ... ... ... ....... Metropolitan Atlantz, Georgia $ 576,749,000
5. Florida Choice Bank . ... .. e Metropolitan Orlando and Ocala, Florida $ 536,358,000
6. Community Bank of Naples, NA. ....... Naples, Florida ' $ 428,966,000
7.PublicBank .............. P Metropolitan Orlando and Lake County., L
' Florida $ 424,008,000
8. Georgla Stat(, Bank .................... Metropolitan Atlanta, Georgla $ 408,920,000
9. CypressCoquma Bank ... Ormond Beach, Florida . $ 310,266,000
10 Mlllenmum:Bank .................... Gainesville, Florida . | $ 189,990,000
1i. Bank of Dadeville ............. e Dadeville, Alabama $ 083,607,000
12. Alabama E)I;change Bank ........... ... Tuskegee, Alabama $ 80 516,000

!

In addition, Alabama National is currently the ultimate parent of one securities brokerage firm, NBC
Securities, Inc. (Birmingham, Alabama); one receivables factoring company, Corporate Billing, Inc. (Decatur,
Alabama): and one insurance agency, ANB Insurance Services, Inc. (headquartered’in Birminghan;, Alabama).
Alabama National also offers commercial brokerage services through'a division of First American Bank.
Subsidiary Ba:ll_ks \

Alabama National.operates through 12 subsidiary Banks which have a total of 102 banking offices and six
loan/mortgage origination offices in the states of Alabama, Georgia and Florida. The Banks focus on traditional
consumer, residential mortgage, commercial and real estate construction lending, and equipment leasing to
customers in their market areas. The Banks also offer a variety of deposit programs to individuals and small
businesses and other organizations at interest rates generally consistent with local market conditions.

Alabama National’s Wealth Management division offers trust, financial planning, investment management,
and securities ;brokerage services to institutional and individual customers. Trust, financial planning, and
investment managemem services are offered through First American Bank’s Trust and Asset Management
division. In addmon NBC Securities, Inc. offers investment advisory and securities brokerage services at a
number of lochtions of the Banks. Commercial morigage services, including the origination of permanent
commercial real estate mortgage loans for various lenders, are provided by Byars and Company, a division of
First American! Bank. Property and casualty insurance services are offered at a number of the locations of the
Banks by ANB Insurance Services, Inc., a subsidiary of First American Bank. In addition, the ‘Banks offer
individual retirtment and KEOGH accounts, safe deposit and night depository facilities and addmonal services
such as the sale of traveler’s checks, money orders and cashier’s checks.




Lending Activities

General

Through the Banks, Alabama National offers a range of lending services, including real estate, consumer
and commercial loans, to individuals and small businesses and other organizations that are located in or conduct
a substantial portion of their business in the Banks’ market areas. Alabama National’s total loans, net of unearned
income, at December 31, 2006, were approximately $5.5 billion, or approximately 80% of total earning assets.
The interest rates charged on loans vary with the degree of risk, maturity and amount of the loan and are further
subject to:competitive pressures, money market rates, availability of funds and government regulations. Alabama
National has no “foreign loans™ (other than approximately $2 million of factored receivables) or Ioans for “highly
leveraged transactions,” as such terms are defined by applicable banking regulations.

Loan Porifolio

Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by real estate are the primary component of Alabama National’s loan
portfolio,  constituting approximately $4.6 .billion, or 84.1% of total loans, net of uneamed income, at
December 31, 2006. The Banks originate consumer and commercial related real estaie purpose loans. Also, the
Banks often take real estate as an additional source of collateral to secure commercial and industrial loans. Such
loans are classified as real estate loans rather than commercial and industrial loans if the real estate collateral is
considered significant as a secondary source of repayment for the toan. Loans are typically made on a recourse
basis supported by financial statements and a review of the repayment ability of the borrower(s) andfor
guarantor(s). Origination fees are charged for most real estate secured loans. Furthermore, the Banks have
adopted the Interagency Supervisory Real Estate Loan-to-Value Limits issued by the federal regulators as the
maximum allowable loan-te-value ratio; however exceptions are permitted provided justification is supported by
sufficient mitigating factors.

Real estate lending activities consist of the fol]owing'

» The primary type of residential mortgage ‘l0an is the qmg]c -family first mortgage typically structured

' with fixed or adjustable interest rates, based on market conditions. These loans usually have fixed rates

for up to five years, with maturities of 25 to 30 years. Also, the Banks originate home equity lines of

credit secured by residential property. These foans aré typically made on a variable rate basis with
maturities up to 15 years.

+ The Banks’ commercial real estate term loans accrue at either variable or fixed rates. The variable rates
approximate current market rates. Amortizations are typically no more than 25 years with maturity dates
generally five years or less.

'+ Construction and land development loans are typically made on a variable rate basis. Loan terms usually
do not exceed twenty-four months. '

* The Banks originate residential loans for sale into the secondary market Such loans are made in
accordance with underwriting standards set by the purchaser of the loan, normally as to loan-to-value
ratio, interest rate, borrower qualification and documentation. Such loans are generally made under a
commitment to purchase from a loan purchaser. The Banks generally collect from the borrower or
purchaser a combination of the origination fee, discount points and/or service release fee. During 2006,
the Banks sold approximately $665 million in loans to such purchasers.,

Consumer Loans. Consumer lending includes installment lending to mdrvrduals in lhe Banks’ market
areas and generally consists of loans to purchase automobiles and other consumer durable goods. Consumer
loans constituted $94.6 million, or 1.7% of Alabama National’s Joan portfolro at December 31, 2006, Consumer
loans are underwritten based on the borrower’s income, current debt Jevel, past credit history and collateral.
Consumer rates are both variable and fixed, with terms negouable Terms generally rdnge from one to five years
depending on the nature and condition of the collateral. Periodic amortization, generally monthly, is typically
required.




f ¢
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Cmnmerci%z[ and Financial Loans. The Banks make loans for commercial purposes in various lines of
business. These loans are typically made on terms up to five years at fixed or variable rates. The loans are
secured by various types of collateral including accounts receivable, inventory or, in the case of equipment loans,
the financed equipment. The Banks attempt to reduce their credit risk on commercial loans by underwriting the
loan based on the borrower’s cash flow and its ability to service the debt from earnings, and by limiting the
loan-to-value ratio. Historically, the Banks have typically loaned up to 80% on loans: secured by accounts
receivable, up to 50% on loans secured by inventory, and up to 100% on loans secured by equipment. The Banks
also make some unsecured commercial loans and offer equipment leasing. Commercial and financial leans
constituted $401.1 million, or 7.3% of Alabama National’s loan portfolio, at December 31, 2006. Interest rates
are negotiable based upon the borrower’s financial condition, credit history, management stability and collateral.

i I‘
v . .
1

Credit Procedurev and Rewew .

Loan Approval. Cenain credit risks are inherent in making loans, These include prepayment risks, risks
resulting from -uncertainties in the future value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in economic and
industry conditions and risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. In particular, longer maturities

increase the n‘sli( that economic conditions will change and adversely affect collectibility.
' * . . [:

Alabama National attempts to minimize loan losses through various means and uses standardized
underwriting criteria. Alabama National has established a standardized loan policy for all of the Banks that may
be modified based on local market conditions. In particular, on larger credits, Alabama National generally relies
on the cash flow of a debtor as the source of repayment and secondarily on the value of the underlying collaterat.
In addition, Aliibama National attempts to utilize shorter loan terms in order to reduce the risk of a decline in the
value of such c!allateral.- . . ! :l '

Alabama National addresses repayment risks by adhering to internal credit policies and procedu;es which ‘all
of the Banks have adopted. These policies and procedures include officer and customer lending limits, a multi-
layered loan approval process for larger loans, documentation examination and follow-up procedures for any
exceptions to credit policies. The point in each Bank’s loan approval process at which a loan is approved depends
on the size of Lhe borrower’s credit relationship with such Bank. Each of the lending officers at each of the Banks
has the authonty to approve loans up to an approved loan authority amount as approved by each Bank’s Board of
Directors. Loans in excess of the highest loan authority amount at each Bank must be approved by Alabama
Naticnal's Presidem and Chief Operating Officer or Alabama National’s Vice President of Credit
Admlnlstratlon In addition, loans in excess of a particular loan officer’s approvatl authority must be approved by
a more senior ofﬁccr at the particular Bank, the loan committee at such Bank, or bolh

Rr'sk-Ratinl,gs. Loan officers are directly responsible for monitoring the risk in their respective portfollo On
commercial loans, risk grades are assigned by the loan officer for the probability of default and for loss‘in the
event of defadli following analysis of borrower characteristics and external economic factors. However, on
consumer loans, risk grades are determined by a borrower’s credit score and personal debt ratio.

Loan Review. Alabama National's Loan Review Department (“LRD”), which is wholly independent of the
lending funcuo'n serves as a validation of each loan officer’s risk monitoring and assigned risk ratmgs Alabama
National. maintains a continuous loan review system for First American Bank, Indian River Nauonal Bank,
Florida Choice Bank, The Peachtree Bank and First Gulf Bank. For the other Banks, a scheduled review system
is in place. L.LRD’s primary function is to provide the Board of Directors of each Bank with a thorough
understanding lof the credit quality of such Bank’s loan portfolio. Other review requirements are in place to
provide management with early warning systems for problem loans as well as compliance with stated lending
policies. LRD1s findings are reported, along with an asset quality review, to the Alabama Nauonal Board of
Directors at each bi-monthly meeting. .

Deposnts

N

The pnnmpal sources of funds for the Banks.are core deposits, consmtmg of demand depoms interest-
bearing transaction accounts, money market accounts, savings deposits and certificates of deposit. Transaction

'
. [}
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accounts include checking and negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts which customers use: for cash
management and which provide the Banks with a’source of fee income and cross-marketing opportunities, as
well as a low-cost source of funds, Time and savings accounts also provide.a relatively stable and low-cost
source of funding. The largest source of funds for the Banks are certificates of deposit. Certificates of deposit in
excess of $100,000 are held primarily by customers in the Banks’ market areas. Alabama National does utilize
brokered centificate of deposits to supp]emenl its market funding sources when funding needs or pricing warrant
the use of wholesale funding. - .

Deposit rates are reviewed weekly by senior management of each of thé Banks. Management at Alabama
National believes that the rates the Banks offer are competitive with those offered by other institutions in the
Banks’ market areas. Alabama National also focuses on customer service to attract and retain deposits,

Investment Services

First American Bank operates an investment department devoted primarily to servicing correspondent
banks’ investment needs. Services provided by the investment department include the sale of fixed income
securities, asset/liability consulting, safekeeping and bond accounting.

Wealth Management Division

The Company’s Wealth Management division offers trust, financial planning, investment management, and
securities brokerage services to institutional and individual customers. Trust, financial planning. and investment
management services are offered through First American Bank’s Trust and Asset Management Division, In
addition. NBC Securities, Inc. offers investment advisory and securities brokerage services at a number of
locations of the Banks. These services include the sale of stocks, bonds, mutual funds, annuities, margin loans,
other insurance products and financial advisory services including those provided by outside money managers
through separately-managed accounts. As of December 31, 2006, NBC Securities had a total of approximately 76
investment representatives and advisors located in 41 offices in Alabama, Florida, Georgia and Tennessee.

Mortgage Lending Division

" Substantially all of the Banks operate mortgage lending divisions that make home loans to individuals
located in the markets served by the Banks. The majority of these loans are sold to corporate investors, who also
service the loans. In addition to selling traditional residential mortgages, with the 2005 acquisition of Byars and
Company, Alabama National now has a commercial mortgage banking operation. Through this division of First
American Bank, Alabama National arranges permanent financing with outside investors for commercial real
estate transactions. First American Bank eamns a fee for this service. Alabama National also services many of the
loans for the permanent investors and earns a fee for this service as well,

Insurance Services Division _ - '

ANB Insurance Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Alabama National’s First American Bank, is a full service
independent property and casualty insurance agency headqumered in Blrmmgham Alabama. Agents are located
at many of the Banks.

Coinpetitio_n

Alabama National encounters strong competition in all of its businesses. The Banks compete with other
commercial banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance
companies, brokerage and investment banking companies, and other financial intermediaries operating in
Alabama, Florida, Georgia and elsewhere. Many of these competitors, some of which are affiliated with large
bank holding companies, have substantially greater resources and lending limits, and may offer certain services
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that the Banks 'do not currently provide. In addition, many of Alabama National’s non-bank competitors are not
subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govem bank holding companies and federally tnsured
banks. .

Cuqtomerc for banking services are generally mfluenced by convenience, quality of serwce personal
contacts, pr:ces of services and availability of products. Alabama National believes that its affiliates effectively
compete with others banks and financial institutions in their relevant market areas. -

Market Areas and Growth Strategy

Alabama National currently conducts business through 45 banking locations in Alabama, 44 banking
locations. in Flonda and 13 banking locations in Georgia. Approxlmately 99% of the Banks’ deposits are in
metropolitan st.msucal areas.

Alabama National intends to pursue expansion into attractive, high growth markets in Florida, Georgia and
] f e . . b, .

Alabama through acquisitions of community banks and branch locations and through bank expansions. Since
1995, Alabama National has successfully integrated 13 bank acquisitions and two separate branch acquisitions.
Alabama Nauolnal focuses its acquisition strategy on high quality community banks with proven management
leams that view Alabama National as a partner, rather than as an exit strategy. Alabama National's ?trategy is to
maintain the management team of each acquired bank, allowing it to retain its local entrepreneurial 1denmy and
decision making, while simultaneously creating efficiencies in the administrative and back office operations of
the bank.

In Alabama Alabama National focuses its operanons in three principal market areas; north Alabama
(Decatur- Huntsville market); the metropolitan Birmingham area and east central Alabama; and Baldwin County
(located on thé Gulf Coast between Mobile, Alabama and Pensacola, Florida). In Flonida, Alabama National
focuses its operations in seven principal market areas: Pensacola and Panama City (located in the Florida
panhandle); thé’, Gainesville metropolitan area; the Orlande metropolitan area; Ocala; the coastal Atlantic
counties of Indian River and Brevard (including the Port St. Lucie metropolitan area); the Palm Coast / Ormond
Beach region; and the Naples and Fort Myers metropolitan areas. In Georgia, Alabama National focuses its
operations in the greater-Atlanta counties of Cobb, Douglas, Paulding, Gwinnett and Fulton, .

Through First American Bank, Alabama Nat:onal serves the metropolitan Birmingham markct which
includes pomons of Jefferson, Shelby and St. Clair Counties. First American Bank also serves Morgan,
Limestone and, Madison Counties in north Alabama, Talladega County in central Alabama and Lee County in
east central Alabama. The Decatur-Huntsville, Alabama market has demonstrated a growing economic base in
recent years. F'irsl American entered the Lee County market, which includes the communities of -Auburn and
Opelika, with the 2001 acquisition of Farmers National Bancshares, Inc. Lee County is also one of Alabama’s
higher growth (Ioumles :

Through I%irst Gulf Bank, N.A., Alabama National serves Baldwin County, Alabama, as well as Pensacola
and Panama City, Florida. Baldwin County, located between Mobile, Alabama and Pensacola, Florida, has a
broad base of feconomic activity in the retail and service, agriculture, seafood, tourism and manufacturing
industries. Baldwm County includes the popular tourism and retirement resort communities of Gulf Shores,
Orange Beach and Fairhope. Shelby, Baldwin, Lee and St. C]dll‘ Counties have been named in stausucal surveys
as four of the f‘lslesl growing counties in Alabama.

In 1997, 1l\labama Nationa! expanded outside of Alabama with the opening of Citizens & Peoples Bank,
N.A. in Escambia County, Florida. In May 2005, Alabama National's First Gulf Bank merged with and into
Citizens & Peopies Bank, N.A., which now operates under the name First Gulf Bank, N.A. and serves Pensacola
and Panama City, Florida, as well as Baldwin County, Alabama. In 1998, Alabama National further expanded its
presence in ma"rkels outside of Alabama with two acquisitions in Florida and one in Georgia. Community Bank
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of Naples, N.A_, located in Collier County, Florida, and Georgia State Bank, located in the greater-Atlanta
counties of -Cobb, Dougtas and Paulding, are located in markets that are among the fastest growing in their
respective states. Public Bank is ocated in the fast-growing greater Orlando area, with offices in Altamonte
Springs, Kissimmee and St. Cloud, Florida. In 2001, Alabama National expanded its presence in the greater-
Orlando area with the acqui§ilion of Peoples State Bank of Groveland (“Peoples State Bank™), serving customers
in the communities of Groveland, Leesburg and Clermont, Florida. Peoples State Bank merged with Public.-Bank
in 2004. In 2003, Alabama National further expanded in Florida with the acquisition of Millennium Bank in
Gainesville. Home to the University of Florida, Gainesville has experienced solid economic activity and good
population growth.

In 2004, Alabama National completed the acquisitions of two additional Florida banks: Cypress Bank in
Palm Coast.and Indian River Naticnal Bank in Vero Beach. Palm Coast, located in Flagler County, has
experienced strong growth in population and bank deposits. Indian River serves the coastal Atlantic counties of
Indian River and Brevard through eight locations in Vero Beach, Sebastian, Melbourne, Palm Bay and
Rockledge, Florida. In July 2004, Alabama National acquired Coquina Bank of Ormond Beach, Florida. Coquina
Bank subsequently merged with Cypress Bank in August 2004 to form CypressCoquina Bank,

In April 2006, Alabama National acquired Florida Choice Bank, with six offices in the greater Orlando;
Florida market and one office in Ocala, Florida. In October 2006 Alabama National acqulrecl The Peachtree
Bank, with four offices in the north central Atlanta metropohlan area.

The other subsidiary Banks, Alabama Exchange Bank and Bank of Dadeville, are located ‘in
non-metropolitan areas. Each of these Banks, while experiencing lower growth due to limited market growth,
typically operates at a high level of profitability. As a result, these Banks tend to produce capital ‘for growth in
many of the high growth markels served by the other Banks. Alabama National’s strategy is to focus on
maximization of profitability for these non-metropolitan banks, since market growth has not been as significant.

Due to continuing consolidation within the banking industry, particularly in the Southeastern United States,
Alabama National may in the future seek to combine with other banks or thrifts (or their holding companies) that
may be of smaller, equal or greater size than Alabama National. Alabama National currently intends to
concentrate on acquisitions of additional banks or thrifts (or their holding companies) which operate in attractive
market areas in Florida, Georgia and Alabama. In addition to price and terms, the factors considered by Alabama
National in determining the desirability of a business acquisition or combination are financial condition, asset
quality, earnings potential, quality of management, market area and competitive environment. '

In addition to its strategy of expansion through combinations with other banks or thrifts, Alabama National
intends to continue to expand organically where possible by growing its existing banks in their respective market

areas and nearby attractive markets.

Alabama National continuingly explores expansion into lines of business closely related to banking and will
pursue such expansion if it believes such lines could be profitable without causing undue risk to Alabama
National. First American Bank operaies a commercial leasing division which currently focuses on machinery and
equipment leases 1o business customers. ANB Insurance Services, Inc., Alabama National’s full service
independent property and casualty insurance agency headquartered in Decatur, Alabama, has agents in most of
the markets serviced by the Banks. Alabama National has also expanded its securities brokerage unit, NBC
Securilies, Inc., by localing investment representatives in offices of several of Alabama National’s subsidiary
Banks as weli as in offices of some correspondent banks. It has also added investment representatives in other
non-bank locations when opportunities have arisen. In September 2005, Alabama National entered the
commercial mortgage banking business with the acquisition of Byars and Company, now a division of First
American Bank. Byars originates and services commercial mortgage loans for life insurance companies and
commercial mortgage conduits.




While Alal‘gama National plans to continue its growth as described above, there is no assurance that its
efforts will be successful. .
Employees !

As of December 31, 2006, Alabama National and the Banks together had approximately 1,789 full-time
equivalent employees None of these employees is a party 10 a collective bargaining agreemenl Alabama
National considérs its relatlons with its employees to be good. _ i

| . 1
oo t :
Supervision and Regulation

Alabama N_ational and the Banks are subject to state and federal banking laws and regulati"ons, which
impose specifici requirements and restrictions on, and provide for general regulatory oversight with' respect to,
virtuaily all aspects of operations. These laws and regulations are generally intended to protect depositors, not
shareh_(plderS. To the extent that the following summary describes statutory or regulatory provisions, it is
qualified in its' entirety by reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions. Any change in
applicable laws or regulations may have a material effect on the business and prospects of Alabama Nauonal and
the Banks. ' , _ ' : _ ,

Beginning with the enactment of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement ;'\ct of 1989
{(“FIRREA™) and following in 1991 with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (“FDICIA”) numerous
additional regulatory requirements have been placed on the banking industry, and additional changes have been
proposed. The operations of Alabama National and the Banks may be affected by legislative’ changes and the
policies of variqus regulatory authorities. Alabama National and the Banks are unable to predict the nature or the
extent of the effect on its business and earnings that fiscal or monetary policies, economic control or new federal
or state’ leglslatlon may have in the future.

Asa regisl’ered bank holding company, Alabama National is subject to regulation under the Bﬁnk Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCA™), and to inspection, examination and supervision by the Federal
Reserve. The Bankq are subject 1o supervision and regulation by applicable state and federal banking agencies,
including the Eederal Reserve, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”™) and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”). The Banks are also subject to various requirements and restrictions
under federal and state law, including requirements to maintain allowances against deposits, restrictions on the
types and amounts of loans that may be granted and the interest that may be charged thereon and limitations on
the types of i investments that may be made and the types of services that may be offered. Various consumer laws
and regulations|also affect the operations of the Banks. In addition to the impact of regulation, commercial banks
are affected significantly by the actions.of the Federal Reserve as it attempts to control the money supply and
credit availabili:ly in order o influence the economy. "

! ',

Under the BHCA, Alabama National may not generally engage in activities or acquire more than 5% of any
class of voting :securilies of any company engaged in activities other than banking or activities that are closely
related to bankmg However, a bank holding company that has elected to be treated as a financial holding
company may pngage in activities that are financial in nature or incidental or complementary to such financial
activities, as determined by the Federal Reserve alone, or together with the Secretary of the Departmem of the
Treasury. Alabama National has not elected financial holding company status. See “Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act”
beginning on page 12 betow. . \ oo
A . | :
" Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 {“Riegle-Neal”)

Under Rie‘g]e Neal, bank holding companies from any state may acquire banks located in any other state,
subject Lo certzun conditions, including concentration limits. A bank may establish branches across state lines by
merging with a 'bank in another state (unless applicable state law prohibits such interstate mergers), provnded that
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certain conditions are met. A bank may also establish a de novo branch in a state in which the bank does not
maintain a branch if that state expressly permits such interstate de novo branching and certain other conditions
are met.

Bank Holding Company Support of Subsidiary Banks

There are a number of obligations and restrictions ir‘nposcd on bank holding companies and their depository
institution subsidiaries by federal law and regulatory policy that are designed to reduce potential loss exposure 1o
the depositors of such depository institutions and to the FDIC insurance fund in the event that the depository
institution becomes in danger of default or is in default. For example, under a policy of the Federal Reserve with
respect to bank holding company operations, a bank holding company is required to serve as a source of financial
strength to its subsidiary depository institutions and commit resources to support such institutions in
circumstances where it might not do so absent such policy. In addition, the “cross-guarantee™ provisions of
federal law require insured depository institutions under common control to reimburse the FDIC for any loss
suffered or reasonably anticipated as a result of the default of a commonly controlled insured deposltory
institution or for any assistance provided by the FDIC to a commonly controlled insured depos:tory institution in
danger of default. All of the Banks are FDIC-insured depository institutions. Any capital loans by a bank holding
company to its subsidiary banKs are subordinate in right of payment to deposits and to certain other indebtedness
of such subsidiary banks. In the event of a bank holding company’s bankruptcy, any commitment by the bank
holding company to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank will be
assumed by the bankrupicy trustee and entitled to a priority of payment. '

Regulatory Capital Reqmremems

Alabama National is required to comply with the capital adequacy standards established by the Federal
Reserve, and the Banks must comply with similar capital adequacy standards established by the OCC, FDIC and
the Federal Reserve, as applicable. Failure to meet capital adequacy standards could subject Alabama National or
the Banks to a variety of enforcement remedies, including the issuance of a capital directive, the termination of
deposit insurance by the FDIC and certain other restrictions on its business. The federal banking agencies have
broad powers under current federal law to take prompt corrective action to resolve problems of insured
depository institutions. The extent of these powers depends upon whether the institutions in question are “well
capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” or “critically
undercapitalized,” as such terms are defined under regulations issued by each of the federal banking agencies. In
general, the agencies measure capital adequacy within a framework that makes capital requirements sensitive (o
the risk profiles of individual banking companies. The guidelines define capital as either Tier 1 (primarily
common shareholders’ equity) or Tier 2 (certain debt instruments and a portion of the allowance for loan losses).
Alabama National and the Banks are subject to a minimum Tier 1 capital ratio (Tier | capital to risk-weighted
assets) of 4%, a total capital ratio (Tier | plus Tier 2 to risk-weighted assets) of 8% and a Tier | leverage ratio
(Tier 1 to average quarterly assets) of 4%. To be considered a “well capitalized” institution, the Tier 1 capital
ratio, the total capital ratio and the Tier | leverage ratio must equal or exceed 6%, 10% and 5%, respectively,

The Federal Reserve has adopted rules to incorporate market and interest rate risk components into its risk-
based capital standards. Under these market risk requirements, capital is allocated to support the amount of
market risk related to a financial institution’s ongoing trading activities.

Aﬁ" iliate Transactions

The Banks are subject to Regulauon W, which comprehensively |mplememed statutory restrictions on
transactions between a bank and its affiliates. Regulation W combines the Federal Reserve’s interpretations and
exemptions relating to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act. Regulation W and Section 23A of the
Federal Reserve Act place limits on the amount of loans or extensions of credit to, investments in, or certain
other transactions with affiliates, and on the amount of advances.to third parties collateralized by the securities or
obligations of affiliates. In general, the Banks’ “affiliates” are Alabama  National and Alabama National’s
non-bank subsidiaries. : :
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"+ Regulation W and Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act prohibit, among other things, & bank from
engaging in certain transactions with affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantiaily the' same, or at
feast as favorable to the bank, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated

COmlel'llE§ [ '

v

The Bankjs are also subject to certain restrictions on extensions of credit to executive officers, directors,
certain principal shareholders and their related interests. Such extensions of credit must be made on substantially
the same ter‘ms‘ including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions
with third pames and must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other” unfavomble
features. : . . ,

Community heinvestmem Act( “CRA ") ' "

1 1

The CRA' requires that, in connection with examinations of financial institutions within their respective
Jurisdictions, [}ile Federal Reserve, the FDIC or the OCC shall evaluate the record of the financial institutions in
meeting the credll needs of their local communities, including low and moderate income nelghborhood-;
consistent wnth the safe and sound operation of those institutions. The CRA does not establish specmc lending
requirements or programs for financial institutions ‘nor does it limit an institution’s discretion to’ develop the
types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular community, consistent with the
CRA. These £ actors are considered in evatuating mergers, acquisitions and applications to open a branch or
facility. The CRA also requires all institutions to make public disclosure of their CRA ratings. Each o':)f the Banke
received at least a satisfactory rating in its most recent evaluation.

Dividends -" . . [
!

There are'various legal and regulatory limits on the extent to which banks may pay dividends or otherwise
supply funds to their holding companies, In addition, federal and state regulatory agencies also have the authority
to prevent a balnk or bank holding company from paying a dividend or engaging in any other activity that, in the
opinion of lhe agency, would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. The Federal Reserve has indicated
generally that ;t may be an unsafe or unsound practice for bank holding companies to pay dividends unless the
bank holding company’s net income over the preceding year is sufficient to fund the dividends, and;the expected
rate of earnings retention is consistent with the organization’s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial
condition. . _ . :

In addmoln to the limitations placed on the payment of dividends at the holding company Ievel there are
various legal and regulatory limits on the extent to which the Banks may pay dividends or otherwise wpply funds
to Alabama Nutional. The Banks located and chartered in Alabama, Florida and Georgia are subject to the laws
and regulalionjs of those states, which place certain restrictions on the payment of dividends. Additionally, the
state charteredI Banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System are subject 1o the regulations of the
Federal Reserve Board, while Alabama National’s national chartered Banks are subject to the l’BngldllOl’]S of the
OCC. Both lhe Federal Reserve and OCC place certain restrictions on the payment of dividends.

Under Alabama law, a bank may not pay a dividend in excess s of 90 percent of its net eammgq until the
bank’s surplus is equal to at least 20 percent of capital. Also, under Alabama law, a bank is required to obtain
approval of lh(i. Superintendent of Banking prior to the payment of dividends if the total of all dividends declared
by the bank in any calendar year will exceed the total of (a) the bank’s net earnings (as defined by statte) for the
year, plus (b) i'tsrelained net earnings for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to surplus. Also, no
dividends may be paid from the bank’s surplus without the prior writlen approval of the SupeTintendent of

Banking. All cif the Banks that are chartered under Alabama law are subject to these dividends restrictions.
o ' d

T
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Fiorida law places similar restrictions on the payment of dividends. Florida chartered banks are subject to
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends, including a prohibition of payment of dividends from their
capital under certain circumstances without the prior approval of the Florida Department of. Financial Services.
Except with the prior approval of the Department of Financial Services, all dividends of any Florida bank must
be paid out of retained net profits from the current period and the previous two years, after deducting expenses,
including losses and bad debts. In addition, Florida banks are required to transfer at least 20 percent of their net
income to surplus until their surplus equals the amount of paid-in capital.

For Georgia chartered banks, a bank must have approval of the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance
to pay cash dividends if, at the time of such payment: (i) the ratio of Tier 1 capiial to adjusted total assets is less
than 6 percent; (ii) the aggregate amount of dividends to be declared or anticipated to be declared during the
current calendar year exceeds 50 percent of its net after-tax profits for the previous calendar year; or (iii) its total
classified assets in its most recent regulatory examination exceeded 80 percent of its Tier | capital plus its
allowance for loan losses, as reflected in the examination.

In addition, the approval of the OCC is required for a national bank to pay dividends in excess of the bank’s
retained net income for the current year plus retained net income for the preceding two years. Approval of the
Federal Reserve Board is required for payment of any dividend by a state chartered bank that is a member of the
Federal Reserve System (sometimes referred to as a stale member bank), if the total of all dividends.declared by
the bank in any calendar year would exceed the total of its net profits, as defined by regulatory agencies, for that
year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years. In addition, a state member bank may not
pay a dividend in an amount greater than its net profits then on hand.

Federal and state banking regulations applicable to us and our Bank subsidiaries require minimum levels of
capital which limit the amounts avaiiable for payment of dividends. See “Regulatory Cupital Requirements” on
page 10 above and Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Alabama National and Subsidiaries
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning at page F-1. '

The inability of the Banks to pay dividends may have an adverse effect on Alabama National.

FDIC Regulation

"FDIC regulations require that management report on its responsibility for preparing its institution’s financial
statements and for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure and procedures for financial
reporting and compliance with designated laws and regulations concerning safety and soundness.

"The FDIC currently uses a risk-based assessment system for insured depository institutions that takes into
account the risks attributable to different categories and concentrations of assets and liabilities. The FDIC recently
has proposed changes (o its assessment system that are designed to require premium payments by a greater number
of banks and other FDIC-insured depository institutions and that also would provide rebates to some institutions. If
any of these changes were to take effect, the assessment obligations of the Banks could change. )

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act ( “Gramm-Leach-Bliley”)

Gramm-Leach-Bliley, which became effective in 2000, permits bank holding companies to become
financial holding companies and thereby affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and engage in
other activities that are financial in nature. A bank holding company may become a financial holding company
by filing a declaration if each of its subsidiary banks is well capitalized under the FDICIA prompt corrective
action provisions, is well managed and has at least a satisfactory rating under the CRA. No regulatory approval
will be required for a financial holding company to acquire a company, other than a bank or savings association,
engaged in activities that are financial in nature or incidental to activities that are financial in nature, as
determined by the Federal Reserve. At this time, Alabama National has not registered to become a financial
holding company.
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Gramm-beach Bliley broadly defines “financial in nature” to include securitics underwntmg,.deahng and
market makmg, sponsoring mutual funds and investment companies; insurance underwriting and agency; merchant
banking; and aclwmeq that the Federal Reserve has determined to be closely related to banking. Gramm Leach-
Bliley also penmm the Federal Reserve, in consultation with the Department of the Treasury, to determme that other
activities are “tman(:lal in nature” and are therefore permissible for financial holding companies. A nauonal bank
also may engag,e subject to limitations on investment, in activities that are financial in nature (other [han insurance
underwmmg insurance company portfolio investment, merchant banking, real estate development and real estate
investment) thr'ough a financial subsidiary of the bank, if the bank is well capitalized, well managed and has at least
a satisfactory CRA rating.. Subsidiary banks of a financial holding company or national banks with financial
subsidiaries must continue to be well capitalized and well managed in order to continue to engage in activities that
are financial in nature without regulatory actions or restrictions, which could include divestiture ofithe financial
subsidiary or s'ubsndlanes In addition, a financial holding company or a bank may not acquire a company that is
engaged in activities that are financial in nature unless each of the subsidiary banks of the financial holding
company or the bank at issue has-a CRA rating of satisfactory or better. Bank holding companies that have not
become fmanc:a] holding companies are prohibited from engaging in activities other than banking or managing or
controlling banks or other perrmssuble subsidiaries and from acquiring or retaining direct or indirect control of any
company cngaocd in any activities other than those activities determined by the Federal Reserve o be 50 closely
related to banklmg or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. ' :

Gramm- Leach Bliley preserves the role of the Federal Reserve as the umbrella bl.lpeerSOII’ for holding
companies while at the same time incorporating a system of functional regulation designed 1o take advantage of
the strengths of the various federal and state regulators. In particular, Gramm-Leach-Bliley replaces_ the broad
exemption fram Securities and Exchange Commission regulation that banks previously enjoyed with more
limited exemptions, and it reaffirms that states are the regulators for the insurance activities of all persons,
including fede'rally-chartered banks. '

Gramm- L!each Bliley also establishes a minimum federal standard of financial privacy. Inageneral the
applicable regulauons issued by the various federal regulatory agencies prohibit affected ﬂnan(:lal institutions
(including bankq insurance agencies and broker/dealers} from sharing information about their customers with
non-affiliated third parties unless (i) the financial institution has first provided a privacy notice to the customer;
(ii) the ﬁnancm] institution has given the customer an opportunity to opt out of the disclosure; and (iii) the
customer has not opted out after being given a reasonable opportunity to do so.

USA PamotAc! :'
On October 26, 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 {“USA Patriot Act”) was signed into law. The USA Patriot Act
broadened lh(‘ application of anti-money laundering regulations to apply to additional lypes "of financial
institutions, stich as broker-dealers, and strengthened the ability of the U.S. government to detect and prosecute
international money laundering and the financing of terrorism. The principal provisions of Title I1I of the USA
Patriot Act reqmre that regulated financial institutions: (i) establish an anti-money laundering program that
includes training and audit components; (ii) comply with regulations regardmg the verification of the identity of
any person secking to open an account; (jii) take additional requtred precautions with non- U.S. owned accounts;
and (iv) perform certain verification and certification of money laundering risk for their foreign correspondent
banking relatllonshlps The USA Patriot Act also expanded the conditions under which funds in a U.S. interbank
account may] be subject to forfeiture and increased the penalties for violation of anti-money laundering
regulations. Failure of a financial institution to comply with the USA Patriot Act’s requnrements could have
serious legal and reputational consequences for the institution.

Other

As a registered broker-dealer and investment advisor, NBC Securities is subject to regulation by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the National Association of Securitics Dealers, Inc. and other self-
| . . . ' . e
regulatory organizations, which may affect its manner of operation and profitability. g
I

3
!
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ANB Insurance Services, Inc., a subsidiary of First American Bank, is subject to regulation in the various
states and jurisdictions in which it transacts business. -

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of Alabama National serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Set forth below
are the current executive officers of Alabama National and a brief explanation of their pnnupal employmem
during the last five (5) years.

John H. Holcomb, 1Il—Age 55—Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Holcomb has served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Alabama National since 1996. Mr. Holcomb served as Chief Executive
Officer of National Bark of Commerce of Birmingham (“NBC”) from 1990 to 2005. Effective 2005,
Mr. Holcomb began serving as Chairman of the Board of First American Bank. '

Dan M. David—Age 61—Vice Chairman. Mr. David has served as Vice Chairman of Alabama National
since 1997 when First American Bancorp merged with and into Alabama National. Mr. David also serves as Vice
Chairman of First American Bank, a position he has held since 2005. From 1995 to 2005, Mr. David served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of First American Bank. Mr. David served as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of First American Bancorp from 1995 through 1997,

Richard Murray, IV—Age 44—President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Murray has served as
President and Chief Operating Officer of Alabama National since 2000. Prior to such time, Mr. Murray served as
Executive Vice President of Alabama National beginning in 1998, Mr. Murray also serves as Vice Chairman of
First American Bank, a position he has held since 2005. Mr. Murray served as Executive Vice President of NBC
from 1997 1o 2005.

William E. Matthews, V—Age 42—Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Matthews
has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Alabama National since 1998.
Mr. Matthews also serves as Executive .Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First American Bank,
positions he has held since 2005, Mr. Matthews served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of NBC from 1998 to 2005. Prior to that date, Mr. Matthews served as Senior Vice Pres:dent of NBC beginning
in 1996.

John R, Bragg—Age 45—Executive Vice President. Mr. Bragg has served as Executive Vice President of
Alabama National since 1998. Mr. Bragg also serves as Execulive Vice President of First American Bank, a
position he has held since 2005. Mr. Bragg served as Executive Vice President of NBC from 1997 to 2005.
Mr. Bragg served as Senior Vice President of NBC from 1992 until 1997.

James R. Thompson, III—Age 47—First American Bank’s Presidemt and Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Thompson has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of First American Bank, the largest
subsidiary of Alabama National, since 2005. Prior to that date, Mr. Thompson served as President and Chief
Operating Officer of First American Bank beginning in 1594,

Shelly S. Williams—Age 44—Senior Vice President and Controller. Ms. Williams has served as Senior
Vice President and Centroller of Alabama National since 2000. Ms. Williams also serves as Senior Vice
President and Chief Accounting Officer of First American Bank, positions she has held since 2005, Ms. Williams
served as Senior Vice President and Controller of NBC from 2000 to 2005, Ms. Williams served as Vice
President and Controller of NBC from 1997 through 2000, and as Assistant Vice President and Assistant
Controller of NBC from 1996 to 1997.

William R. Ireland, Jr.—Age 49—Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Management Officer.
Mr. Ireland has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Management Officer of Alabama National
and Executive Vice President of First American Bank since 2005. Mr. Ireland also serves as Loan Review and
Compliance Officer of First American Bank, a position he has held since 1990. Mr. Ireland served as-Senior Vlce
President of Alabama National from 1993 through 2005. :
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Company Web:site ; ' ‘

Alabama National’s website address is www.alabamanational.com. The information centained on our
website is not it!:corpora[ed by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K and should not be considered part
of this report. 'Alabama National makes available fre¢ of charge through its website its Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Qu‘lanerly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports
as soon as reasonably practicable after such material has been filed with or furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Comimission. : : '
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Making or continuing an invesrment in securities issued by Alabama National, including our common stock,
involves certain risks that you should carefully consider. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the
only risks that may have a material adverse effect on Alubama National. Additional risks and uncertainties also
could adversely affect our business and our results. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business,
Jinancial condition or results of operations could be negatively affected, the market price for your securities
could decline, and you could lose all or a part of vour investment. Further, to the extent that any of the
information contained in this Annual Report constitutes forward-looking statements, the risk factors set forth
below also are cautionary statements identifving important fuctors that could cause Alabama National's actual
results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of
Alabama National. ’

We may not be able to maintain our historical growth rate, which may adversely affect our results of
aperations and financial condition.

We have grown substantially in the past several years from approximately $2.03 billion in total assets at
December 31, 1999 (as restated for a 2001 pooling-of-interests transaction) to approximately $7.67 billion in
total assets at December 31, 2006. This growth has been achieved through a combination of internal growth and
acquisitions. Our future profitability will depend in part on our continued ability to grow. We may not be able to
sustain our historical rate of growth or may not be able to grow our business at all in the future. We may also not
be able to obtain the financing necessary to fund additional growth and may not be able to find suitable
candidates for additional acquisitions in the future. Various factors, such as economic conditions, regulatory and
legislative considerations and competition, may impede or prohibit our ability to acquire additional bank
subsidiaries or open or acquire new branch offices.

We may need to raise additional capital in the future, but that capital may not be available when it is needed
or on favorable terms.

We are required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support
our operations. We anticipate that our capital resources will satisfy our capital requirements for the immediate
future. We may, however, need to raise additionai capital to support our continued growth or for other capital
needs. Our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend on conditions in the capital markets at that
time, which are outside our contrel, and on our financial performance. Accordingly, we cannot assure you of our
ability to raise additional capital, if needed, on terms acceptable to us or at all. If we cannot raise additional
capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth and acquisitions could
be materially impaired.

Our directors and executive officers own a significant portion of our common stock.

Our directors and executive officers, as a group, beneficially owned approximately 17.6% of our common
stock outstanding as of February 26, 2007. As a result of their beneficial ownership, directors and executive
officers will have the ability, by voting their shares in concert, to significantly influence the outcome of all
matters submitied to our stockholders for approval, including the election of directors.

We make and hold in our loan portfolio a significant number of construction loans, which may pose more
credit risk than other types of real estate loans.

We offer residential and commercial construction programs for builders and developers, which constituted
34.8% of our loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006. Builder construction loans are considered more risky than
other types of real estate loans. While we believe we have established adequate reserves to cover the credit risk
associated with our construction loan portfolio, there can be no assurance that losses will not exceed our reserves,
which could adversely affect our earnings.
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Competition in'the banking indusiry is intense, :

Competiti«'m in the banking and financial services industry is intense. In their primary market areas, our
subsidiary bankq compete with other commercial ‘banks, savings and loan associations, credit umon‘; finance
companies, insurance companies, brokerage and investment banking firms and other financial intermediaries that
offer similar scrvices, operating locally and elsewhere. Many of these competitors have substantially greater
resources and lending limits than our subsidiary banks and may offer certain services that our subsidiary banks
do not or cannc'at provide. Additionally, some of our non-bank competitors are not subject to the same regulations
that govern Alabama National or the Banks and may have greater flexibility in competing for business. Qur
profitability depends upon the subsidiary banks’ continued ability to compete effectively in their market areas.

We operate in a heavily regulated environment. ' ‘

+

The banki:ng industry is heavily regulated under both federal and state law. We are subject, in certain
respects, to regulation by the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, the Office of
the Comptrolle'r of the Currency, the Alabama State Banking Department, the Florida Department:of Financial
Services and l]le Georgia State Banking Department. Our success depends not only on competitive factors but
also on state and federal regulations affecting banks and bank holding companies. The regulations are primarily
intended to prolccl depositors, not stockholders. The ultimate effect of recent and proposed chdnges to the
regulation of the financial institution industry cannot be predicted. Regulations now affecting us may;be modified
at any time, and there is no assurance that such modifications, if any, will not adversely affect our business.

¥
ot

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities and other government action could adversely affect our
profitability.

Our results of operations are affected by credit policies of monetary authorities, particularly the Federal
Reserve. The instruments of monetary policy employed by the Federal Reserve include open market operations
in United States government securities, changes in the discount rate or the federal funds rate on bank borrowings
and changes ih reserve requirements against bank deposits. In view of changing conditions in!the national
economy and i ln the money markets, particularly in light of the continuing threat of terrorist acts and the current
military operauons in the Middle East, no prediction can be made as to possible future changes in interest raies,
deposit levels,/loan demand or the business and earnings of Alabama National. Furthermore, the actions of the
United Stateslgovemment and other governments in responding to such terrorist attacks and the military
operations in the Middle East may result in currency fluctuations, exchange controls, market dlsmptlon and other
adverse effects.

1

o

! : L
QOur success depends upon local economic conditions. )

Our success depends to a certain extent on the general economic conditions of the gcographlc markets
served by our al]bSldlﬂl’y banks in the states of Alabama, Georgia and Florida. The local economic conditions in
these areas ha'j'e a significant impact on the subsidiary banks’ commercial, real estate and construction loans, the
ability of borrowers to repay these loans and the value of the collateral securing these loans. Adverse changes in
the economic conditions of the Southeastern United States in general or any one or more of these local markets
could negatiw‘:]y impact the financial results of our banking operations and have a negative effect on our
profitability. - '

A decrease in the market Jor real estate could harm our revenues and profitability.

A signiﬁ(l:am percentage of our assets is secured by residential and commercial real estate mortgages. Our
financial results may be adversely affected by changes in prevailing economic conditions, particularly decreases
in real estate valuee Decreases in real estate values could adversely affect the value of property used as collateral
for our loans and investments. If poor economic conditions result in decreased demand for real estate loans, our
profits may decrease because our alternative investments may earn less income than real estate loans.
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We cannot guarantee that we will pay dividends to stockholders in the future.

Our principal business operations are conducted through our subsidiary banks. Cash available to pay
dividends 10 our stockholders is derived primarily, if not entirely, from dividends paid by the subsidiary banks.
The ability of the subsidiary banks to pay dividends, as well as our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders,
will continue to be subject to and limited by the results of operations.of the subsidiary banks and by certain legal
and regulatory restrictions. Further, any lenders making loans to us may impose financial covenants that may be
more restrictive than regulatory requirements with respect to our payment of dividends to stockholders. There
can be no assurance of whether or when we may pay dividends to our stockholders,

Changes in the allowances for’loan and lease losses of our subsidiary banks could affect our i)mﬁmbﬂi{v.

Management of each of our subsidiary banks maintains an allowance for loan and lease losses based upon,
among other things, (1) historical experience, (2) an evaluation of local and national economic conditions,
(3) regular reviews of delinquencies and loan portfolio quality, (4) current trends regarding the volume and
severity of past due and problem loans, (5) the existence and effect of concentrations of credit, (6) growth rates in
the loan portfolio and (7) results of regulatory examinations. Based upon such factors, management ‘makes
various assumptions and judgments about the ultimate collectibility of the respective loan portfolios. Although
we believe that the allowance for loan and lease losses at each of the subsidiary banks is adequate, there can be
no assurance that such allowances will prove sufficient to cover future losses. Future adjustments may be
necessary if economic conditions differ or adverse developments arise with respect to nonperforming .or
performing loans. Material additions to the allowance for loan and lease losses would result in a material
decrease in our net income, and possibly our capital, and could result in the inability to pay dividends, among
other adverse consequences. ’

Changes in interest rates could have an adverse effect on our income.

Our profitability depends to a significant extent upon our net interest income. Net interest income is the
difference between interest income on interest-eaming assets, such as loans and investments, and interest expense
on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Our net interest income will be adversely affected if
market interest rates change such that the interest we pay on deposits and borrowings increases faster than the
interest earned on loans and investments. Changes in interest rates could also adversely affect the income of certain
of our non-interest income businesses. For example, if mortgage interest rates increase, the demand for residential
mortgage loans will likely decrease, and this would have an adverse effect on our gain on the sale of mortgages. k

The performance of our investment portfolio is subject to fluctuations due to changes in interest rates and
market conditions.

Changes in interest rates can negatively affect the performance of most of our investments. Interest rate
volatility can reduce unrealized gains or create unrealized tosses in our portfolios. Interest rates are highly
sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary policies, domestic and international economic and
political conditions and other factors beyoend our control. Fluctuations in interest rates affect our returns on, and
the market value of, our investment securities.

The fair market value of the securities in our portfolio and the investment income from these securities also
fluctuate depending on general economic and market conditions. In addition, actual net investment income and/or
cash flows from investments that carry prepaymerit risk, such as mortgage-backed and other asset-backed
securities, may differ from those anticipated at the time of investment as a result of interest rate fluctuations.

Future acquisitions may disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value and adversely affect our operating results.

We may grow by acquiring banks or branches of other banks that we believe provide a strategic fit with our
business. To the extent that.we grow through acquisitions, we cannot assure you that we will be able 1o
adequately or profitably manage this growth. Acquiring other banks or branches involves risks commonly
associated with acquisitions, including:

* potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of acquired banks;
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*  exposure to potential asset quality issues of acquired banks; . . : 5

. difﬁcu];ty and expense of integrating the operations and personnel of acquired banks;

- . .
* potential disruption to our business;
* possible loss of key employees and customers of acquired banks;
. . . ‘
. potenua,ll short-term decrease in profitability; and i

» potential diversion of our management’s time and attention.

We contmually'encoumer technological change, and we may have fewer resources than our competition to
continue to invest in technological improvements. »

The banknllg and financial services industry is undergoing rapid technological changes, with frequent
introductions of new technology-driven products and services. In addition to better serving customers, the
effective use of technology increases efficiency and enables financial institutions to reduce costs.” Our future
success will debend, in part, upon our ability to address the needs of our customers by using technology to
provide products and services that enhance customer convenience, as well as create additional efficiencies in our
operations. Many of our competitors have greater resources (o invest in technological improvements, and we may
not be able to cffectwely implement new technology-driven products and services, which could reduce our
ability to effecnvely compete. : ,5

1

1
Hurricanes- cauld cause a disruption in our operations which could have an adverse impact on the results of

operations. |

A signifi caim portion of our operations are located in the areas bordering the Gulf of Mexico, a region that is
susceptible to humcanes Such weather events can cause disruption to our operations and could have a material
adverse effect an our overall results of operations. We maintain hurricane insurance including coverage for lost
profits and extrf.x expense. However, there is no insurance against the loss of market share that a catastrophic
hurricane could produce. Further, a hurricane in any of our market areas could adversely impact the ability-of
borrowers to tmllely repay their loans and may adversely impact the value of any collateral held by us!

'

! o
Substantial sah's of our common stock could cause our stock price to fall. .'

If we or our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public markel the market
price of our COI"I'IITIO[] stock could fall. Such sales also might make it more difficult for us to raise capllal through
the sale of common stock or use our common stock as currency in future acquisitions. .

| | ~ | .
Certain state and federal laws and certain provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may deter
potential acqui}ars and may depress our stock price.

Certain provisions of state and federal law, our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws might have the
effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from attempting to
acquire, control of us. Under federal law, subject to certain exemptions, a person, entity, or group must notify the
federal bankin;i; agencies before acquiring 10% or more of the cutstanding voting stock of a bank holding
company, including our shares. Banking agencies review the acquisition to determine if it will result in a change
of control. Thé banking agencies have 60 days to act on the notice, and take into account several factors,
including the re'sourceq of the acquiror and the antitrust effects of the acquisition. There also are provisions in our
certificate of i mcorporatlon and bylaws that may be used to delay or block a takeover attempt. As a result, these
statutory provisions and provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have anti-takeover effects
and may delay.!defer or prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt that a shareholder might consider to be in such
shareholder’s b!est interest, including those attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the
shares held by :i;hareholders and may make removal of management more difficult.

1
!
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Securities issued by Alabama National, including our common stock, are not insured deposits.

Securities issued by Alabama National, including our common stock, are not savings or deposit accounts or
other obligations of any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, the Bank Insurance Fund, or any other
governmental agency or instrumentality, or any private insurer, and are subject l{) investment risk, including the
possible loss of principal. .

We may issue additional securities, which could result in dilution of your ownership.

We may determine from time to time to issue additional securities to raise additional capital or finance
acquisitions or upon the exercise or conversion of outstanding options. These issuances of our securities will
dilute the ownership interests of our stockholders.

ITEM 1B. UNilESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

‘None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Alabama National, through the Banks, currently operates 102 banking offices, 6 loan/mortgage origination
offices, 5 operations offices and two insurance offices. Of these offices, Alabama National, through the Banks,
owns 78 banking offices without encumbrance and leasés an additional 24 banking offices and its 6 loan/
mortgage origination offices. Of its 5 operations offices, 3 are owned without encumbrance and 2 are leased.
ANB Insurance Services, Inc. owns one of its offices without encumbrance, and leases its other office. Alabama
National, through First American Bank, leases its principal administrative offices, which are located at 1927 First
Avenue’North, Birmingham, Alabama. See Notes 7 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Alabama
National and Subsidiaries inciuded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning at page F-1 for additional
information regarding Alabama National’s premises and equipment.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Alabama National, in the normal course of business, is subject to various pending and threatened litigation.
Although it is not possible to determine at this point in lime, based on consultation with legal counsel,
management does not anticipate that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from such htlganon will have a
material effect on Alabama National's financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY-HOLDERS

None.
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? PART II o ' :

ITEM 5. MA RKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MA'] TERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

At Februarv 26, 2007 Alabama National had approximately 2,728 stockholders of record (including shares
held in “street” names by nominees who are record holders) and 20,589,849 shares of common stock outstanding.
Alabama Natlonal s common stock i3 listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the ‘symbol “ALAB ?

- 'l
The fo]lowmg table sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices per share for
Alabama National's common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, and the cash dividends declared per
share in each such quarter:

Dividends

Declared
High Low °  Per Share
200 - ' -
First Quarter ......... e P $65.59  $59.61  $0.3375
Second QUATET ... ..ot e e e 6644 5551 03375
Third QUarter ... 7049 6226 03375
Fourth Quarter ............................................ 68.00 59.35 0.3375
2006 _ | 7 )
FirstQuarter ............ ... ., e $70.26  $64.55  $ 0.375
Second QUAMET - ...\ttt 70.80 6478 . 0375
Third Quarter ..... e e e 70.09 65.48 0.375
CFourthQuarter ...t 7000  65.70 0375

Dividends ‘are paid at the discretion of Alabama National’s Board of Directors, based on Alabama
National’s operating performance and financial position, including earnings, capital and liquidity. Dividends
from the sub51dlary Banks are Alabama National’s primary source of funds for the payment of dwndends 1o its
stockholders, and there are various legal and regulatory limits on the extent to which the submd:ary ‘Banks may
pay dividends or otherwise supply funds to Alabama National. In addition, federal and state regulatory agencies
have the aulhonty to prevent Alabama National from paying a dividend 1o its stockholders. Thus, while Alabama
National intends to continue paying dividends, it can make no assurances that it will be able to or be permitted to
_ do so in the future. i

The last reported sales price of Alabama National’s common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select
Market on Febriary 26, 2007 was $73.71. : L
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Amounts in thousands, except ratios and per share data)

Income Statement Data: ) !
Interest income . .................. e
Interestexpense .. ... ... i

Netinterestincome .................oiiiunun,
Provision for loan and lease losses .................

Net interest income after provision for loan and lease
losses ...
Net securities (losses) gains ............oonua...
Noninterest inCOME . ...t nan...
Noninterest eXpense ..........ouviiiniiien e

Income before income taxes ......................
Provision forincome 1axes ...........coinnnan..

Netincome ............... .0 i,

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assels . ... ...t e i
Eamingassets ........ o o oo
SeCUMLIES . ... i e e e e
Loans held for sale ..... e e e
Loans and leases, net of unearned income . ..........
Allowance for loan and lease losses ................
Deposits .............. e e
Short-termdebt . ... ... .. e
Long-termdebt ........ ... ... ... ... oo
Stockholders” equity ........ ... ... ... o

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding—Diluted . ..

Per Common Share Data: -

Net income—diluted . ....... D S
Book value (periodend) ....... ... ... ... . .....
Tangible book value (periodend) (4) ...............
Dividends declared ......... e [N
Dividend payout ratio—diluted . ...................

Performance Ratios:

Return on average assets .. .....oovvvevvnanns DU
Returnonaverageequity .. .............covv.n e
Netinterest margin (1) ............... . ... cuv...
Net interest margin (taxable equivalent) {1} ..........

Asset Quality Ratios:
Allowance for loan and lease losses to period end
loans (2) ... oo e e
Allowance for loan and lease losses to period end
nonperforming loans (3) ........... ... ... ...,
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases (2} .......
Nonperforming assets to period end loans and leases
and foreclosed property (2)(3) . ..................

Capital and Liquidity Ratios:
Average equity to average assets . . .. ...............
Leverage (4.00% required minimum) . ..............
Risk-based capital
Tier 1 (4.00% required minimum) .............
Total (8.00% required minimum) .............,
Average loans and leases to average deposits . .... ...,

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
$ 433,667 ©$ 309260 $ 229,186 $- 178,631 $ 178,147
199,559 109,413 65,934 57,668 65,313
234,108 199,847 163252 120963 112834
5393 - 7615 4949 5.93] 7.956
228,715 192,232 158,303 115.032 104,878
{1,250) 72 — 46 35
79,540 71.651 72,785 78.258 61,129
185,194 162,480 148,322 131.892 113,605
121,811 - 101475 82,766 61.444 52,437
41,995 34,802 28,122 20,398 16,735

$ 79816 $ 66673 $ 54644 S 41046 $ 35702
$7.671.274  $5.931.673 $5315869 $3.820,112 $3,316,168
6.856,309 5385824 4,841,255 3512744 3,034,980
1265774 1136487 1,200,407 810,227 700,333
27,652 14,940 22313 16415 * 51,030
5456,136  4.144005 3495701 2,659,440 2,191,394
68,246 52.815 46,584 36,562 32,704
5567603 4343264 3934723 2,753,749 2.330,395
161,830 34,700 30.500 41,150 152,100
402,399 369,246 393,688 332393 240,065
853,623 - 571.879 529,543 279418 - 234,492
19,147 17,445 16,100 12,957 12,683

$ 4.17 § 382 § 339§ 317§ 281
1 4151 33.40 31.15 21.76 18.95
2541 24.20 21.99 18.99 17.28
1.50 1.35 1.25 1.14 1.00
35.97% 35.34% 36.87% 35.96% 35.59%
LIS%.  LI18% 1.13% 1.14% 1.18%
1136 12.11 1245 15.89 16.01

3.84 3.90 3.71 3.65 4.07
3.88 393 3.74 3.68 411

1.25% 1.27% 1.33% 1.37% 1.49%

624.91 819.35 575.75 37244 318.07
0.02 0.04 0.06 0.13 0.18

0.21 0.17 0.28 0.40 0.59
10.40% 9.76% 9.29% 1.17% 7.36%

7.95 8.29 8.44 1.73 752
9.82 10.89 11.49 10.47 10.00

10.98 12.10 1274 11.73 11.26
99.78 9441 92.30 94.38 96.44



(1) Net interest 1Inc0me divided by average earning assets.

(2) Does not mclude loans held for sale,

3 Nonpcrformmg loans and nonperforming assets include loans past due 90 days or more that are still accruing interest. It
is Alabama Nauonal s policy to place all loans on nonaccrual status when over ninety days past due. ]

(4) “Tangible book value per share”, a financial measure determined other than in accordance with genérally accepted -
accounting pnnmplcs is computed by dividing tangible book value by the total number of common shares outstanding.
“Tangible book value” equals book value less goodwill and other intangible assets. Management believes that this
measure is useful because it provides book value exclusive of goodwill and other intangible assets and because it is a
measure used by many investors as part of their analysis of Alabama National. The following tab]c sets forth a
reconcnlmuon of book value per share to tangible book value per sharc

E Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 . 2002

Book valuel(stockhnlderq EQUILY) .. $ 853,623 $ 571,879 $529.543 $279.418 $234,492
Deduct: goodwﬂl and other intangible assets . ....... (331,118) (157.429) (155.682) (35.587) i{20,622)
Tangible book valie .. ... ... 522,505 414450 373,861 243,831 213.870
Book valuelper commonshare ................... 41.51 33.40 31.15 2176 1895
.Effect of goodW111 and intangible assets per share . ... (16.10) {9.20) 9.16) . (2.7 (.67
Tanglble b(EIOk value per common share .. ........ .. $§ 2541 % 2420 % 2199 § 1899 $(; 17.28

ITEM 7. MA:NAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS . 4

Management’s Discussion and Analysis contains forward-looking siatements that involve inherént risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements. For
additional inf(:)rmalion regarding forward-looking statements, see the section titled “SPECIAL NOTE
REGARDING IFORWARD—LOOKING STATEMENTS” on page | of this Annual Report. ‘

Basis of Preseﬁtation

i

The folloxlvmg is a discussion and analysis of the consolidated financial condition of Alabama National and
results of operanom as of the dates and for the periods indicated. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated. The accounting and reporting policies of Alabama National conform with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted States of America and with general ﬁnancml service
industry practices. I

The historical consolidated financial statements of Alabama National and the “FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY
OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA” are derived from the historical’ Consolidated Financial Statements of
Alabama Nahc’nna] which are included in this Annual Report beginning on page F-1. This dl‘iCUG‘ilOl‘l should be
read in CO]’I_]UI'I"[]OI‘I with those Consolidated Financial Statements and selected consolidated ﬁnancm] dala and
the other ﬂnam,ta] information included in this Annual Report.

I
Many of the comparisons of financial data from period to peried presented in the following discussion have
been rounded tfrom actual values reported in the financial statements. The percentage changes presented herein
are based on a comparison of the actual values recorded in the financial statements, not the rounded via]ues.

[
Executive Suni]mary i
¥

The purpose of this section is to provide a bnef summary overview of.2006. Additional detail about the
income slalemcm and balance sheet is provided in the pages following this summary.

i
Income Statement

Alabama National reported $79.8 million in 2006 net income, a 19.7% increase from 2005,;with diluted
earnings per share growing 9.1% from $3.82 in 2005 to $4.17 in 2006. Alabama National has two components of
revenue—net interest income and noninterest income. The primary reasons for increased net income in 2006 are

l _ 3
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the increase in net interest income and the income produced by two additional banks acquired during 2006,
Florida Choice Bank and The Peachtree Bank. Strong loan growth during 2006 generated much of the increased
net interest income, offset slightly by a decrease in the net interest margin.

. Net interest income grew 17.1% to $234.1 million in 2006. The Company experienced a reduction in its net

interest spread and in its net interest margin during 2006 of 0.21% and 0.06%, respectively, Alabama National
experienced some margin compression beginning in the second quarter of 2006, with a flat to inverted yield
curve negatively impacting its lending and investing margin. As short term rates rose without a corresponding
increase in long term rates, the spread between the rate earned on loans, investments, and other earning assets
and the rate paid on deposits and other interest-bearing liabilities contracted. Alabama National’s loan portfolio
{excluding loans held for sale) grew by $1.31 billion, or 31.7%, during 2006. A significant portion of this growth
was attributable to the two banks that the Company acquired during the year. Because loans are typically the
Company’s highest yielding asset, this loan growth aided net interest income growth.

Noninterest income in 2006 increased by $6.6 million, or 9.2%, from 2005 levels. This category of income
includes residential and commercial mortgage banking, wealth management services, investment services,
insurance services, and service charges and other fees associated with traditional retail and commercial banking.
The increase in noninterest income was led by wealth management (increase of $2.7 million, or 14.0%),
commercial mortgage banking income ($1.8 million increase, or 334.5%), bank-owned life insurance ($0.3
million increase, or 25.8%), and insurance commissions ($0.5 million, or 14.0%). The largest increase in
noninterest income was in the “other noninterest income™ category, which includes debit and credit card income,
letter of credit fees, gains on early extinguishment of borrowings, ATM fees and other types of noninterest
income. Areas of declining noninterest income included service charges {down 2.7%, or $0.4 million) and
residential mortgage gains on sale ($1.5 million decrease, or 12.2%]). The wealth management division continues
to experience growth in numbers of customers and client assets, both of which generally lead to increased
revenue. The Company entered the commercial mortgage banking business in Septembér 2005, so the 2006
increase in this area was primarily due to 2006 being the first full year of results for this business. In the other
noninterest income area, credit and debit card income continues to grow from an increase in customers as well as
increased use by existing customers. Residential mortgage activity declined in 2006 from prior year levels due to
a general reduction in residential housing activity in the Company’s markets.

On the expense side, Alabama National’s noninterest expenses grew $22.8 million, or 14.0%, during 2006
as compared with 2005. The largest increase in'noninterest expense was in salaries and employee benefits, which
grew $11.4 million, or 13.3%. Occupancy and equipment expense grew by $3.0 million, or 17.0%. Increases in
both of these areas are partially attributable to the Company’s growth and acquisitions, as new banks and new
locations lead to increased staffing and occupancy expenses. The Company’s performance-based incentive
compensation expense shrank in 2006, somewhat offsetting the increase in salary and employee benefits. Other
operating expenses, which category includes such expenses as advertising, supplies and printing, and
communication expenses, increased $4.2 million, or.10.2%, during 2006 as compared with 2005. Commission-
based compensation expenses increased $2.5 mitlion (16.2%} due to the increase in commission-based revenue,

Balance Sheet

Alabama National’s total assets grew $1.74 billion, or 29.3%, during 2006. This growth was due to a
combination of normal growth in the Company’s subsidiary banks as well as the acquisition of two banks,
Florida Choice Bank and The Peachtree Bank, during 2006. Florida Choice Bank and The Peachtree Bank had
assets of approximately $449.4 million and $578.9 million, respectively, at the time of their acquisition. The
largest asset growth in 2006 was in loans, which grew $1.31 billion, or 31.7%, over 2005 levels. Securities also
grew $130 million, or 11.4%. Deposits grew $1.22 billion (28.2%) during 2006.

Asset Quality

Alabama National reported 2006 net charge-offs of $0.9 million, or (1.02% of average loans and leases, down
from 2005°s $1.4 million (0.04% of average loans and leases). Nonperforming assets at December 31, 2006 were
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$11.7 million (O!ZI% of period end loans and leases and foreclosed property), up from $7.1 million’ (0.17% of
period end loans and leases and foreclosed property) at year end 2005. Potential problem loans increased to $29.6
millton at December 31, 2006 from $24.5 million at December 31, 2005. Alabama National's provision for loan and
lease losses declmed from $7.6 million in 2005 to $5.4 million in 2006. This decrease was due largely to credit
quality measure‘ and the reduced losses during the year. As a result of loan growth, net charge-offs and the
provision for lodn and lease losses, Alabama National’s allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of
period-end 10ans|and leases declmed to 1.25% at December 31, 2006 from 1.27% at December 31, 2005.,

1 '
Selected Bank l;‘inancial Data

Alabama National's success is dependent upon the financial performance of its subsidiary 'banks (the
“Banks"). Alabama National, with input from the management of each Bank, establishes operating goals for each
Bank. The followmg tables summarize selected financial information for 2006 and 2005 for each of the Banks.
Florida Choice Bank was acquired in April 2006, and The Peachtree Bank was acquired in October 2006 Only
the operating aF11v1ty since the date of acguisition of each these acquired banks is included in Alabama
National’s results of operations. -
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates .

Alabama National’s accounting policies are critical to understanding the results of operations and financial
position as reported in the consolidated financial statements. Significant accounting policies utilized by Alabama
National are discussed in more detail in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements set forth beginning on
page F-1 herein.

Some of the more complex technical accounting policies require management to make significant estimates
and judgments that affect the valuation of reported assets and liabilities, including associated revenues, expenses,
and disclosure. The following briefly describes the more complex policies involving a significant amount of
judgments about valuation and the application of complex accounting standards and interpretations.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

.

Alabama National records estimated probable inherent credit losses in the loan and lease portfolios as an
allowance for loan and lease losses. The methodologies and assumptions for determining the adequacy of the
overall allowance for loan and lease losses involve significant judgments to be made by management. Some of
the more critical judgments supporting the amount of Alabama National’s allowance for loan and lease losses
include judgments about: creditworthiness of borrowers, estimated value of underlying collateral, assumptions
about cash flow, determination of loss factors for estimating credit losses, and the impact of current events,
conditions, and other factors impacting the level of probable inherent losses. Under different conditions or using
different assumptions, the actual amount of credit losses ultimately realized by- Alabama National may be
different than management’s estimates provided in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For a more complete discussion of the methodology employed to calculate the allowance for loan and lease
losses, see Note 1 to Alabama National’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report
beginning on page F-1 herein and “Provision and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses” beginning on page
37. ) .

Mergers and Acquisitions

Alabama National’s growth in business and profitability over the past several years has been enhanced
significantly by mergers and acquisitions. Effective July 1, 2001, Alabama National adopted SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” which allows only the use of the purchase method of accounting. For purchase
acquisitions, Alabama National is required to record the assets acquired, including identified intangible assets,
and liabilities assumed at their fair value, which in many instances involves estimates based on third party
valuations, such as appraisals, or internal valuations based on discounted cash flow analyses or other valuation
techniques. The determination of the useful lives of intangible assets is subjective as is the appropriate
amortization period for such intangible assets. These estimates also include the establishment of various accruals
and atlowances based on planned facilities dispositions and employee severance considerations, among other
acquisition-related items. In addition, purchase acquisitions typically result in recording goodwill, which is
subject to ongoing periodic impairment tests based on the fair value of net assets acquired compared to the
carrying value of goodwill.

Income Taxes . ) -

The calcutation of Alabama National’s income tax provision is complex and requires the use of estimates
and judgments in its determination. As part of Alabama National’s overall business strategy, management must
consider tax laws and regulations that apply to the specific facts and circumstances under consideration. This
analysis includes evaluating the amount and timing of the realization of income tax liabilities or benefits.
Management closely monitors tax developments in order to evaluate the effect they may have on Alabama
National's overall tax position.
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1
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits -

Alabama National offers various pension plans and postretitement benefit plans to employees. The
calculation of obligdtions and related expenses under thése plans requires the use of actuarial valuation methods
and assumpuons Actuarial valuations and the determination of future markel values of plan assets are subject to
management Juldgmem and may differ significantly if different assumptions are used. Please refer lo Note 12 to
Alabama National’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report beglnmng on pdg,e F-1 for
dlsclosures related to Alabama National’s benefit plans.

1

* * 1

" Stock-Based Compensation g . :

Alabama National uses a fair value based method of accounting for stock based Compenéalion COSts.
Compensation :I_os[s for stock-based compensation arrangements are measured at the grant date based on the fair
value of the award and are recognized over the related service period. Accounlmg for stock-based compensation
requires the use of an option-pricing model that takes into account the stock price at the grant date, the exercise
price, the expec ted life of the option, the volatility of the underlying stock and the expected dividends on it, and
the risk-free mleresl rate over the expected life of the option. Please refer to Note 13 to Alabama National’s
Consolidated Fmanc1al Statements included in this Annual Report begmnmg on page F-1 for disclosures relaled
to Alabama National’s stock-based compensation awards. |

Results of Operations. : . S
Year ended December 3 1, 2006, compared wuh vear ended December 31, 2005

Alabama Nanonal s net income increased by $13.1 million, or 19.7%, to $79.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from $66.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Net income per diluted share
increased to $4.17 for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared-to $3.82 recorded for the year ended
December 31, i2005 Return on average assets during 2006 and 2005 was 1.18% in each year, and return on
average equny was 11.36% during 2006, compared with 12.11% during 2005. ‘

Net mlcrest income increased $34.3 million, or 17.1%, to $234.1 million in 2006, from $199.8 million in
2005, as 1nle|est income increased by $124.4 million and interest expense increased by $90.1 million.
Contributing to this increase is sirong growth in Alabama National’s earnings assets, particularly loans. During
2006, average 'eaming assets grew $967.3 million, or 18.9%, to $6.09 billion for the year énded December 31,
2006. Avcragellozins and leases experienced the most significant growth during 2006, increasing $941.6 million.
The acquisitions of Florida Choice Bank and The Peachtree Bank contributed significantly to growth in average
loans and eammg assets. The 2006 acquisitions contributed $504.8 million and $452.1 million of the increase in
average earmng assets and average loans and leases, respectively. In addition to.growth through acqumtlom
Alabama National continues to have strong organic growth in loans due to continued strength in many of the
economies in the markets served by Alabama National. In general, loans are Alabama National’s highest yielding
earning asset, ind management continues to emphasize steady loan growth. To support the asset growth, average
interest-bearing liabilities increased $908.5 million, to $5.23 billion in 2006. Acquisitions during 2006 accounted
for $421.0 mill;ion of this increase. All categories of average interest-bearing liabilittes increased during 2006.

v ' R |

Alabama *!National‘s net interest spread and net interest margin-were 3.34% and 3.84%, respectively, in
2006, comparéd to 3.54% and 3.90%, respectively, in 2005, The net interest margin for 2006 was lower due to
the impact of the current interest rate environment. The flattening of the interest rate yield curve {reduction in the
spread between short and long term interest rates) has led to -an increase in the cost of deposits and other
liabilities exceeding the increase in the yield on loans and other earning assets. The yield carmed on loans and
Jeases increascd 116 basis points in 2006 to 7.83%, while rates paid on interest bearing liabilities has increased
by 129 basis [r:oints to 3.82%. In addition to rate increases by the Federal Reserve, general competitive deposit
pricing in the' markets served by Alabama National has increased deposit costs. See “Net Interest Income”
beginning on page 31. . : |

29




Alabama National recorded a provision for loan and lease losses of $5.4 million during 2006, compared to
$7.6 million in 2005. Management believes that both loan loss experience and asset quality indicate that the
allowance for loan losses is maintained at an adequate level, although there can be no assurance that economic
factors will not require future adjustments to the allowance. Alabama National’s allowance for loan and lease
losses as a percentage of period-end toans and leases (excluding loans held for sale) was 1.25% a1 December 31,
2006, compared with 1.27% at December 31, 2005. The allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of
period-end nonperforming assets was 582.75% at December 31, 2006, compared with 747.14% at December 31,
2005. Alabama National experienced net charge-offs of $0.9 million in 2006, equating to a ratio of net charge-
offs to average loans and leases of 0.02%, compared with net charge-offs of $1.4 million in 2005, equating to a
ratio of net charge-offs to average loans and leases of 0.04%. See ““Provision and Allowancé for Loan and
Lease Losses” beginning on page 37. '

Noninterest income, inciuding net securities gains and losses, increased $6.6 million, or 9.2%. to $78.3
million in 2006, compared with $71.7 million in 2005. Total revenue for the investunent services division
increased $81 thousand, or 1.9%, to $4.3 million in 2006, from $4.2 million in 2005. Service charges on deposit
accounts decreased by $0.4 million, or 2.7%, to $15.9 millien in 2006, from $16.3 million in 2003. Total revenue
from the retail mortgage division decreased $1.5 million, or 12.2%, to $11.0 miltion in 2006, from $12.5 million
in 2005. The wealth management division experienced a revenue increase of $2.7 million, or 14.0%, to $21.9
million in 2006, from $19.2 million in 2005. The commissions generated by the insurance division totaled $4.0
million in 2006, compared with $3.5 million recorded in 2005. Earnings on bank owned life insurance totaled
$3.6 million in 2006, compared with $2.9 million in 2005, and other noninterest income increased $4.1 million to
$16.5 million in 2006. Noninterest expense increased $22.7 million, or 14.0%, to $185.2 million in 2006,
compared with $162.5 million during 2005. For a detailed discussion of these income and expense categories, see
“Noninterest Income and Expense” beginning on page 41.

Because of-an increase in pre-tax incorme, income tax expense was $42.0 million for 2006, compared to
$34.8 million for 2005. The effective tax rate for 2006 was 34.5%, compared to 34.3% for 2005. These effective
tax rates are affected by items of income and expense that are not subject to federal or state taxation. The
eftective rate in 2006 is higher than 2005 due to higher pre-tax income wtthout a corresponding increase in
income items not subject to federal or state taxation. :

Year ended December 31, 2005, cmnpareb’ with year ended December 31, 2004

Alabama National’s net income increased by $12.0 million, or 22.0%, to $66.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, from $54.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Net income per diluted share
increased to $3.82 for the year ended December 31, 2005, as compared to $3.39 recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Return on average assets during 2005 was 1,18%, compared with 1.13% during 2004, and
return on average equtly was 12.11% during 2005, compared with 12.15% durmg 2004.

Net interest income increased $36.6 million, or 22.4%, (o $l99 8 million in 2005, from $163.3 million in
2004, as interest income increased $80.1 million and interest expense increased $43.5 million. Contributing to
this increase was strong growth in Alabama National’s earnings assets, particularly loans. During 2005, average
earning assets grew $724.9 million, or 16.5%, to $5.13 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. Average
loans and leases experienced the most significant growth during 2005 increasing $654.0 million. Alabama
National had strong organic growth in loans in 2005 due to continved strength in many of the economies in the
markets served by Alabama National. To support the asset growth, average interest-bearing liabilities increased
$545.6 million, to $4.32" billion in 2005. All categories of average interest-bearing liabilities increased during
2005, excepl for long-term debit. : '

Alabama National’s net interest spread and net interest margin were 3.54% and 3.90%, respectively, in
2005, compared to 3.49% and 3.71%; respectively, in 2004. The net interest margin for 2005 was higher due to
the impact of the recent interest rale increases by the Federal Reserve. These increases increased the vield
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substantially on ‘Alabama National's loans and leases. The yield earned on loans and leases increased 93 basis
points in 2005 to 6.67%. The Federal Reserve rate increases also increased the rate paid on depos'n:s in 2005.
Overall interest cost on interest bearing liabilities increased 78 basis points.to 2.53% in 2005 from 1.75% during
2004. Generally :deposits, and specifically time deposits, did not reprice as quickly as variable rate lo:ins; and led
to an increase in'Alabama National’s net interest margin during 2005. See “Net Interest Income” below. .

Alabama Natlonal recorded a provision for loan and lease losses of $7.6 miilion during 2005, compared to
$4.9 million in 2004, Management believes that both loan loss experience and asset quality indicate that the
allowance for loan losses was maintained at an adequate levels for those periods, although lherefcan be no
assurance that ¢conomic factors will not require future adjustments to the allowance. Algbama National’s
allowance for I0.1n and lease losses as a percentage of period-end loans and leases (excluding loans held for sale)
was 1.27% at Decembcr 31, 2005, compared with 1.33% at December 31, 2004. The allowance for loan and lease
losses as a percentage of period-end nonperforming assets was 747.14% at December 31. 2005, compared with
484.14% at Decémber 31, 2004, Alabama National experienced net charge-offs of $1.4 million in 2003, equating
to a ratio of net charge-offs to average loans and leases of 0.04%, compared with net charge-offs of $1.8 million
in 2004, equali[::g 1o a ratio of net charge-offs to average loans and leases of 0.06%. See “Provision and
Allowance for luoan and Lease Losses™ beginning on page 37,

Nomnlere';ll income, mcludmg net securities gains and losses, decreased $1.1 million, or 1 5% to $71.7
million in 2005 compared ‘with $72.8 million in 2004. Total revenue for the investment services division
decreased $7.4 n]IHIOH or 63.9%, 10 $4.2 million in 2005, from $11.7 million in 2004, Service charges on deposit
accounts decreased by $0.8 million, or 4.6%, to $16.3 million in 2005, from $17.1 million in 2004. Total revenue
from the mortgﬂ'lge division increased $1.0 million, or 8.3%, to $12.5 million in 2005, from $11.6: million in
2004. The securities brokerage and trust division experienced a revenue increase of $2.4 million, or 14.0%, to
$19.2 million in}2005, from $16.9 million in 2004. The commissions generated by the insurance division totaled
$3.5 million in 2005, compared with $3.6 million recorded in 2004. Earnings on bank owned life insurance
totaled $2.9 miljion in 2005, compared with $2.7 million in 2004, and other noninterest income increased $2.9
million to $12.2 million in 2005. Noninterest expense increased $14.2 million, or 9.5%, to $162.5 mitlion in
2005, compared with $148.3 million during 2004. For a detailed discussion of these income and expense
categories, see “Nomnterest Income and Expense” beginning on page 41.

Because Of an increase in pre-lax income, income tax expense was $34.8 million for 2003, compared-to
$28.1 million for 2004. The effective tax rate for 2005 was 34.3%, compared to 34.0% for 2004. The'.jle effective
tax rates are affected by items of income and expense that are not subject to federal or state taxation. The
effective rate in' 2005 was higher than 2004 due to higher pre-tax income without a corresponding increase in
income items not subject to federal or state taxation. i

Net Interest Im ome S

The Eargesl component of Alabama National’s net income is its net interest income—the difference between
the income earned on assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds used to support its assets. Net
interest income |is determined by the yield earned on Alabama National’s earning assets and rates paid on its
interest-bearing liabilities, the relative amounts of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the maturity
‘and repricing characteristics of its earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income divided by
average earning asseis represents Alabama National's net interest margin.
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Average Balances, Income, Expenses and Rates

S

i}

The following table depicts, on a taxable equivalent basis for the periods indicated, certain informatidn
related to Alabama National’s average balance sheet and its average ylelds on assets and average’ costs of
liabilities. Such yields or costs are derived by dividing income or expense by the average dzuly balances of the

associated assets or liabilities.

AVERAGE BALANCES, INCOME AND EXPENSES AND RATES

(Amounts in thousands, except yields and rates)

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 ° 2004
Average Income/ Yield! Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance  Expense Rate Balance ~ Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
ASSETS: '
Earning assets: ' '
Loans and leases (1M2}¥3) ......... $4.819,534  $377,279 - 7.83% $3,877.979. $258.575 6.67% $3,223,989 3184935 5.74%
Securities: i
Taxable ...................... 1,103,913 49,083 445 1,103,820 45904 416 1,049,274 41468 3.95
Taxexempt(2) ................ 86,033 5503 6.40 52,357 3402 650 52,717 3,247 6.16
Cash balances in other banks ....... 15,033 723- 4.81 8,794 274 3.2 6,225, 65 1.04
Fundssold . ..................... , 68,766 3499  5.09 83,602 2,783 333 68,651 , 991 144
Trading account securities ......... 1,058 50 473 477 21 440 1,244 55 442
Total earning assets (2) - . .- . . 6,094,337 436,37 7.6  5127,029 310959 607 4402100 230,761 5.24
Cash and due from banks ............ 180,812 ' 169,624 ' 143,433
Premises and equipment ............. 134,730 105,734 © 90,388
Otherassets .. _...............c... 400,823 288,879 246,108
Allowance forloan losses ............ . (60,724) ~ (49,661) (43,535)
Totalassets .............u. $6,749,978 35,641,605 $4,838.494
LIABILITIES: ’
Interest-bearing liabilities: o
Interest-bearing transaction ) : . . . B )
ACCOUMLS .. ovvvnrvnnennnannny 31,112,263 $ 29800 268% $ 910956 §$ 13932 153% § 722,774 $& 5738 0.79%
Savings and money market ' ‘
deposits ... 974,001 27,641 284 899,980 14,360  1.60 771,993 7,234 094
Time deposits ................... 1,996,283 86,584 434 1,585,741 49,195 3.10 1,434,798 33,376 2.33
Funds purchased ................. 649,007 29,856 4.60 515,225 15,515 3.01 402,991 5345 1.33
Other short-term borrowings ....... 107,760 5737 532 - 67,940 2,614 385 53,027 1,027 194
Long-termdebt .. .....;.......... 386,856 19941 515 337,780 13,797  4.08 386,477 13,214 342
' Total interest-bearing ’ ' ’ '
liabilities . .............. 5,226,170 199,559 3.82 4317622 109413 253 3,772,060 65934 . 1.75°
Demanddeposits . .................. 747,662 710,774 563,349
Accrued interest and other liabilities . .. 73,833 62,715 53,502
Stockholders’ equity . ..., .00 702,313 550,494 449,583
Total liabilities and .
stockholders’ equity ...... 56,749,978 $5,641,603 $4,838 494
Net interestspread ................. 3.34% 354% 3.49%
Net interest income/margin on a taxable . o _ . o
equivalentbasis . ................. $_236,578 3.88% $201,546  3.93% $5164,827  3.74%
Tax equivalent adjustment (2} ........ - 2470 . 1,699 o 1,575
Net interest income/margin . . ......... $234,108 3.84% $199.847 3.90% $163,252 3.71%

(N
@)

Average loans include nonaccrual loans. All loans and deposits are domestic.
Tax equivalent adjustments are based on the assumed rate of 34%, and do not give effect to the disallowance

for federal income tax purposes of interest expense related to certain tax-exempt assets.

(3
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Fees in the amount of $11.5 million, $9.8 million and $7.6 million are included in interest and fees on loans
for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.




During 20;06, Alabama National experienced an increase in net interest income of $34.3 million, or 17.1%,
to $234] million, compared with $199.8 million in 2005. Net interest income increased primarily due to an
increase in the volume of average earning assets outstanding. The primary reasons for the growth in earning
assets is a{trlbl;llﬂble to organic loan growth generaled by Alabama National and loans acquired in the two bank
acquisitions completed in 2006. Average earnings assets increased by $967 3 million during 2006. Acquisitions
in 2006 conlrlbuted $504.8 million of the 2006 increase in average earning assets and $24.9 million of the
increase in nel interest income. Due to the growth in earning assets, Alabama National’s net mleresl income
increased in 2006 despite a reduction in its net interest margin during 2006. The net interest margin for 2006 was
3.84% compared to 3.90% during 2005, a decrease of 6 basis points. The 2006 average taxable equivalent yield
earned of eamlng assets was 7.16% compared with 6.07% for 2005, The increased yield and volume lead to an
increase in tol'll interest income of $125.2 million, or 40.3%, to $436.1 million in 2006. The rate pald on interest
bearing llabllmes increased by 129 basis points to 3.82% for 2006. The rate paid on all categories of interest
bearing habillues increased significantly during 2006. The increase in rate paid on interest bearing liabilities
contributed to the spread compression experienced by Alabama National during 2006 versus 2005. Time deposnts
that were ongmated in lower interest rale environments repriced at higher current rates. Also, to remain
competitive, Alabama National has increased rates on interest-bearing transaction accounts and savings deposits
due to compeutwe market conditions and past rate increases by the Federal Reserve. Also, as deposits have
become more difficult to attract to support asset growth, Alabama National has increasingly relied on wholesale
funding such as FHLB advances that are generally more expensive than traditional deposit accounts.

\ ! !
. . h 4
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Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

The following table sets forth, on a taxable equivalent basis, the effect which varying levels of earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the applicable rates had on changes in net interést income for 2006
versus 2005, and 2005 versus 2004. For purposes of this table, changes that are not solely attributable to volume
or rate are allocated to volume and rate on a pto rata basis.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,

2006 Compared to 2005 2005 Compared to 2004
Variance Due to - Variance Due to

Volume  Yield/Rate Total Volume  Yield/Rate Total
Earning assets: ) ) _'
Loansandleases ........................ $69,144 $49.559 $118,703 $40940 $32,700 $73,640
Securities: ' . _ )
Taxable ... : 4 3175 3179 2,193 2243 4436
Taxexémpt...................:.... 12,155 (53) 2,102 (22) 177 155
Cash balances inotherbanks .............. . 254 195 ; 449 36 173 209
Fundssold ............................ (559) 1,275 716 255 1,537 1,792
Trading account securities .. .............. 27 2 29 (34) — (34)
Total interest income ............ 71,025 54,153 125,178 43369 36,829 80,198
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing transaction accounts . ... .. .. 3,605 12,263 15,868 t,782 6.412 8,194
Savings and money market deposits . ..... .. 1,269 12,012 13,281 1,361 5,765 7.126
Timedeposits . ... ... ... ... ... .. 14,734 22,655 37,389 3,820 11,999 15,819
Funds purchased . . . .. e 4,730 9611 14,341 1,837 8,333 10,170
Other short-term borrowings .............. 1,887 1,236 3,123 353 1,234 1,587
Long-termdebt ......................... 2,192 3,952 6,144  (1,785) 2,368 583
Total interest expense .. .......... 28,417 61,729 90,146 7.367 36,112 43,479
Net interest income on a taxable
equivalent basis .............. $42,608 $(7,576) 35032 $36,002 $ 717 36,719
Taxable equivalent adjustment . ............ a7 (124)
NeLinlerest INCOME ... ... v ninrnrns $ 34,261 $36,595

Interest Sensitivity and Market Risk
Interest Sensitivity

Alabama National monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of its assets and liabilities in order to
diminish the potential adverse impact that changes in interest rates could have on net interest income. The
principal monitoring technique employed by Alabama National is simulation analysis, which technique is
augmented by “gap” analysis.

In simulation analysis, Alabama National reviews each individual asset and liability category and their
projected behavior in various different interest rate environments. These projected behaviors are based upon
management’s past experiences and upon current competitive environments, including the various environments
in the different markets in which Alabama Naticnal competes. Using this projected behavior and differing rate
scenarios as inputs, the simulation analysis generates as outpul projections of net interest income. Alabama
Nattonal also periodically verifies the validity of this approach by comparing actual results with those that were
projected in previous models. See “Market Risk” beginning on page 36.
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Another tec::hnique used by Alabama National in interest rate management is the measurement of the interest
sensitivity “gap,;” which is the positive or negative dollar difference between assets and liabilities that are subject
to interest rate repricing within a given period of time. Interest rate sensitivity can be managed by repricing assels
and liabilities, sLllmg securities available for sale or trading securities, replacing an asset or Ilablhty a maturity
or by adjusting the interest rate during the life of an asset or liability.

[ .

Alabama National evaluates interest rate sensitivily risk and then formulates guidelines regaiding asset
generation and repricing, and sources and prices of off-balance sheet commitments in order to decrease interest
sensitivity risk. Alabama National uses computer simulations to measure the net income effect of various interest
rate scenarios. The modeling reflects interest rate changee and the related impact on net income over specified
periods of llme ‘ |

The followmg table illustrates Alabama National’s interest rate sensitivity at December 31, 2006 assuming

the relevant aqef ts and liabilities are collected and paid, rcqpcuweiy, based upon historical expenence ‘rather than
‘their stated matyrities. . : ok

1

INTEREST SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS #
(Amounts in thousands, except ratios) '

December 31, 2006
After After
One Three One Greater
, Through Through Through Than
‘ Within One  Three Twelve WithinOne  Three Three
i Month  -Months  Months Year Years Years Total
ASSETS: ' b
Earning assets: | ‘ ) ' ' £
Loans and leases (1) ....................... $2,719,321 $382.464 $ 577,284 $3.679.069 $1,058,539 $ 735259 3$5.472,867
Securitiés (2) .4 16422 33,786 182,067 237,275 521.364 464000 1,222,639
Trading securities .. .................. ..., 532 -_ — ) 532 — —= 532
[nterest-bearing deposits in other banks . .. .. . .. 16,350 — — 16,350 —_ — 16350
Fundssold ............ ..o, 89,865 —_ — £9,365 — = 89.865
Total interest-earning assets ... ............ $2.842.490 5421.250 $ 759.351 $4.023.001 $1.579.903 $1.199.259 36,802,253
. . 4
LIABILITIES:
Interest-bearing Ii:Lhilities:
Interest-bearing deposits: L
Demand de]ios'its e $ 721049 3§ — % — % 721049 § — § 458,637 $1,179.686
Savings and money market deposits ... .. 652,226 — — 652,226 — 468,457 1,120,683
Time deposits (3) ... ... ooeii .. 210315 264988 1,497,690 1972993 292,924 152,190 2,418,107
Fundspurchased .. .. ... .. ............... 627,297 - — 627,297 — —_ 627,297
Shont-term borrowings ... .................. ~ 116530 19,500 25,800 161,830 — — 161,830
Long-termdebt . ........ ... ... ... e 34,120 84,301 115,000 233421 86,000 82978 402,399
Total intercst-lT)earir]g Labilities ............ $2,361,537 $368,789 $1.638.490 $4368816 § 378924 $1.162.262 $5.910,002
Periodgap....... P P $ 480,953 $ 52461 § (879.139) $ (345,725) $1.200979 $ 36,997
Cumulative Zap ... P ... $ 480953 $533414 § (345.725) § (345.725) $ 855254 $ 892251 § 892.251
Ratio of cu:‘nu]miveJ gap to total interest-caming 3
assets _....... : .......................... 7.07% 7.84% -3.08% -5.08% 12.57% 13.1!2%
prear - ;
(1) Excludes r}onaccrual loans of $10.9 million. !
(2) Excludes mve‘;tment in equity securities with.a fair market value of $43.1 million. : 'i

(3) Excludes matured certificates which have not been redeemed by the customer and on which no interest is
accruing. .

Alabama National generally benefits from increasing market rates of interest when it has an asset-sensnwe
gap (a positive number) and generally benefits from decreasing market interest rates when it.is hab1llty sensitive
(a negative number). As shown in the table above, Alabama National is liability sensitive on a cumulative basis

[ :
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throughout the one year time frame. Alabama National is asset sensitive during the one through three year time
frame as well as in the greater than three years period, and it remains asset sensitive on a cumulative basis. The
current market sensitivity analysis shows that Alabama National is more liability sensitive within one year a1
December 31, 2006 than within one year at December 31, 2005. The interest sensitivity analysis presents only a
static view of the timing and repricing opportunities, without taking into consideration that changes in interest
rates do not affect all assets and liabilities equally. For example, rates paid on a substantial portion of core
deposits may change contractually within a relatively short time frame, but those are viewed by management as
significantly less interest sensitive than market-based rates such as those paid on non-core deposits. For this and
other reasons, management relies more upon the simulation analysis (as noted above) in managing interest rate
risk. Net interest income may be impacted by other significant factors in a given interest rate environment,
including changes in the volume and mix of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, :

Market Risk

Alabama National’s earnings are dependent, to a large degree, on its net interest income, which is the
difference between interest income earned on all earning assets, primarily loans and securities, and interest paid
on all interest bearing liabilities, primarily deposits. Market risk is ‘the risk of loss from adverse changes in
market prices and interest rates. Alabama National’s market risk arises primarily from inherent interest rate risk
in its lending, investing and deposit gathering activities. Alabama National seeks to reduce its exposure to market
risk through actively monitoring and managing its inlerest-rate risk. Managemenl relies upon static “gap”
analysis to determine the degree of mismatch in the maturity and repricing distribution of interest earning assets
and tnterest bearing liabilities which quantifies, to a-large extent, the degree of market risk inherent in Alabama
National's balance sheet. Gap analysis is further augmented by simulation analysis to evaluate the impact of
varying levels of prevailing interest rates and the sensitivity of specific eaming assets and interest bearing
liabilities to changes in those prevailing rates. Simulation analysis consists of evaluating the impact on net
interest income given changes from 2{0 basis points below the current prevailing rates to 200 basis points above
the current prevailing rates. Management makes certain assumptions as 1o the effect varying levels of interest
rates have on certain earning assets and interest bearing habllmes which assumptions consider both- hlS[OI‘lCﬂl
experience and consensus estimates of outside sources. o

‘With respect to the primary earning asséls, loans and securities, certain features of individual types of loans
and specific securities introduce uncertainty as to their expected performance at vafying levels of interest rates.
In some cases, prepayment options exist whereby the borrower may elect to repay the obligation at any time prior
to maturity. These prepayment options make anlicipating the performance of those instruments difficult given
changes in prevailing interest rates. At December 31, 2006, mortgage backed securities with a carrying value of
$875.8 million, or 11.4% of total assets, and essentially every loan and lease, net of unearned income, {totaling
$5.46 billion, or 71.1% of total assets), carried such prepayment options. Management believes that assumptions
used in its simulation analysis about the performance of financial instruments with such prepayment options are
appropriate. However, the actual performance of these financial instruments may differ from management’s
estimates due to several factors, including the diversity and financial sophistication of the cusiomer base, the
general level of prevailing interest rates and “the relationship to their historical levels, and general economic
conditions. The difference between those assumptions and actual results, if significant, could cause the actual
resuits to differ from those indicated by the simulation analysis.

Deposits totaled $5.57 billion, or 72.6% of total assets at December 31, 2006. Since deposits are the primary
funding source for earning assets, the associated market risk is considered by management in its simulation
analysis. Generally, it is anticipated that deposits will be sufficient:to support funding requirements. However,
the rates paid for deposits at varying levels of prevailing interest rates have a significant impact on net interest
income and, therefore, must be quantified by Alabama Naticnal in its simulation analysis. Specifically, Alabama
National’s spread. the difference between the rates earned on earning assets and rates paid on interest bearing
liabilities, is generally higher when prevailing interest rates are higher. As prevailing interest rates decline, the
spread tends to compress, with severe compression at very low prevailing interest rates. This characteristic is
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called “spread cnmpressmn " and adversely affects net interest income in the simulation analysis when anticipated
prevailing mterf st rates are reduced from current rates. Management relies upon historical expenenceato estimate
the degree of spread compression in its simulation analysis. Management believes that such estimates’of possible
spread compresalon are reasonable. However, if the degree of spread compression varies from that expecled the
actual results cotild differ from those indicated by the simulation analysis. ‘ 'i

The followmg tables illustrate the results of simulation analysns used by Alabama National to detenmne the
extént to whlch market risk would affect net intérest income for the next twelve months if prevan]mg interest
rates increased | 101 decreased by the specified amounts from current rates. As noted above, this 'model uses
estimates and assumptions in asset and liability account rate reactions to changes in prevailing interest rates.
However, to isolate the market risk inherent in the balance sheet the model assumes that no gr{)wth in the
balance sheet olccurs during the projection period. This model also assumes an immediate and pardllel shift in
interest rates, which would result in no change in the shape or slope of the-interest rate yield curve.i Because of
the inherent usml, of these estimates and assumptions in the simulation model used to derive this market risk
information, the| actual results of the fuiure 1mpact of market risk on Alabama National’s net interest mcome may
differ from that. ifound in the tables ) i‘

l . . MARKET RISK pl
0T Year Ended Year Ended
Change in December 31, 2006 December 3], 2005
Prevailing Interest . . . S % Change in Net %: Change in Net
_Rﬂ_l_)'_ . . Interest Income Interest Income
#200 BaSSIPOIILS « - -+ v e eeeeee e C o 04D% 1.66%
- +100 basiS/pOINLS .1 ©.17) 0.70 °
0 basis pbilms e P S — —
100 basis points .. ... 7 (2.15)
-200 basis points .. .......... e e 29n - (4.38)

(1) Assumes an immediate and parallel rate change of this magnitude.
i ' . -
1 e

Provision and Allowance for.Loan and Lease Losses - :

i
'
1

"The allow}mce for loan and lease 10sses represents management s estimate of probable inherent credlt losses
in the loan and llease portfolio. Management determines the allowance based on an ongoing evaluation of risk as
it correlates to, potential losses within the ponfoho Increases to the allowance are made by charges to the
provision for loan and lease losses. Loans or leases deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance.
Recoveries of prevmusly charged -off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan and lease losses. | i

| ' . h

In the deiermination of the allowance, management utilizes the Loan Review Department’s quarterly
independent an'alyms of the minimum required loan and lease loss reserve for each subsidiary Bank. In these
analyses, larger| problem loans of a defined threshold are reviewed for impairment or for loss exposure based on
their payment performance probability of default, and value of the collateral. These totals are then specifically
allocated to the'reserve. Loan and lease portfolios are then divided into various homogeneous risk pools utilizing
call codes, loan products, and internal risk ratings. Historical losses are used to estimate the probable loss in the
current portfolio using both an average loss methodology and a migration loss methodology. The methodologles
and the time periods considered are subjective and vary for each risk pool based on systematic risk relatlve to its

ability to esum.late losses. As every loan has a risk of loss, the calculation begins with a minimum loss allocation

" for each loan pool The minimum loss is estimated based on long term trends for the sub51d1ary Bank; the

banking mdustry, and the economy. A minimum loss allocation is similarly applied to letters of credif and unused

lines of credit. Loss allocations are adjusted for changes in the economy, problem loans, payment performance,

loan policy, mzlm_agement, credit administration systems, credit concentrations, loan growth, and other elements

over the time periods utilized in the methodology. The adjusted loss allocations are then applied to the current
| i
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balances in their respective loan pools. Loss allocations are totaled, vielding the required allowance for loan and
lease losses for each Bank. Each Bank’s required allowance for loan and lease losses is aggregated, yielding the
consolidated required allowance for Alabama National. :

Management incorporates the data from the quarterly required allowance assessments with interim changes
to that data in its ongoing determination of the allowance for loan and lease losses. Management then takes into
consideration other factors that may support an atllowance in excess of required minimums. These factors include
mergers and acquisitions, systems changes, historically high loan growth, and rapid changes in the economy. In
these conditions, there can be increased uncertainty in the data used and assumptions made by management.
Management believes that the data it uses in determining the allowance for loan and lease losses is sufficient to
estimate the potential losses in the loan and lease portfolio; however, actual results could differ from
management’s estimates,

The following table presents the information associated with Alabama National’s allowance and provision
for loan and lease losses for the dates indicated.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
(Amounts in thousands, except percentages)
Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 . 2004 2003 2002
Total loans and leases outstanding at end of
period, net of unearned income (1) ...... $5,456.136 $4,144,095 $3,495,701 $2,659,440 $2,191,394
Average amount of loans and leases
outstanding, net of unearned
income (1) ... ... $4,799.041 $3.,850,676 $3,205,306 3$2.410,782 $2,092.829

Allowance for loan and lease losses at
beginning of period -................. § 52815 $ 46584 § 36562 § 32,704 $ 28519
Charge-offs:
Commercial, financial and .
agricultural .. ... o L 916 824 3,430 3,535 1,573

Real estate—mortgage ............. 363 - 814 200 1,426 1,463
Consumer ................ R 1,043 1,280 953 . 858 3,200
Total charge-offs . ... .. . ) 2,322 2918 4,583 5.819 6,236
Recoveries: : ;
Commercial, financial and -
agricudtural ... oLt 559 818 784 821 . 991
Real estate—mortgage ............. 255 131 434 478 754
COonsSumer ...........c.covuuunn fa. 610 585 . 1,528 1,452 720
Total recoveries ............... 1,424 1,534 © 2746 2,751 2,465
Netcharge-offs ... ........... . 898 1,384 1,837 3.068 3,770
Provision for loan and lease losses ........ 5.393 . 71,615 4,949 5,931 7,956
Additions to allowance from acquisitions . .-, 10,936 —_— 6,910 995 —
Allowance for loan and lease losses at . . :
period-end .. .... e ‘$ 68246 $ 52815 % 46584 § 36562 5 32,704
Allowance for loan and lease losses to . ] o 7 .
period-end loans (1} ................. ' 1.25% 1.27% 1.33% 1.37% 1.49%
Net charge-offs to average loans and \ ’
leases (1) ... 002 0 004 006 013 . 0.8

(1) Deoes not include loans held for sale.
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The provil:ion for loan and lease losses decreased by $2.2 million, or 29.2%, to $5.4 million in 2006, from
$7.6 million on 2005. The primary reason for the decrease in provision expense during 2006 is due to slower
organic loan growth in 2006 as compared to 2005 and continuved favorable asset quality indicators. Dunng 2006,
net chdrge-offs were $0.9 million, compared to $1.4 million in 2005. "

Allocation of Allowance

+ While no 'poﬁion of the allowance is in any way restricted to any individual loan or group of loans and the
entire allowance is available to absorb losses from any and all loans, the following table represents

management’s allocation of the allowance for loan and lease losses to specific loan categones |

2006 2005 2004

| {Amounts in thousands) . ‘
. Commercial and financial ...... P $ 4415 $3573 § 3884
Realjestate construction . ..........c.iiiiinnn 24,000 14,235 7,527
Real estate residential mortgage . .. .................. 11,807 - 13279 8,595
Realjestate commercnal mortgage ................ D 17,444 12,574 . 11,949
Consumer . ....... 0 . i e S 1,522 1,336 1, 540
Lease financing receivables ........................ 616 . 452 511
Other ........................................ . 4,604 3,860 4,058
Una]located ..................................... 3,748 3,506 -8,520

Total atlowance for loan and lease losses . ............ $68,246  $32.815 $46,584

4

A]locauorz amounts within the allowance for loan and lease losses were affected by several factors 1denuﬁed
throughout lhe 2006 calendar year. Total loan amounts specifically allocated to the allowance increased by $609
thousand over December 31, 2005. Non-performing assets and potential problem loans increased by $4.6 million
and $5.1 million, respectively. These segments are primarily real estate oriented and have demonstrated below
industry loss alverages resulting in reduced allocations over the year. The most significant change occurred within
the real estate construction and commercial morigage portfolio segments. The allocation for real estate
construction mcreased by $9.9 million, or 69.2%. The increase in allocation of the allowance for real estate
construction is primarily due to loan growth and econornic conditions. Loan growth for this segmem has been a
factor of both organic growth and non-organic growth from mergers and acquisitions. Additionally, ‘the
slowdown in lhe housing sector has lead to heightened credit risk in certain Alabama National markets. Losses
directly attnbutable to these factors had not materialized by year end. The allocation for thé real estate
commercial mongage segment increased by $4.8 million, or 38.7%. Contributing factors are loan growth and
concentration levels. Commercial mortgages represent the second largest concentration within the loan portfolio.
The real estaté: residential mortgage allocation decreased by $1.5 million, or 11.1%, given smblluy within the
loan segment.. i ! The unaltocated reserve increased by $246 thousand, or 7.0%. However, in relation to the total
reserve, the unallocaled reserve decreased from 6.6% to 5.5%. There were no significant changes in the
allowance methodology and assumptions year over year. Changes in allocation amounts for the year are most
reflective of slable asset quality indicators, loan growth through mergers and acquisitions, organic loan growth in
various portfoho segments, changes in loan concentrauons and changes in local and national economic

conditions, | ‘ ¢
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Nonperforming Assets

The following table presents Alabama National's nonperforming assets for the dates indicated.

NONPERFORMING ASSETS
(Amounts in thousands, except percentages)
At Dec.ember 31,
2006 2005 2004 © 2003 2002
Nonaccrual loans . ................cooiiuan S...... S$10921 S 6446 $ 8,091 $ 9817 $10,282
Restructured loans ............. e ' —- — - — —
Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing ........ — — — — —
Total nonperforming loans -...................... 10,921 6,446 8,091 9,817 10,282
Other real estate owned ............ ... . 790 623 . 1,531 699 2,569
Total nonperforming BSSEIS ... $11,711 $ 7,069 § 9622 $10.516 $12,851
Allowance for loan and lease losses to period-end _
loans (1) ... s 1.25% 1.27% 133% 1.37% 1.49%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to period-end . :
nonperforming l0ans . ......... o i, 62491 R19.35 57575 37244  318.07
Allowance for loan and lease losses to period-end
nonperforming assets . ...........oviivrneennnnnn.. 582.75 747.14 4834.14  347.68 25449
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases (1) .. ......... 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.13 0.18
Nonperforming assets to period-end loans and leases and
foreclosed property (1) ... ... it 0.21 0.17 0.28 0.40 0.59

Nonperforming loans and leases to period-end loans (1) .. .. 0.20 0.16 0.23. 0.37 0.47

(1) Doesnot inciude loans held for sale.

Accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after considering economic and
business conditions and collection efforts, that the borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of
interest is doubtful. In addition to consideration of these factors, Alabama National has a consistent and
continuing policy of placing all loans on nonaccrual status if they become 90 days or more past due. When a loan
is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest which is accrued on the loan is reversed and deducted from earnings as
a reduction of reported interest. No additional interest is accrucd on the loan balance until collection of both
principal and interest becomes reasonably certain. When a problem loan is finally resolved, there may uitimately
be an actual writedown or charge-off of the principal balance of the loan which would necessitate additional
charges to the allowance for loan and lease losses. During the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
approximately $518,000, $453,000 and $489,000, respectively, in additional interest income would have been
recognized in earnings if Alabama National’s nonaccrual loans had been current in accordance with their original
terms. ‘ ’

Total nonperforming assets increased $4.6 million, to $11.7 million at December 31, 2006, from $7.1 million
at December 31, 2005. The increase in nonperforming assets is attributable to weaknesses in certain credits and
to the current slowdown in the housing market. Other real estate owned increased $0.2 million to $0.8 million at
December 31, 2006. The allowance for loan and lease losses to period-end nonperforming loans was 624.91% at
December 31, 2006, compared with 819.35% at December 31, 2005. This ratio will generally fluctuate from
period to period depending upon nonperforming loan levels at peried end.

Potential Problem Loans

A potential problem loan is one that management has concerns as to the borrower’s future performance
under terms of the loan contract. These loans are current as to principal and interest, and accordingly, they are not
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included in the ngonperforming asset categories. Management monitors these loans closely in order to "ensure that
Alabama National’s interests are protected. At December 31, 2006, Alabama National had certain loans
considered by m'anagement to be potential problem loans totaling $29.6 million, as compared with $24.5 million
at December 31 ‘2005 Alabama National believes early identification of potential problem loans is an important
factor in its ablllty to successfully collect such loans. As such, it encourages early identification of potential
problem loans bloth with its loan officers and loan review staff. The level of potential problem loans is factored
into the determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses.

Noninterest lnc.ome and Expense . K

Noninterest iricome

Alabama Nauonal relies on six distinct segments for the production of recurring noninterest income:
(1) traditional retail and commercial banking, (2) retail mortgage lending, (3) wealth managemem services,
(4) investment Iser\uces (5) insurance services, and (6) commercial mortgage banking. Combmed revenue
associated with Alabama National’s six segments totaled $78.3 million in 2006, compared with $71. 7 miltion in
2005, an increase of $6.6 million, or 9.2%. An analysis of this increase is provided below. '

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the principal components of noninterest income.

NONINTEREST INCOME .
{Amounts in thousands)

'
J

i "

Year ended Decémber 3,

. 2006 2005 2004

Service charges on depositaccounts ... ...l $15,896 $16,335 %17,126
Investment Services IMCOME . . . ... .ttt ittt e et e e et 4291 4210 11,652
Wealth managellnem IDCOITIE o et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 21,902 19,220 16,863
Gain on sale of MOIMBAZES . .. ..\ttt e e 10,990 12,522 11,566
INSULANCE COMIMUSSIONS .« v v vt et e et ettt e e e e e e 4,047 3,549 3,604
Bank owned [ife ISULANCE .. . v v v e e e e e e e e 3,632 2,886 2,690
Commercial mofrtgage bankingincome ... . . ... ...l 2,251 525 —

Securities (losse‘s) BAITS . oot (1,250 - 72 —

Other ........ oo e e e S + 16,531 §2,404 9,284

Total noniritere_st income ..... e e . $78,290 $71,723 72,785

Service chirges on deposit accounts decreased $0.4 million to $15.9 million during 2006, a 2.7% decrease
from 2005's total of $16.3 million. The decrease in service charges for 2006 versus 2005 is primarily related 1o
increases in the earnings credit rate (“ECR™) attributed to commercial deposit- accounts. The ECR, which
generally vanes‘ with short term interest rates, is used by commercial customers to offset servicecharges on
deposit accounls As interest rates rose in 2006, the higher ECR resulted in lower service charges. Other
noninterest 1nc0me increased $5.9 million to $18.8 million during 2006, a 45.3% increase over 2005 s total of
$12.9 million. Conmbutmg to the increase in other noninterest income is increased revenue from merchant credit
card activity, ATM card revenue; and debit card income. The other components of noninterest income are
discussed in more detail in “Segment Information” bcgmnmg on page 42. :




Noninterest Expense

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the principal components of noninterest expense.

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
(Amounts in thousands)

"Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Salaries and employee benefits . ... ... ... . L el $ 96,717 § 85402 § 74.983
Commission based compensation . ......... ... ..o iiiieen, 17.961 15,458 17.500
Occupancy and equipment expense, net . .........c.vitviinaennnnn.... 20,656 17,653 15,488
Amortization of other intangibles ........ ... ... ... L. oLl 4,911 3,189 3,034
Travel and entertainment . .............. ..o eernniinneran.! e 2,832 2,303 1,926
AdVEItSING . ot 3,855 3,308 2,436
Banking assessments ... ... .. i i 2,615 2,429 2,183
Data processing €Xpenses . . . ... .urv ittt e 3332 - 27951 2,615
Legal and professional fees ............ .. ... ... .. . i 4,527 5,400 5.235
Noncredit [08Ses .. ... .. i e 298 740 940
Postage and courier Services ... ..ot i e 3.373 3,060 2,893
Supplies and printing .. ... .. .. e 3316 2,922 2,813
Telephone . ... ..o e 2,571 2,355 2,183
Electronic banking expense .......... ... ... i 4,560 3,571 2,961
SOFEWATE EXPENMSE .« .\ vttt e et ettt ettt et e e e e 2,706 2,335 2,025
Commercial INSUANCE . .. .ottt e et ae e 1.415 1,057 1,207
DreCtOrS fEeS o oot e e e 1,392 1,176 1,083
Business licenses and othertaxes ... ... . . . i it 1,011 920 1.013
OtREr .« e 7.146° 6.451 . 5,804
) Total noninterest EXPETISE o ottt e e $185,194 $162,480 5148322

Noninterest expense increased $22.7 million, or 14.0%, to $185.2 million in 2006, from $162.5 million in
2005. Salaries and employee benefits increased $11.3 million, or 13.2%, in 2006. The 2006 amount includes the
salary and benefit expense of the two banks acquired in 2006, which totaled $6.2 million. In addition to the 2006
acquisitions, contributing to the increase in salaries and employee benefits were general staffing increases
concurrent with expansion of offices and business lines, increases in health insurance costs and merit salary
increases, Commission based compensation increased $2.5 million, or 16.2%, in 2006. The increase in
commission based compensation during 2006 is attributable to increased production in the wealth management
division and a full year of commercial mortgage banking activity. Net occupancy expense increased $3.0 million,
or 17.0%, in 2006. The 2006 amounts includes the net occupancy expense of the 2006 -bank acquisitions; which
totated $1.2 million.

Segment Information

In addition to traditional commercial and consumer retail banking products, Alabama National offers
investment services, wealth management services, retail mortgage lending services, commercial mortgage
banking and insurance services to its customers. Please refer to Note 20 to Alabama National’s Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report beginning at page F-1 for disclosures related to Alabama
National’s operating segments. The results of the operating segments include certain income and expense items
that are allocated by management to the operating segments. Further, the results of each operating segment are
not necessarily the same as would be expected if these activities were conducted by a stand-alone entity, because
certain corporate overhead expenses are not allocated directly to each operating segment,
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Investment Se' rvices

The followmg table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the summary of operations for the mvestment

services division of Alabama Natlonal
t

INVESTMENT SERVICES DIVISION )
(Amounts in thousands) ' h’

Year ended December 31,

‘ . 2006 - 2005 2004
Investment services revenue .......... e $4.291 $4210 $11,652
Expenses and allocated charges ..................... e, 4987 4,852 8,998
Net investment services (loss) income .................o . $ (696) $ (64{2) $ 2,654

First American Bank operates an investment services division devoted primarily to handling correspondent
banks’ mvestmenl needs. Investment services revenue consists primarily of commission income from the sale of
fixed income securmes to correspondent banks. A small portion of investment services revenue is generated from
fee based serwces including asset/liability consulting, bond accounting and security Safekeepmg Investment
services revenue increased slightly to $4.3 million during 2006, from $4.2 million in 2005. The revenue recorded
in 2006 and 2q05 are down significantly from the $11.7 million recorded in 2004. During 2006 and 2003, the
cash flow from'the securities portfolio of correspondent banks has slowed and loan demand mcreased which has
negatively 1mpacted the revenue for this division. In addition to the market conditions during 2006 and 2005,
another sngmﬁcant reason for decreased revenue production during 2006 and 2005 as compared with 2004 is due
to the deparlur: of a group of salespeople and support staff from this division during the fourth quarter of 2004.
The revenue gleneraled by the investment services division is dependent upon the demand for fixed income
securities by its customers, which are primarily correspondent community banks. The activities of the investment
services division leads to additional business opportunities for the commercial and retail banking segment
through loans }_and deposits attributable to the investment service division’s customers. Revenue for this
additional activity is recorded in the commercial and retail banking segment. g’

G
Wealth Mam’zgemem Division

The followmg table sets forth, for the perieds indicated, the summary of operations for the wealth
managemenl lelSI()n of Alabama National:

WEALTH MANAGEMENT IDIVISION

i (Amounts in thousands) .

. N 13
Year ended December 31,

. ) 2006 2005 2004
Wealth managtl:ment revenue .. ... e P Caeee.. $21,989 519220 $16.863
Interest incomc: ................................................. e 1,861 1,486 1,109
Total wealth MaNagement FEVENUE . .. ... .vvueiiii el 23,850 20,706 17,972
Interest eXpense ............c..iiiiiiiiii... N 468 -+ 242 105
Expensesand‘llllocaledcharges e e e e e e e 21,428 17946 15,907
_Net wealth management IMCOMIE .« ot e e e $1954 % 2,5:i8 $ 1,960

First American Bank has a wholly owned subsidiary, NBC Securities, Inc. (“NBC Securities™), that is a full
service llcensed broker-dealer. The asset management division of the trust department of First American Bank
and NBC Securmes manage the assets of both institutional and individual customers located primarily in the
markets served by Alabama National. Collectively these two units are called the wealth managempnl division.
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The revenue generated by this division consists primarily of commission income generated from the sale of
equity securities and other investment preducts to individual and corporate customers, from fees paid for assets
under management or custody and from fees related to investment advisory work performed for clients. NBC
Securities also recognizes interest income from margin loans. Revenue for this division increased $2.8 million, or
14.4%, to $22.0 million in 2006. Revenue for this division increased $2.4 million, or 14.0%, to $19.2 million in
2005. The increase in revenue during both 2006 and 2005 is attributable to continued expansion in the number of
customers and total customer assets under management by these departments, as well as an increase in the
number-of registered representatives. Asset management fees recorded by the trust department of First American
Bank and NBC Securities also increased during 2006 as a result of an increase in the total assets managed by this
division, which was in part attributable to an increase in employees in the asset management and wealth
strategies roles. The interest income from margin loans increased slightly during 2006 versus the levels recorded
during 2005 and 2004. The additional registered representatives, additional asset’ management and wealth
strategy employees, new offices opened and variable overhead, combined with higher commission expense on
the higher revenue base, led to an increase in the expenses and allocated charges for this divisien in 2006, which
resulied in a reduction of pre-tax income for this division.

Retail Morigage Lending Division
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the summary of operations for the retail mortgage
lending division of Alabama National: -

RETAIL MORTGAGE LENDING DIVISION
{Amounts in thousands)

Year ended December 31,
] 2006 2005 20604
Gain on sale of retail mortgage loans (1) .......... P . $11,834 $13,673 $12,398
Interestincome ..........comunon.. AP e 1,384 1,238 1,053
Total EVENUE « . . ottt et e e <. 13,218 14911 13,451
Interest EXPENSE . ..ottt e e 930 550 294
Expenses and allocated charges . ......... ... ... ... . i 10,053 9,720 8.858
Net retail mortgage lending division income . ............. ... ........ $2235 $ 464t § 4,299

(1) Includes intercompany income allocated to the retail morigage lending division totaling $844,000,
$1,151,000 and $832,000 at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Fees earned in connection with the origination and resale of retail mortgages decreased $1.8 million, or
13.4%, to $11.8 million in 2006, from $13.7 million in 2005. Duning 2005, fees earned in connection with the
origination and resale of retail mortgages increased $1.3 million, or 10.3%, to $13.7 million, from $12.4 million
in 2004, The decrease during 2006 is primarily due to rising interest rates and the impact that rising rates have on
refinance activity and new construction, and the reduced level of resideniial real estate sales activity in many of
the markets Alabama National serves. Expenses and allocated charges totaled $10.1 million during 2006,
compared to $9.7 million during 2005. This increase during 2006 ‘is attributable to expenses associated with
expanding the number of retail mortgage lenders during 2006.




Commercial .";/Iortgage Banking - .. "

The foltow;ing table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the sdm_mary of operatilons for the ¢ommercial
mortgage banking division of Alabama National:

COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE BANKING _ ’
' {Amounts in thousands) BT

) . 2006 2005 2004 (1)
Commission iNCOME ... .vuvrnrnnunan . e PO ... $1,795 $4:";1»8 $—

!
t
!
]
I . o Year ended December 31,

Servicing fees b P e 486 77 - —
Total reven!ue .......................... U J 2281 525 —
Expenses and alllocated charges ........ [ e e 1,618 332 —
Net commercial mortgage banking income ......... ... .. e $ 663 $193 3$—

(1) No activityll prior to the acquisition of this business September 2005, - ,

Alabama Natlonal entered this line of business via an acquisition of an existing business in September 2005.
This division spec1allzes in finding permanent long term financing for primarily large real estate pro_]ects in the
Southeast. In addition to brokering the transaction and earning a brokerage fee, the division routmely services the
loans for the investors and earns servicing fee revenue. 2006 was the first full year of activity for this division.

Insurance Se:'['vices Division . v
l, - T . . ' .
The followlmg table sets forth, for the periods indicated, a summary of operations for the insurance services
division of Alabama National: _ ‘ "

} INSURANCE SERVICES DIVISION ' r

. i (Amounts in thousands) R . b
i '
! Year ended December 31,

‘ i ‘ 2006 2005 - 2004
COMMESSION INCOME + + -+ v e v e e e e e e e e e e e "$4.047 $3,549 $3,604
Other income ; ........................................................ 35 109

TOMAl FVETIU ... ..o eeo ettt e e et 4082 3549 3,713
Expenses and allocated Charges . ..........ouviuiiniaiii i 3,625 3,349 3,642

Net inSllrall‘lCC AivISIONINCOME .« . .ttt e et e e e $ 457 % 200 § 71

|
Comrmssum income earned from the sale of insurance products during 2006 increased to $4.0 m1lhon from
$3.5 million re( orded in 2005. The profitability of this segment increased due to higher revenue productlon in
2006. The mcreased revenue is due to successful business development efforts of insurance servnces division

employees and Pxpandlng the insurance servnces proclucts to more of the markets served by Alabama Nanonal
it

Earning Assetsi
LOHHS and Le‘ases 't

Loans and'leases are the largest category of earning assets and typically provide higher yields than the other
types of earning assets. Associated with the higher loan ylelds are the inherent credit and 11qu1cl|ty|nsks which
management attempts to control and counterbalance. Total loans and leases averaged $4.82 billidn in 2006,
compared to $'1| 88 billion in 2005, an increase of $941.6 million, or 24.3%. At December 31, 2006, total loans
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and leases, net of unearned income, were $5.46 billion, compared to $4.14 billion at the end of 2005, an increase
of $1.31 billion, or 31.7%. Excluding the loans acquired in the 2006 bank acquisitions, average loans and leases
increased $489.4 million, or 12.6%, and end of period year-over-year organic loan growth for 2006 was $387.4
million, or 9.4%.

The growth in Alabama National’s loan and lease portfolio is attributable to Alabama National’s ability to
attract new customers while maintaining consistent underwriting standards. Loan growth is also impacted by
general economic conditions that may result in increased loan demand from existing customers. Many of the
markets served by Alabama National continue to experience economic expansion, and Alabama National has
benefited from this market growth. The following table details the composition of the loan portfolio by category
at the dates indicated. '

COMPOSITION OF LOAN AND LEASE PORTFOLIO
{Amounts in thousands, except percentages)

December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
of of of of of

Amount Total Amount Total Amount- Total Amount Total Amount Total

Commercial and financial ... $§ 401,057 . 7.34%$ 287,014 6.92%$ 282212 B.06%$ 265923 9.99%% 2533.569 11.56%
Real estate: S . ' :
Construction ........... 1,901,671 34.82 1,22545]1 29.55 776,594 2220 530,024 19.91 311,259 14119

Morgage—residential ... 1,166,847 2137 1,092,514 2634 963,083 27.52 676,658 2542 616,651 2811

Morigage—commercial .. 1,517,744 27.79 1,100,794 26,54 1,046,622 29.9] 814,904 30.61 699,403 31.88

Mortgage—other ....... 20,129 37 9.828 .24 10,644 .30 9,412 .35 5.672 26
Consumer ............... 94,563 1.73 82,908 2.00 88.653 2.53 74137 ' 278 78,342 3.57
Lease financing

receivables ............ 87.018 1.59 62,423 1.50 70.289 2.01 71.857 2.92 80.113 365
Securities brokerage margin

loans ................. 18.642 34 17,928 43 14.517 Al 15,407 .58 14,502 .66
Other ..o 253,729 4.65 268,879 6.48 246,739 706 198,036 7.44 134,191 6.12
Total gross loans and ’

leases ..... ... 5461400 100.009% 4,147,739 100.00% 3,499,353 100.00% 2,662,358 100.00% 2,193,702 100.00%
Unearned income ......... (5.264) (3,644) (3.652) (2,918) (2,308)
Total loans and leases, net of

unearned income (1) . .. .. 5.456.136 4,144,095 3.495,701 2.659.440 2,191,394
Allowance for loan and lease

losses ............. ... (68,246) {52.815) {46,584) (36,562} (32.704)
Total net loans and

leases (1) .....oovvn $5,387.890 $4,091,280 $3.449,117 $2.622.878 $2.158.650

(1} Does not include loans held for sale.

In the context of this discussion. a “real estate mortgage loan™ is defined as any loan, other than loans for
construction purposes, secured by real estate, regardless of the purpose of the loan. It is common practice for
financial institutions in Alabama National’s market areas, and for Alabama National in particular, to obtain a
security interest or lien in real estate whenever possible, in addition to any other available collateral. This
collateral is taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan and tends to increase the
magnitude of the real estate loan portfolio component. In general, Alabama National prefers real estate collateral
to many other potential collateral sources, such as accounts receivable, inventory and equipment.

The principal component of Alabama National’s loan portfolio is real estate mortgage loans. At year-end

2006, this category totaled $2.70 biilion and represented 49.5% of the total loan portfolio, compared to $2.20
billion, or 53.1% of the total loan portfolio at year-end 2005. '
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Residenlial'mongage loans increased $74.3 million, or 6.8%, to $1.17 billion at Deccmber'.'i] 2006,
compared with ‘Bi .09 billion at December 31, 2005. Commercial mortgage loans increased $417.0 mllllon or
379%,10%1.52 billion at December 31, 2006.

Real estate construction loans experienced the largest increase of any category of loan. Real estate
construction Ioans increased $676.2 million, or 55.2%, to $1.90 billion at December 31, 2006, compared with
$1.23 billion at December 31, 2005. Real estate construction is now the largest category of loans for Alabama
National. Alabama National’s focus on the home construction market, as well as strong commercial construcuon
activity in marke its it serves and the 2006 bank acquisitions, led to this increase during 2006. In addition, the two
banks acquired clunng 2006 are also involved in this type of lending in their mdrkclx s0 their acqunsmon brought
additional such loam 10 Alabama National.

{

The repaymem of loans is a source of additional liquidity for Alabama National. The following table sets

forth Alabama Nali'ona]‘s‘ toans maturing within specific intervals al December 31, 2006. ;

LOAN MATURITY AND SENSITIVITY TO CHANGES IN INTEREST RATFS

| : (Amounts in thousands)
! December 31, 2006 .
Over one year i

One year through five Over five
i : or less Years years . Total
Commercial, ﬁnfancial and agricultural .......... .. $. 232778 % 145044 § 23235 '$ 401,057
Real estate—construction .. ...... ... ..o, 1,221,201 589,843 80,627 1 1,901,671
Real estate—residential ... ... ... ... ... . ... . ....... 184,202 261,218 721,427 11,166,847
Real eState—CcommErcial « .. .....vvernnreern s, 244,214 886,784 386,746 1,517,744
CORSUMEN . .. L ..o 38,118 47,763 - 2118 | 87,999

$1.920,513  $1,930,652 $1.224,153 $5,075,318

r Predetermined Floating

' ' Rates Rates ’ Total
Maturing after (!‘me year but “}ithin fiveyears .......... ... .. ..., $1,163,195 § 767457 '$l,930,652
Maturing after five years . .. .. .. .. . 174,426 1,049,727 1,224,153

$1,337,621  $1,817,184 . $3,154,805

The 1nformauon presented in the above table is based upon the contractual maturities of thé individual
loans, mcludmg loans which may be subject 1o renewal at their contractual maturity. Renewal of such loans is
subject to rev1(rw and credit approval, as well as modification of terms upon their maturity. Consequently,
management believes this treatment presents fairly the maturity structire of the loan portfolio.

o N |
Securities | }

Securities, including securities classified as held to maturity (or investment securities) and available for sale,
represent a significant portion of Alabama National’s earning assets. The carrying value of securities averaged
$1.19 billion durmg 2006, compared with $1.16 billion during 2005, an increase of $33.8 million, or 2.9%.
Growth in the securities portfolio is generally a function of growth in funding sources net of lending
opportunities, and during 2006 most of the earning asset growth of Alabama National was in loans and leases.
The average securities balance for 2006 would have decreased slightly if not for the 2006 bank acqumuons
Management a[tempts to maintain eamning asset growth commensurate with its funding growth and with its
overall growlh'plans. At December 31, 2006, the securities portfolio totaled $1.27 billion, including securities
held to maturity with an amortized cost of $716.4 million and securities available for sale with a market value of
$549.4 miliion.

| i
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The following tables set forth the.carrying value ‘of securities held by Alabama National at the dates
indicated. . . -

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
(Amounts in thousands)
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Cost Market Cost Market Cost Market

U.S. Government corporations and -
agencies ... ... ..., D $ 24227 $ 23632 $ 24217 % 23464 § 24207 § 24,003
State and political subdivisions . ........ 74,785 75,168 21,152 21,158 15,569 15,866
Mortgage backed securities .. .......... 617,394 606,660 545,784 531,802 528,717 526,733
Total ... i $716,406 $705460 $591,153 $576,424 $568,493 $5660,602

AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,
. 2006 2005 2004

o Cost Market Cost Market Cost =~ Market

U.S. Treasury securities .............. $ 350 $ 348 $ 350 $ 347 $§ 350 § 349
U.S. Government corporations and : :

agencies ...... [P 192,537 188,666 212,443 206,346 220,315 218,690
State and political subdivisions . ........ 57,805 58,309 36,234 36,496 45,282 46,338
Mortgage backed securities . . .......... 264,795 257910 277,706 269,927 336,551 335,647

Othersecurities ..................... 1,000 1,000 —_ — — —
~ Equity securities . ........ ... 0ia.n. 43,135 43,135 32,261 32,218 30,890 30,890
Total ........... ... ... ... $559,622 $549.368 $558,994 $545,334 $633,388 $631.914

The following tables show the scheduled maturity and average yields of securities owned by Alabama
National at December 31, 2006.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES MATURITY DISTRIBUTION AND YIELDS
(Amounts in thousands, except yields)

December 31, 2006

' After one but After five but :
Within one year Within five years Within ten years After ten years Other securities

Amount Yield(l) Amount Yield(l} Amount Yield(l) Amount Yield(l) Amount Yield(l)

U.S. Government
corporations and

agencies ....... $— $24.227 498% § — $ — s —
State and political -
subdivisions .. .. — 1,542 6.67% 9.636 5.56% 63,607 530% -
Mortgage backed
securities ..., ... — — — . — $617.394 5.25%
Total ........ $— $25,769 5.08%  $9.636 5.56% 363,607 530% 3617394 5.25%

(1) Computed on a tax-equivalent basis utilizing a 38% tax rate, without giving effect to the disallowance for
. Federal income tax purposes of interest related to certain tax-exempt assets.
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SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE MATURITY DISTRIBUTION AND YIELDS
{Amounts in thousands, except vields)

December 31, 2006 .
After one but After five but .

Within one year  Within five years ~ Within ten years After ten years Other securities
L Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1)
U.S. Treasury secu}ilies R $ 348 496% § — 5 — 3 — D S
U.S. Government corporations
and agencies ............. 11,398 5.22% 165442 496% 11,825 5.62%
State and political . .
subdivisions . . ; ........... 1,139 6.14% 12,607  576% 17,395  561% 27,169  6.02% ,
Mortgage backed securities . ... =~ — — , 257,910  5.33%
Other securities .. ........... 1,000 9.00%
Equity securities {(2) ......... — — — — 43,135 589%
Towal ................. $12,885  5290% $178,049 5.02% $29,220 5.61% 328,169 A3%  $301.045 541%

(1) Computed on a tax-equivalent basis utilizing a 38% tax rate, without giving effect to the disallowance for

Federal income tax purposes of interest related to certain tax-exempt assets. !

(2) Comprised primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank slock *

At December 31, 2006, morigage-backed securities, consisting of collateralized mortgage obligations and
pass-through mortgage obligations, had a carrying value totaling $875.3 million. These mortgage-backed
securities include $617.4 million classified as investment securities and $257.9 million classified as securities
available for sale. Management expects the annual repayment of the underlying mortgages to vary as a result of
monthly repayment of principal and/or interest required under terms of the underlying promissory notes Further,
the actual rate:of repayment is subject to changes depending upon the terms of the underlying mortgages, the
relative level of morigage interest rates, and the structure of the securities. When relative interest rates decline to
levels below thal of the underlying morigages, acceleranon of principal repayment is expected as some borrowers
on the underlymg mortgages refinance to lower rates.” When the underlying rates on mortgage loans are
comparable (0, or in excess of, market rates, repayment more closely conforms to scheduled amortization in
accordance with terms of the promissory note with additional repayment as a result of salés of homes
collaleralizing:the mortgage loans constituting the security. Accordingly, management genera]liz expects an
average life of.3.5 years for both collateralized mortgage obligations and pass-through mortgage obligations.

J

Other attrlbutes of securities are discussed in “Interest Sensmvny and Market Risk” begmnmg on

page 34. .

: i
I I
Short-Term Investments :

Alabama National utilizes overnight investment of funds in federal funds sold and securities purchased
under dgreempms to resell to ensure that adequate liquidity will be maintained, while at the same time
minimizing lhn. level of uninvested cash reserves. Short-term investments are also utilized by Alabama National
when the level of funds committed to lending and investment portfolio programs changes or the level of deposit
generation changes During 2006, federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell
averaged $68. .3 million, compared to $83.6 million during 2005, representing a decrease of $14.8 million,

Trading Account Securities
o
The investment services division carries trading account securities, which represent securities owned by
Alabama Nanona] prior to sale and delivery to Alabama National’s customers. Trading account securities
averaged approx:mately $1.1 million and $0.5 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. This small dollar amount
reflects management’s policy of limiting positions in such securities to reduce its exposure to market and interest

rate changes. -
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Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Average interesi-bearing liabilities increased $908.5 million, or 21.0%, to $5.23 billion in 2006, from $4.32
billion in 2005. Average interest-bearing deposits increased $685.9 million, or 20.2%, to $4.08 billion in 2006,
from $3.40 billion in 2005. The 2006 bank acquisitions contributed $421.0 million and $395.1 million to the
increase in average interest bearing liabilities and average interest bearing deposits, respectively. The remaining
organic increase is attributable to competitive rate and product offerings by Alabama National, successful
marketing efforts and growth in many of Alabama National’s markets. Average federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to repurchase increased $133.8 million, or 26.0%, o $649.0 million in 2006,
from $515.2 million in 20035, due in part to additional liquidity provided by downstream correspondent banks.
Average short-term borrowings increased by $39.8 million, or 58.6%. to $107.8 million in 2006, compared to
$67.9 million in 2005. Average long-term borrowings increased $49.1 million, or [4.5%, to $386.9 million in
2006, from $337.8 million in 2005.

Deposits

Average total depbsils increased $722.8 million, or 17.6%, to $4.83 billion during 2006, from $4.11 billion
during 2005. At December 31, 2006, total deposits were $3.57 billion, compared with $4.34 billion at
December 31, 2005. The 2006 bank acquisitions accounted for $455.6 million of the increase in average deposils
and $973.5 million of the increase in year-end 2006 deposit growth. Organic deposit growth during 2006 was
5.9%. The deposit growth did not keep pace with loan growth for 2006, and Alabama National used other
wholesale funding sources, such as FHLB advances, to support asset growth. This reliance on other funding
sources has negatively impacted Alabama National’s net interest margin.

"["hq fo]lowin'g table sets forth the deposits of Alabama National by categ'c')ry at the dates indicated.

DEPOSITS
(Amounts in thousands, except percentages)
December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Percent Percent Percent ' Percent : Percent
Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
Demand ........... $ 849,127 15.25% % 729,045 16.79% % 683,245 1736% § 404755 1470% $ 336,172 1443%
NOW ............. 1,179,686 21,19 1,021,494 23.52 306,399 23.04 528,766 19.20 476,721 20.46
Savings and money
market ......... .. 1.120,683  20.13 884,496  20.36 887431 2255 521,440 1894 378.361 16.24
Time less than
$100,000 ......... 1.211,208 2175 760,832  17.52 665,696 1692 619220 2249 635,827 27.27
Time greater than .
$100,000......... 1.206.899  21.68 947397  21.8}1 791952 2013 679.559 2468 503,314 2160
Total deposits .. ..... $5.567.603 100.00% $4,343,264  100.00% $3.934,723  100.00% $2,753,749 100.00% $2,330.395  100.00%

Core deposits, which exclude time deposits of $100,000 or more, provide for a relatively stable funding
source that supports earning assets. Alabama National’s core deposits totaled $4.36 billion, or 78.3%, of total
deposits at December 31, 2006, and totaled $3.40 billion, or 78.2%. of total deposits at December 31, 2005.
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Deposits, ih particular core deposits, have historically been Alabama Nattonal’s primary source of funding
and have enabled Alabama National to meet successfully both short-term and long-term liquidity needs.
Management anucnpates that such deposits will continue to be Alabama National’s primary source of funding in
the future,- although economic and competitive factors could affect this funding source. Alabama National’s
loan-1o-deposit | ratio was 98.0% at December 31, 2006, and 95.4% at the end of 2005, and the ratio averaged
99.8% during 2006 and 94.4% during 2005. The maturity distribution of Alabama National’s time depoms in
excess of $100, 000 at December 31, 2006 is shown in the following table.

f

; MATURITIES OF CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT AND OTHER TIME
DEPOSITS OF $100,000 OR MORE
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2006

: After One After Six - One - Greater
| . . . Through  After Three  Through Through Than
‘ Within One Three Fhrough Twelve Three Three
. Month Months Six Months Months Years Years Total

Centificates of depo%ll of . o ' . :
$100,000 or more ...... $ 87,506 $129,409 $303,076 $390,805 $130,986 $87,572 +$1,129,354

Other time’ deposns of , . ‘ ‘ ¢
$100,000 or mere ...... 49 595 ) 6,940 _— 8,410 " 7,500 5,100 77,545
Total ........... e $l 37.101 . $136,349 3$303,076 $399.215 $138,486 $92,672 4$l,206,899

Approxlmdte]y 22, 7% of Aldbama National’s time deposits over $100,000 had scheduled malurmes within
three months.. Large certificate of deposit customers ‘tend 1o be sensitive to interest rate levels, making these
deposits less rellable sources of funding for liquidity planning purposes than core deposits. Alabama National
had $154.4 million in large certificates of deposit obtained through brokers outstanding at December 31, 2006,
compared to $126.6 million at December 31, 2005. Alabama National’s use of brokered time depos:ts fluctuates
depending upon funding needs and the pricing and maturity structure of available brokered dcpoan verqus other
funding sources, including in-market time deposits.

Borrowed F u;nd.s'

Borrowed |funds include four broad categories; (1) Federal funds purchased and securities;sold under
agreements to repurchase, (2) Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB) borrowings, (3) borrowings from a third party
bank, and (4) ju'nior subordinated debentures. Because of a relatively high loan-to-deposit ratio, the existence and
stability of these funding sources are critical (o Alabama National’s maintenance of short-term and long-term
liquidity. ‘

i

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase represent both tan input of
excess funds from correspondent bank customers of Alabama National as well as a cash management tool offered
to corporate customers. At December 31, 2006, these funds totaled $627.3 million, compared with $545.3 million
at December 31 2005. This balance will vary greatly depending on the liquidity of the downslredm

correspondent b.mke of Alabama National and the excess cash of its corporate customers.
J

To supplellnent the cash needs of Alabama National, the Company has entered into two separate borrowing
arrangements with a third party bank. One of these borrowing arrangements is a $20.0 million line of credit
which matures in May 2007. Alabama National’s average borrowings under this line of credit was $4.8 million
during 2006, compared with $278 thousand during 2005. As of December 31, 2006, the principal balance
outstanding was $15.8 million, leaving a remaining availability under the credit facility of $4.2 million. The
credit facility Bears interest at a rate that varies with three month LIBOR. Alabama National has' historically
renewed the credit facility prior to its maturity date. Alabama National is in the process of negotialing an
amendment to thm credit facility that would increase the amount that may be borrowed to $30 mllllon and that
would extend the maturity date to May 2008. )

I H
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‘During April 2006, Alabama National entered into a new borrowing arrangement with the same third party
bank. Alabama Nationa! borrowed $16.0 million under a revolving credit facility. The revolving credit facility
bears interest at a rate that varies with three month LIBOR. The principal is due March 2009 with interest only
payments to be made until the principal is due in 2009. Both credit facilities are cross collateralized with the
common stock of a subsidiary bank of Alabama National,

All of the Banks are members of the FHLB of Atlanta. At December 31, 2006, the Banks had available
FHLB credit lines of $2.0 billion (subject to collateral requiremenis), under which $485.0 million was
outstanding, including advances classified as short-term of $146.0 million and advances classified as long-term
of $339.0 million. This compares to borrowings of $350.3 million at December 31, 2005, of which $34.7 million
was short-term and $315.6 million was long-term.

Alabama National, through three separate trust subsidiaries, has issued Floating Rate Capital Securities,
commonly known as trust preferred securities. The proceeds from the trust preferred securities were invested in
junior subordinated debentures of Alabama National. The obligations of these debentures constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee by Alabama National of the trust preferred securities. Since 2001, Alabama National has
issued junior subordinated debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $46.5 million in connection with
these issuances of trust preferred securities. The debentures pay distributions at a rate that varies with LIBOR.
They are classified as long-term debt for financial statement purposes but are included as a component of risk
based capital for regulatory purposeé. In addition to these junior subordinated debentures, Alabama National
assumed $9.3 and $7.2 million in junior subordinated debentures in connection with its acquisition of The PB
Financia! Services Company in 2006 and Indian River Banking Company in 2004, respectively.

During 2006, Alabama National exercised its option to prepay one of its series of trust preferred securities.
The total principal amount prepaid during December 2006 was $15.5 million. Alabama National elected to
prepay based on the current capital position of the Company and the interest rate on the trust preferred securities
repaid. If needed, Alabama National could issue additional trust preferred securities at a more attractive rate
based on current market rates.
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The follow'ing table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the principal components of borrowed f@nds.

1

! BORROWED FUNDS I
(Amounts in thousands, except percentages) :

December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Federal funds p;urchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: .
Balance at‘end ofperiod ... . ... o o e $627,297 $545,337 $379,114
Average balance outstanding . .............. . ... ... 0. 649,007 515,225 402,991
Maximumloutstanding at anymonth’send .............. .. ... ..... 808,139 596,162 459,953
Weighted Qverage interest rate at period-end .. .. ... L L. 4.76% 3.82% 2.06%
Weighted average interest rate during the period «................... 4.60 3.01 1.33
Long-term note payable to third party bank (1): _ S
Balance at end of Period . ... e $16000 $§ — § —
Average balance outstanding ... ... ... . 11,879 —_ —
Maximum outstanding at any month’send ........... ... . ........ 16,000 — —
Weighted :average interest rate atperiod-end . .. ....... ... L. 6.15% — % — %
Weighted average interest rate during the period ................... 6.11 - —
Short-term note payable to third party bank: .
Balance al; endofperiod . ... ... ... ... ..., $ 1580 $° — $ 500
Average b!alance outstanding . ........ e 4,822 278 3,603
Maximum outstanding at any month’send ... ..... ... .. ... .. ... .. 15,800 1,500 10,800
Weighted average interest rate at period-end .. .. .......... ... ...... 6.00% — % 2.18%
Weighted ;average interest rate during the period ........... P 5.99 3.68 2.00
Short-term advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank: : - K
Balance al end of period .................. PP $146,030 $ 34,700 $ 30,000
Average b;alance outstanding .. ... ... e 102,938 67,543 48,269
Maximum outstanding at any month’send ....... ... ... ... ... ... 221,835 149,400 97,950
Weighted average interest rate at period-end . ......... ... ... ... 5.33% 4.35% 3.68%
Weighted 'average interest rate during the period ................... 5.29 3385 1.96
Long-term advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank:
Balance atr endofperiod ....... ... . . e $338,978 $315,63t§ $340,078
Average blalance outstanding ... ... e 319663 284,170 334,127
Maximum outstanding at any month’send ......... ... ... ......... 375,966 315,757 350,257
Weighted laverage interest rate at period-end . ...................... 4.53% 3.58% 3.33%
Weighted laverage interest rate during the period ................... 4.40 4.11 318
Junior subordilrlated debentures payable to unconsolidated trusts: b
Balance ar endofperiod ....... . ... ... . . - $ 47421 § 53,610 $ 53,610
Average tlralance outstanding .......... .o il 55,355 53,610 52,329
Maximum outstanding at any month’send ........................ 53,610 53,610 53,610
Weighted'average interest rate at period-end . ... .......... PR 8.48% 7.79% 5.81
Weighted'average interest rate during the period ................... 9.29 6.78 4.94

(1) Note payz{ble arrangement was entered into in Apnl 2006, .
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Capital Resources and Liquidity Management
Capital Resources '

Alabama National’s stockholders’ equity increased by-$281.7 million from December 31, 2005, to $853.6
million at December 31, 2006. This increase was attributable to the following (in thousands):

NELINCOMIE &4\ttt ettt e e ettt e e e raaas e % 79816
Dividends . ... ... i e . (28,126)
Issuance of stock for option exercises and other stock based compensation ............. - (518)
Change in unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale, net of deferred taxes . .- . 2,194
Issuance of stock in purchase business combinations ............ ... ... .. o an. 225,204
Additional paid in capital related to stock based compensation ... .............. ... 1,427
Excess tax deduction on stock options and issuance of shares from deferred compensation

PlaNS I 2,481
Adjustment to initially apply FASB Stratement No.158, netoftax .................... (734)

et ICTBASE . . o oo oottt et e et ettt e e e e $281.744

Under the capital guidelines of their respective regulators, Alabama National and the Banks are currently
required to maintain a minimum risk-based total capital ratio of 8%, with at least 4% being Tier I capital. Tier I
capital consists of common stockholders’ equity, qualifying perpetual preferred stock and minority interests in
equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill. In addition, under the guidelines, Alabama National
and the Banks must maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of Tier I capital to total assets of at least 3%, but
this minimum ratio is typically increased by 100 to 200 basis points for other than the highest rated institutions.

Alabama National exceeded its fully phased-in regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, as set forth in the following table. _ .

ANALYSIS OF CAPITAL
{Amounts in thousands, except percentages)

. Decemher 31,
2006 2005 2004

Tier 1Capital ... ... i e $ 576,127 $ 475535 §$ 427,298
Tier2Capital . .. ... e e - 68,246 52,817 46,483
Total qualifying capital (1) .. ...vereverreieri e $ 644,373 § 528,352 § 473,781
iiisk-adjusted total assets (including off-balance sheet exposures) ..... $5,865,967 “$4,367,900 $3.718,456
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio (4.00% required minimum} ... ......... : 9.82% 10.89% 11.49%
Total risk-based capital ratio (8.00% required minimum) ... .. e 10.98 12.10 - 1274
Tier 1 leverage ratio (4.00% required minimum} ................... 7.95 8.29 8.44

(1) Does not include $0.1 million of the Company’s allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2004 in excess
of 1.25% of nisk-adjusted total assets.
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Each of the Banks is required 10 maintain minimum risk-based and leverage ratios similar to those required
for Alabama Nauonal Each of the Banks exceeded these regulatory minimum capital ratios at December 31,
20006, as set forth in the following table: ':

| - BANK CAPITAL RATIOS ;
Tier1  Total
Risk Risk Tier 1
" Rased Based Leverage
Alabama Nationat BanCorporation .. ............oviieeren e, 9.82% 1098% 7.95%
Fitst AMerican BAnK .. ... ... ouoou sttt 10.07 1121 . 784
Indian River National Bank ... .............cooiriiiiine.., ST 1060 1172 736
First Gulf Bankt, NUAL ... oe i 9.10 1030  7.58
The Peachtree Bank ... ... i 817 . 932 7.46
FlorldaChoweBank...................................- ............... 9.28 10.48 9.21
Community Bank of Naples, N A e 1053 11.78 8.59
Public Bank L. ... 10,52 11.66 8.52
Georgia State Bank ................................................... 1047 11.62 7.79
CypressCoqumaBank.............................‘ .................... 1074 11.80 9.58
Millennium Bank ... ..ot et ettt et 936 1058 751
Bank of Dadeville ........................ R 13.79 1504 731
Alabama Exchange Bank . . . .. S R, . T 1641  17.67 8.2
Required minimums . ... ... .. .. .. . i e 4.00 8.00 4.00

'

In addmon 10 meetmg the minimum regulatory ratios, the regulatory ratios of Alabama National’s
subsidiary Banks (except for The Peachtree Bank, which was adequately capitalized) exceeded the ratios required
for well- capltallzed banks as defined by federal banking regulators. (Subsequent 1o year-end, Alabama National
injected sufficient additional capital into The Peachtree Bank to bring it to well-capitalized levels.) To be
categorized as) well-capitalized, Alabama National’s subsuimry Banks must maintain Total Quahfymg Capital,
Tier I Capital and leverage ratios of at least 10%, 6% and 5%, respectively. -

Liquidity Managemem

Liquidity/management involves monitoring Alabama Nauonal s sources and uses of funds in order to meet
its day-to-day cash flow requirements while maximizing profits. Liquidity represents the ability of an entity to
convert assets into cash or cash equivalents without significant loss and to raise additional funds by increasing
liabilities.

Without propcr llquldlty management, Alabama Nationat will not be able to perform the primary functlon of
a financial mte-rmedmry and would, therefore, not be able to meet the needs of the communities it serves.

Increased liquidity in typical interest rate environments often involves decreasing proﬁts by, investing in
earning assets; with shorier maturities. Liquidity management is made more complex because different balance
sheet compom‘ nts are subject to varying degrees of management control, For example, the timing of maturities of
certain securmes within the investment portfolio is very predictable and subject 1o a high degree of ‘control at the
time investment decisions are made. However, net deposit inflows and outflows are far less predlclablc and are
not subject 10 the same degree of control,

J

Assels 1ri|cluded in Alabama National’s Consolidated Statements of Condition contribute to liquidity
management. {Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resefl, Alabama National’s
primary source of immediate liquidity, averaged $68.8 million during 2006 and were $89.9 million at
December 31, 2006, and averaged $83.6 million during 2005 and were $70.5 million at December 31, 2005, If

i
N 1
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required in short-term liquidity management, these assets could be converted to cash immediately. Cash received
from ihe repayment of investment securities and loans provides a repetitive source of cash that contributes to
liquidity management. Unpledged securities, with a carrying value of approximately $500.1 million at
December 31, 2006, provide Alabama National an opportunity to generate cash by, 1} providing additional
collateral by selling securities under agreements to repurchase, 2) providing collateral to obtain public funds or 3)
providing collateral to borrow directly from the Federal Reserve Bank or the Federal Home Loan Bank. See
“Earning Assets—Loans and Leases” beginning on page 45 and “Earning Assets—Securities” beginning on
page 47.

Liquidity can also be managed using liabilities included in Alabama National’s Consolidated Statements of
Condition, such as federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase and short-term
borrowings. Combined federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase and short-
term borrowings averaged $756.8 million during 2006 and were $789.1 million at December 31, 2006, and
averaged $583.2 million during 2005 and were $580.0 million at December 31, 2005. Overnight borrowing lines
with upstream correspondent banks, totaling $465.7 million at December 31, 2006, of which $376.7 million was
unused, provide additional sources of liquidity to Alabama National on an unsecured basis. The Federal Home
Loan Bank provides secured credit lines to all of Alabama National’s Banks. FHLB credit lines totaled
approximately $2.0 billion as of year-end 2006. The amount that Alabama National can borrow from the Federal
Home Loan Bank is limited to the actual collateral pledged. At December 31, 2006, advances under these lines
totaled $485.0 million, including $146.0 million classified as short-term and 3339.0 million classified as long-
term. Long-term liquidity needs are met through Alabama National’s deposit base (approximately 78.3% of
Alabama National’s deposits at December 31, 2006, are considered core deposits), and the repayment of loans
and other investments as they mature. Alabama National is able to manage its long-term liquidity needs by
adjusting the rates it pays on longer-term deposits, long-term borrowings and the amount and mix of longer-term
investments in its portfolio. ' :

One of the Banks, First American Bank, pledged approximately $123.0 million in loans to the Federal
Reserve Bank of Atlanta as collateral for a discount window credit facility, which management views as a
backup liquidity facility. At December 31, 2006, First American Bank had access to approximately $92.2 million
under this facility, with no outstanding borrowings.

Alabama National, as a stand-alone corporation, has more limited access to liquidity sources than its Banks
and depends on dividends from its subsidiaries as its primary source of liquidity. Alabama National’s liquidity is
diminished by required payments on its outstanding short-term debt, long-term debt, and junior subordinated
debentures. The ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends is subject to general regulatory restrictions, which
may, but are not expected to, have a material negative impact on the liquidity available to Alabama National.
(See Note 19 1o Alabama National’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annua) Report beginning
at page F-1). If circumstances warrant, Alabama National’s short-term liquidity needs can also be met by
additional borrowings of approximately $4.2 million representing the unused portion of Alabama National's
credit facility with an unrelated bank. See “Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities—Borrowed
Funds” beginning on page 51.
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Contractual Obh’g‘arionx

|

Alabama National has contractual obligations to make future payments on debt and lease agreen:lems. Long-
term debt and jllmior subordinated debentures are reflected on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition,
whereas, operal'ing lease obligations for office space and equipment are not recorded on the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition. Alabama National has no unconditional purchase obligations or other long-term
obligations other than as included in the following table. These types of obligations are more fully discussed in
Notes 9 and lOIOf the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report beginning on page F-1.
Total contractual obligations of Alabama National as of December 31, 2006, are as follows.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
' {Amounts in thousands) - ) .

As of December 3, 2006
Due after Due after
Due in 1 year 3 years
1 year through through Due after | .
, or less 3 years S years 5 years Total
Long-term Note Payable .................... $ 999 $ 17502 $ — § — % 18501
Long-term FHUBdebt ...................... 15,576 130,311 85,738 184,889 416,514
Junior subordin:ated debentures payable to
unconsolidated trusts .. ............... ... 4071 8,157 8,146 139,134 159,508

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more e . 1,008,878 152,198 97,848 239 ' 1,259,163
Certificates of deposit less than $100,000 ....... 1,030,681 163,955 61,235 782 1,256,653
Operating lease obligations . ........ ......... , 3.649 6,539 5,198 24,060 , 39,446

Total contractual obligations ............. $2,063,854 $478,662 $258,165 $349,104  $3,149,785
Credit Ex!enlsion Commitments :

Many of Alabama National’s lending relationships, including those with commercial and consumer customers,
contain both futnded and unfunded elements. The unfunded component of these commitments is not recorded on
Alabama National’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. These commitments are more fully1 discussed in
Note 11 of the IConsolidaled Financial Statements included in this Annual Report beginning on page F:1. The table
below summari'fzes the total unfunded credit extension, or off-balance sheet, commitment amounts by expiration date.

! {CREDIT EXTENSION COMMITMENTS .
: (Amounts in thousands) Toon
! ’ ' : As of December 31, 2006 !

Expire after Expire after

Expire in 1 year 3 years : i
. 1 year through through Expire after
or less 3 years 5 years 5 years Total
Unfundedlines ................... ... ... $937.441 $373,540  §76,104  $353,270 . $1,740,355
Letters of credit .. ... J . 60,554 17,675 198 200 78,627

Total credit extension commitments . . . . . . $997.995 $391,215  $76,302  $353,470 $1.818,982

: i
of- Ba!ance! Sheet Arrangements '

Alabama Natlondl s off-balance sheet arrangements are primarily certain investments in low- mcome housing
projects throughout its geographic area. Alabama National enters into such arrangements as a means of' supportmg
local communities and recognizes tax credits relating to its investments. At December 31, 2006, Alabama
National’s mvostment‘; in such projects totaled $0.4 million. Alabama National acts as a limited partner in these
investments and does not exert control over the operating or financial policies of the partnerships. Construction and
permanent financing for these entities was obtained from independent third partics.

Alabama Natlonal has no remaining commitment to fund low income housing investments at December 3]
2006. A!abama National’s risk exposure relating to these entities is generally limited to the amount invested.
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In the normal course of business, the Company is also a party to financial instruments to meet the financing
needs of clients and to mitigate exposure to interest rate risk. Such financial instruments include commitments to
extend credit and certain contractual agreements, including standby letters of credit and financial guarantee
arrangements. See additional discussion of lending refated commitments at “Credit Extension Commitments™ on
page 57.

Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) relcased FASB Statement No. 158,
Emplovers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post Retirement Plans, an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (“FAS 158"). FAS 158 requires companies to recognize a net liability or
asset to report the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other post retirement benefit plans on their
balance sheets starting with -balance -sheets as of December 31, 2006. Alabama National adopted the statement
effective December 31, 2006. See Note 12 of the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report
beginning on page F-1 for more information regarding the Alabama National’s adoption of FAS 158.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. Among other requirements,
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value and also expands
disclosure about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective beginning the
first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Alabama National. )

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108 (“SAB 108”) which provides guidance on quantifying financial statement misstatements. SAB 108
requires financial statement misstatements to be quantified in relation to both its impact on the current year
income statement (the “rollover” approach) and the current year balance sheet (the.“iron curtain” approach). If a
misstatement is material under either approach (the “dual approach”) the financial statements must be adjusted
for the misstatement. ’ '

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF Issue No. 06-04, Accounting for Deferred
Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements
(EITF (06-04). EITF 06-04 establishes that for certain split-dollar life insurance arrangements, an employer
should recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with currently existing accounting pronouncements
based on the substantive agreement with the employee. EITF 06-04 will be effective for.fiscal years beginning
after December 135, 2007. Alabama National is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of EITF 06-04 and
has not yet determined the impact EITF 06-04 will have on the Alabama National’s consclidated financial
statements upon adoption,

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF Issue No. 06-05, Accounting for Purchases of
Life Insurance-Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No 85-4
{“EITF 06-057). EITF 06-05 clarifies the accounting for bank-owned life insurance (“*BOLI”) and stipulates that
policyholders should consider any additional amounts included in the contractual terms of the insurance policies other
than cash surrender value in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract in accordance
with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4. EITF 06-05 also establishes that policyholders should determine the amount
that could be realized under the life insurance contracts assuming the surrender of an individual-life by individual-life
policy. EITF 06-05 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2006. Alabama National has evaluated
the impact of the adoption of EITF 06-05 and determined that the adeption of EITF 06-05 will not have a material
impact on the Alabama National’s consolidated financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB reléased FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, -
an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for
uncertainties in income tax law. This Interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in
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incote tax retu:ms‘ Alabama National will adopt this Interpretation in the first quarter of 2007. The cumulative
effects, if any, Pf applying this Interpretation will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the
beginning of the period of adoption. Alabama National has commenced the process of evaluating the expected
effect of FIN 48 on its Consolidated Financial Statements and has preliminarily determined that adoption will not
have a material 1mpact on the Alabama National’s consolidated financial statements.

In March ”(}06 the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets—
an amendmeml()f FASB Statement No. 140 (“FAS 156”). FAS 156 clarifies when to separately account for
servicing nghts requires separately recognized servicing rights to be initially measured at fair value, and
provides the opuon to subsequently account for those servicing rights (by class) at either fair value or under the
amortization melhod previously required under FASB Staiement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of F inancial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities. For Alabama National this Statement is effective
for calendar year 2007. The adoption of this standard will not have a material impact on the CODSOllddted
financial statements of Alabama National.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hyvbrid Instruments (SFAS 155).
This Statement amends SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities! and SFAS
140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, and resolves
issues addressed in SFAS 133 lmplemcnlallon Issue D1, Application of Statement !33 to Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Fmanual Assets, 1

SFAS 155I permits, but does not require, fair value accounting for any hybrid financial instrument that
contains and embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation in accordance with SFAS 133, and
amends SFAS 140 to eliminate the problem on a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a derivative
financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. In
addition, SFAS 155 establishes a requirement 1o evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify
interests that alre freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain and embedded
derivative requmng bifurcation. This statement also clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips
are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133 and makes clear that concentrations of credit risk in the form of
subordination are not embedded derivatives.

v

SFAS 155, is effective for all finanicial instruments acquired or issued after thé beginning of an eﬁtity‘s fiscal
year that begms after September 15, 2006. The fair value election provided for in this guidance may also be
applied upon adopuon of this Statement for hybrid financial instruments that had been bifurcated under SFAS
133 prior to adopuon of this guidance. The changes required by SFAS 155 are not expected to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of Alabama National.

In .Ianuar},I 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 133 Implementation [ssue B40, Application of Paragraph 13(b) 1o
Securitized Imc"rests in Prepayable Financial Assets, which provides a narrow scope exception from the SFAS
155 reqmremenl to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets for embedded derivatives that would require
bifurcation. Th|e bifurcation tests outlined in paragraph 13(b) of SFAS 133 will not be required for securitized
interests containing only an embedded derivative that is tied to the prepayment risk of the underlying prepayable
financial assets and that meet certain criteria. B40 is required to be applied upon adoption of SFAS 155.

In Februaé’y 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fuir Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, which permits companies to elect to measure certain eligible items at fair value.4 Subsequent
unrealized gains and losses on those items will be reported in earnings. Upfront costs and fees reldted to those
items will be rqported in eamings as incurred and not deferred.

SFAS 159I is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. If a company elects to apply the
provisions of the Statement to eligible items existing at that date, the effect of the remeasurement to fair value
will be reported as a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. Retrospective
application will not be permitted. Alabama National is currently assessing whether it will elect to use the fair
value option for any of its eligible items. :
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On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment, which is a revision of SFAS
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation..SFAS 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and amends SFAS 95, Statemenr of Cush Flows. Generally the approach in
SFAS 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123(R) requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement
based on fair values. Alabama National adopted SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006. Alabama National previously
used a fair value-based method of accounting for compensation costs and had fully adopted and implemented the
expense recognition provisions of SFAS 123, Accordingly, the changes required by SFAS 123(R) did not have a
material impact on the Alabama National’s financial condition or results of operations. See Note 13 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report beginning on page F-1 for more information
regarding the Alabama National’s adoption of SFAS 123(R) and the required disclosures.

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as Alabama
National and its subsidiaries are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, interest rates have a more significant
effect on Alabama National’s performance than do the effects of changes in the general rate of inflation and
change in prices. In addition, interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the same
magnitude as the prices of goods and services. Management seeks to manage the relationships between interest-
sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide interest rate fluctuations, including those resulting
from inflation. See “Interest Sensitivity and Market Risk™ beginning on page 34.

Industry Developments

Certain recently enacted and proposed legislation could have an effect on both the costs of doing business
and the competitive factors facing the financial institutions industry. Alabama National is unable at this time to
assess the impact of this legislation on its financial condition or results of operations. See “Supervision and
Regulation” beginning on page 9. B

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by this item’is contained in ltem 7 heréin under the heading “Interest Sensitivity

and Market Risk” beginning on page 34.
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ITEM 8. FlNr:&NCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA ' !

! CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g
-The Consblidaled Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules of Alabama National
BanCorporatlon and subsidiaries listed in Item 15 have been included in this Annual Report and should be
referred to in their entirety. The Supplementary Financial Information required by Item 302 of Regulation S-K is
set forth below.’
' ' : . oo

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA »
{(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

{Unaudited) !
2006 Quarters 2005 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third 4y  Fourth

Summary of Ope}ations: : : } .
Interest income .,......... $ 90190 3 105928 % 111600 § 125949 § 67844 § 74073 § BO687 $ B6.656
Interest EXpense :......... 37615 46,985 53,404 61,555 20,939 24,986 29,328 34,160
Net interest 1ncome ........ 52,575 58,943 58,196 64,394 46,905 49,087 51,359 52,496
Provision for loan'and lease '

losses ....... frareanes 1,243 1.920 1,130 1,100 1,544 1.991 2,440 1.640
Securities (Iosscs) gams R (734) (516) — — 72 — = —
Noninterest i mcome ........ 15,663 19,326 19,709 20,842 16,711 18,229 18,008 18,613
Noninterest expense . ... ... 42,960 46,275 46,187 49,832 38.661 40.715 40,990 42,114
Netincome ....,......... 17.873 19,317 20,113 22,513 15.480 16,195 17,083 17.915
Dividends on common : : “

stock ....... L. 6,432 6,989 6,994 712 5.742 5744 5772 5,780
Per Common Sh:?lre Data: .
Book Value .............. $ 3395 % 368 % 378 % 4151 % 3132 % 3220 % 328 F 3340
Tangible book value ....... 24.82 24.48 25.56 2541 22.20 23.20 23.65 24.20
Net income (dIlLt[Ld) ....... 1.02 1.03 1.06 C1.07 0.89 0.93 0.98 1.02
Dividends declare‘d ........ 0.375 0.375 0.373 0.375 0.3375 0.3375 0.3375 0.3375
Balance Sheet Hiighlights ‘
At Period-End: : '
Total assets . ............. $6,085.546 $6,794,456 36,870,818 $7.671,274 3$5.471,370 $5,686,127 $5.887.078 $5931,673
Securities (1) ............. 1,137,864 1,172,586 1,207,919 1,265,774 1,195422 L171,281 1.148.333 1,136,487
Loans heldforsale ........ 21,126 17,517 24,184 27,652 30,359 32,247 33,128 14,940
Loans and leases. 'net of B

unearned income .. ... ... 4,247,199 4812387 4.874,244 5456,136 3,639.617 3,848,687 4.059919 4,144,095
Allowance for loan and lease '

losses .. ..... RRRRRRRTS 53,848 60,739 61,354 68,246 47,826 49,637 51,679 52,815
Deposits ...... e 4414826 4855970 4,790,982 5567603 4075536 4,184,167 4,269,593 4,343,264
Shont-term debt ........... 30,800 87.800 . 229.635 161,830 47,500 83,225 78,000 34,700
Long-termdebt ........... 378.431 445,576 378,569 402,399 330,600 311,512 311,425 369,246
Stockholders® eqlzity ....... 582,363 687,091 706,113 853,623 532,835 549297 562,448 571,879

(1) Does not include trading securities. i

ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS AND FINANC[AL

D]‘;CLOSURE
| !
- None. : |
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ITEM 9A, CONTROL AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Changes in Internal
Control over Financial Reporting

As of December 31, 2006, the end of the period covered by this report. Alabama National carried out an
evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of Alabama National’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934).
Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that Alabama
National’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed
in Alabama National’s periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified.

There were no changes in Alabama Nalional’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, Alabama National’s ‘internal control over
financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Alabama National’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financtal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Alabama National’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: ‘

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transaciions and dispositions of the assets of Alabama National;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of Alabama National; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of Alabama National’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Alabama National’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in fnternal Control-Integrated Framework.
Management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 excludes the
operations of The Peachtree Bank, which Alabama National acquired on October |, 2006. The Peachtree Bank
represented approximately 7.5%, 8.5% and 9.4% of Alabama National’s consolidated total assets, loans and
leases (net of unearned income), and deposits, respectively, as of December 31, 2006, and approximately 3.8% of
Alabama National's consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Based on its assessment and those criteria, management has concluded that Alabama National maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006.
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Managemem s assessment of the effectiveness of Alabama National's internal control over financial
reporting as of li)ecembcr 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an mdependent registered
public accountmg firm, as stated in their report which appears herein. -

|
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION L
i : i
None, '

j PART I : " )

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Alabama Nauonal has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for directors, ofﬁcers (including
Alabama National’s Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers) and employees, known as the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics. A copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s 20{13 Annual Report on Form 10-K. :

Other mfml"mdtlon required by this Item regarding executive officers is included in Part I of this Form 10-K
under the capuon “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in accordance with Instruction 3 of the Instructions to
Paragraph (b) olf Item 401 of Regulation S-K. .

l .

Other info}mation required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of
Form 10-K from Alabama National's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with Iht;: Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A. '

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The mformanon required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General lnslmctlon G(3) of
Form 10-K from Alabama National’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with thé Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A. !

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS tj

The mfon]nauon required by this ltem relating to security ownership of certain benefi cial owners and
management and securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plansis incorporated by reference
pursuant to Ge}leml Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K from Alabama National’s definitive Proxy Statement for the
2007 Annual Meetmg of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant (o
Regulation 14A.

ITEM 13. Cll RTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The mformauon required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of
Form 10-K frO{n Alabama National’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A, N

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. ‘-

The lnformauon required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General lnstruclmn G(3) of
Form 10-K from Alabama National’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A, .

| :
63




PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS ANb FINANCIAL STA'I"EMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Alabama National and its subsidiaries, included herein (beginning
on page F-1), are as follows:

Report of [ndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm—PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition—December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Income—Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2{_]04

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income—Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

.Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity—Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 .

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

(2)(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

The financial statement schedules required to be included pursuant to this Item are not included herein
because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto
which are incorporated by reference at subsection (a)(1) of this Item, above.

(a)(3) and (b) Exhibits.

The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index beginning on page 67 of this Form 10-K are filed herewith or are
incorporated herein by reference. '




SIGNATURES

1
.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized; on this the
Ist day of March 2007.

ALABAMA NATIONAL BANCORPORATION

By: /s/__Joun H. HoLcowms, II

John H. Holcomb, HI,
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Pursuant m the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been slgned below by
the following p(,rsons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates 1nd1caled

! Name Title S, %
Is/ JOH;N H. HoLcowms, 111 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 1, 2007
Jokin H. Holcomb, 111 (principal executive officer)
/s! Dan M. DaviD Vice Chairman and Director March 1, 2007
.Dan M. David
s/ RIC'HARD MURRAY, IV President, Chief Operating Officer and Marciﬁ 1, 2007
Ri'chard Murray, IV Director n
/s! WlLL]lAM E. MATTHEWS, V Executive Vice President and Chief Marcl; 1, 2007
William E. Matthews, V Financial Officer ‘
/s/ SHELLY S. WILLIAMS Senior Vice President and Controller Marc}ﬁ 1, 2007
S:helly S. Williams (principal accounting officer)
Is/ ‘:N Ray BARNES Director March 1, 2007
'W. Ray Barnes
s/ BOBBY A. BRADLEY Director : March 1, 2007
Eobby A. Bradley '
/s! GRIFFIN A. GREENE Director March 1, 2007
(Eﬁfﬁn A. Greene
/st 1ot D. Jonns Director ' March 1, 2007
John D. Johns
{s/ JOH|N J. MCMAHON, JR. Director Marcfil 1, 2007
Join J. McMahen, Ir. ‘:
/s/ C.!PH!LLIP MCWANE Director Marc_h 1, 2007
C. Phillip McWane !
/s G. RUFFNER PAGE, JR. Director Marqh 1, 2007
G. Ruffner Page, Jr,
: n




Name

/8! JoHN M. PLUNK

John M. Plunk

/s!  W.STANCIL STARNES

W. Stancil Starnes

/s/ WiLLIAM D. MONTGOMERY

William D. Montgomery
/s/ C.LLoYD NIX

C. Lloyd Nix

/s/  JoHN V. DENSON

John V. Denson

/s! 'W.EDGAR WELDEN

W, Edgar Welden

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Director
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Exhibit

Number

2.1
3.1
32
33
10.1
10.1A

10.1B

10.2

10.2A

10.2B

10.2C

10.2D

10.2E

EXHIBIT INDEX '

Description

A'greemem and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 24, 2006, by and between Alabama National
'BanCorporation and The PB Financial Services Corporation (filed as Exhibit 2.1 10 Alabama
Natlonal s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 24, 2006 and mcorporated herein by
reference)

Restated Centificate of Incorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report
,on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

First Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
"National’s Annual Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 and mcorporated
! herein by reference) i

Amended and Restated ByLaws (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama-National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

i r.
Lease Agreement dated June 1, 2000 between Woodward Properties, LLP and NBC (filed as an
. Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September

30 2000 and incorporated herein by reference) _'

Flrsl Amendment to Lease Agreement dated December 31, 2001 between Woodward Properties,
. LLP and NBC (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
yedr ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated herem by reference)

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated February 28, 2003 between Woodward Properties,
. LLP and NBC (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
i year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference) '

(_Iiredit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth Bank of Alabama

dated as of December 29, 1995 relating 1o a $23,000,000 Revolving Loan (filed as an Exhibit to

+ Alabama National's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1995 and
! incorporated herein by reference)

Promi%sory Note between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth Bank of Alabama
dated as of December 29, 1995 relating to a $23,000,000 Revolving Loan (filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1995 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Pledge Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth Bank ,of Alabama
" dated as of December 29, 1995 relaling 1o a $23,000,000 Revolving Loan (filed as an Exhibit to

Alabama Naticnal’s Annual Repon on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1995 and
I incorporated herein by reference)

Iflrst Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth
Bank dated February 10, 1997 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1997 and incorporated herein by refﬁrence)

uecond Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporauon and

. AmSouth Bank dated January 19, 1998 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama Nauonal’s Annual

| Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dcccmber 31, 1997 and incorporatéd herein by
reference) -

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation a_ﬁd AmSouth
| Bank dated June 23, 1999 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference)
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Exhibit
Number

10.2F

10.2G

10.2H

10.21

10.2}

10.2K
10.2L
10.2M
10.2N
10[26
10.2P
10.2Q
10.2R

10.28

Description
Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and

AmSouth Bank dated June 20, 2000 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth
Bank dated May 31, 2001 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference)

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth

Bank dated May 31, 2002 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

Fourth AmSouth Bank Note Modification Agreement dated May 31, 2002 (filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and
AmSouth Bank dated May-31, 2003 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

Fifth AmSouth Bank Note Modification Agreement dated May 31, 2003 (filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Eighth. Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and
AmSouth Bank dated May 31, 2004 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

Sixth AmSouth Bank Note Modification Agreement dated May 31, 2004 (filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference) '

Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National BanCorporation and AmSouth
Bank, effective May 31, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated June 6, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Seventh AmSouth Bank Note Modification Agreement, effective May 31, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit
to Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 6, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference)

Tenth Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National and AmSouth Bank, dated
April 3, 2006 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 3, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Eighth AmSouth Note Modification Agreement, effective April 3, 2006 {filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 3, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Revolving Note executed by Alabama National in favor of AmSouth Bank dated April 3, 2006
{filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 3, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Pledge Agreement dated April 3, 2006 between AmSouth Bank and Alabama National (filed as an
Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 3, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference) ‘
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Exhibit
Number

10.2T
10.2U
10.2V
10.3*
10.3A%*
10.3B*
10.3C*

10.3D*

10.4*

10.4A%*

10.5*

10.5A*

10.5B*

. Description ‘
Elelventh Amendment to Credit Agreement between Alabama National and AmSouth Bank, dated

December 8, 2006 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

NirEnh AmSouth Bank Note Modification Agreement dated December 8, 2006 (filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 8 2006 and mcorporated
herein by reference)

First Amendment o Pledge Agreement dated December 8, 2006 beiween AmSouth Bank and
Alabama National (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Third Amendment- and Restatement of the Alabama National BanCorporation Performance Share
Plan {filed as an Exhibit to Alabama Naticnal's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2005
and incorporated herein by reference)

First Amendment to the Third Amendment and Restatement of the Alabama National
BanCorporauon Performance Share Plan (filed as an Exhibit 10- Alabama National’s Annual
Repon on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference) y

Sef‘ond Amendment to the Third Amendment and Restatement of the Alabama National
BanCorporauon Performance Share Plan

Fol'rm of Notice of Award under the Third Amendment and Restatement of the Alabama National
- BanCorporation Performance Share Plan (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National's Current
Report on Form §-K dated January 25, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Fo!rm of Notice of Long-Term PSP Award under the Third Amendment and Restatement of the
'Alabama National BanCorporation Performance Share Plan (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 17, 2007 and mcorporaled herein by
reference) .

Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation for Directors Who Are
Not Employees of the Company (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference)

Aljnendmenl One to the Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation
for Directors Who Are Not Employees of the Company (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated
‘herein by reference)

Allabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation by Nc'm-Employee
Directors of the Subsidiary Banks, and three amendments thereto (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
‘National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and mcorporated
'herem by reference)

Amendment Four to the Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation
iby Non-Employee Directors of the Subsidiary Banks (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 and incorporated
herein by reference) o

Amendment Five to the Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation
‘by Non-Employee Directors of the Subsidiary Banks (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s
lAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and mcorporated herein by
reference)
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Exhibit
Number

10.6*
10.6A*
10.6B*
lQ.?*
10.7A%*
10.7B*
10.8*
10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

Description

Alabama National BanCorporation 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 and incorporated
herein by reference) .

Amendment Number One to the Alabama National BanCorporation 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan
(filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

Amendment Number Two to the Alabama National BanCorporation 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan
{filed as an Exhibit 10 Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended
September 30, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation by Key Employees (filed
as an Exhibit to Alabama National’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference)

Amendment One to the Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation by
Key Employees (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Amendment Two to the Alabama National BanCorporation Plan for the Deferral of Compensation
by Key Employees (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 1, 2000 between John R. Bragg and
- Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 1, 2000 between John H. Holcomb, 11
and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 1, 2000 between William E. Matthews,
V and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by
reference) .

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 1, 2000 between Richard Murray, IV
and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 1, 2000 between Dan M. David and
Alabama National BanCorporation.(filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agrecménl dated as of January 1, 2000 between James R. Thompson,
III and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated February 18, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated as of January 1, 2000 between Shelly S. Williams and
Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

Employment Continuation Agreement dated as of September 21, 2000 between John R. Bragg and
Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)
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Exhibit
Number

10.15A%

10.16*

10.16A*

10.17*

10.17A*

10.18*

10.18A*

10.19*

10.19A%*

10.20*

10.21%

10.22*

. Description

Fil:'St Amendment to Employment Continuation Agreement between John R, Bragg and Alabama
National BanCorporation, dated as of December 30, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and mcorporated

herein by reference) . :

Er,nployment Continuation Agreement dated as of September 21, 2000 between John H. Holcomb,
IIII and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Fi:rst Amendment to Employment Continuation Agreement between John H. Holcomb, III and
Alabama National BanCorporation, dated as of December 30, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit to
;Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005 and
mcorporated herein by reference)

Employment Continuation Agreement dated as of September 21, 2000 between William E.
lMa[thews, V and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s
:Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Décember 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by
|reference) .

First Amendment to Employment Continuation Agreement between William E. Matthews, V and
(Alabama National BanCorporation, dated as of December 30, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit to
'Alabama National's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and
mcorporated herein by reference)

Er_nployment Continuation Agreement dated as of September 21, 2000 between RichardiMurray, v
‘and Alabama Naticnal BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report
.on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)

First Amendment to Employment Continuation Agreement between Richard Murr'ay, IV and

' Alabama National BanCorporation, dated as of December 30, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit to
'Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005 and
i 'incorporated herein by reference)

Employment Continuation Agreement dated as of September 21, 2000 between Dan M. David and
! Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by ref'erence)

FlrSt Amendment to Employment Continuation Agreement between Dan M. David ahd Alabama
" National BanCorporation, dated as of December 30, 2005 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
| National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2005 and 1ncorporated
herem by reference) v

Employmen_t Continuation Agreement dated as of February 20, 2007 between James R. Thompson,
j' Il and Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current
_Report on Form &-K dated February 20, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference)

Second Amendment and Restatement of the Alabama National BanCorporation Annual Incentive
! Plan (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference)

! - .
Amended and Restated Performance Share Plan for Certain Directors-of Citizens’ and People’s
. Bank, N.A. (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year
ended December 31, 2002 and mcorporated herein by reference) B
1 il
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Exhibit
Number

10.22A%

10.22B*
10.23*
10.24*
10.25*
10.26*
10.27*

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

Description

Amendment One to the Amended and Restated Performance Share Plan for Certain Directors of
Citizens’ and People’s Bank, N.A., dated October 16, 2002 (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference) :

Amendment Two to the Amended and Restated Performance Share Plan for'Certain Directors of
Citizens’ and People’s Bank, N.A. (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Millennium Bank Directors’ Stock Option Plan, and two amendments thereto (filed as an Exhibit to
Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Millennium Bank Officers’ and Employees’ Stock Option Plan, and one amendment thereto {filed
. as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference) .

Cy‘press Bank Directors’ Stock Option Plan (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference) ’ .

Indian River 1999 Director Fee Stock Option Plan, and two amendments thereto (filed as an Exhibit
to Alabama Nattonal’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Indian River Banking Company 1999 Stock Option Plan (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference) '

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated December 19, 2002 among State Street Bank and
Trust Company of Connecticut, N.A., Alabama National BanCorporation, and others (filed as an
Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

Indenture dated December 19, 2002 between Alabama National BanCorporation and State Street
Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, N.A. (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by
reference) '

Guarantee Agreement dated December 19, 2002 between Alabama National BanCorporation and
State Street Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, N.A. (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference)

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated September 26, 2003, between Alabama National
BanCorporation, U. S. Bank National Association, and others (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Seplember 30, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Indenture dated September 26, 2003, between Alébama National BanCorporatiofl and U.S. Bank
National Association (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

" Guarantee Agreement dated September 23, 2003, between Alabama National BanCorporation and

U.S. Bank National Association (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)
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Exhibit
Number

10.34

10.34A

10.35

10.35A

10.36

10.36A

10.37*

10.37A%

10.38

10.39*
10.40
10.41
10.42

10.42A
10.42B

1 ‘1
|
' ' " Description

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated September 30, 2002, among Indian River Banking
Company, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and others (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
Nanonal s Annual Repon on Form 10 K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and mcorporated
herein by reference)’

Fil;‘S[ Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated November 19, 2003, among
Indian River Banking Company, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Alabama National
BanCorporation and Others (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
’Fo:m 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

Indenture dated September 30, 2002, between Indian River Banking Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, National” Association (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by referenele)

First Supplemental Indenture dated November 19, 2003 among Indian River Banking Company,
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit
to Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endcd December 31 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated September 30, 2002, between Indian River
Banking Company and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama
National’s Annual Report on Form lO K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and mcorporated
‘herein by reference)

Fqut Amendment to Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated November 19, 2003 by
'and among Indian River Banking Company Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and
| Alabama National BanCorporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National's Annual Report on
:Form L0-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

Alabama National BanCorporation Performance Share and Deferral Plan for Non-Employee
Dlrectors of Affiliate Banks (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and mcorporated herein by reference)

Amendment One to the Alabama National BanCorporation Performance Share and Deferral Plan
for Non-Employee Directors of Affiliste Banks (filed as.an Exhibit to Alabama National’s
"Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference)
Al

greemenl and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 27, 2005, by and between Aldbama National
BanCorporauon and Florida Choice Bankshares, Inc. (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s
' Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 27, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Slummary of Compensation Arrangements with Named: Executive Officers and Directors (effective
+January 1, 2007)

Summary of Compensation Payable to Non-Employee Directors (filed as an Exhibit 10 Alabama
' National's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 24, 2006, by and between Alabama National and
, The PB Financial Services Corporation (filed as an Exhibit to Alabama National’s Current
i Report on Form 8-K dated May 25, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference) N

Florida Choice Bank Officers’ and Employees’ Stock Option Plan
Amendmem No. 1 to Florida Choice Bank Officers’ and Employees’ Stock Option Plal;}'

Amendment No. 2 to Florida Choice Bank Officers’ and Employees’ Stock Option Plan
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Exhibit
Number

10.42C

10.43

10.43A
10.44

10.44A
10.45
10.46
10.47
10.47A
10.48

10.49

14.1

23.1.

- 311

31.2
32.1

Description

Amendment No. 3 to Florida Choice Bank Officers’ and Employees’ Stock Option Plan
. The Peachtree Bank |998 Stock Opuon Plan - '
First Amendment to The Peachtree Bank 1998 Stock Option Plan

Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of December 20, 2002 between The PB Financial Services
Corporation and Wilmington Trust Company.

First Supplememal Indenture dated as of October' 1, '2006 between Alabama National
BanCorporation and Wilmington Trust Company

Guarantee Agreemcnt dated as of December 20, 2002 between The PB anancial Services
Corporation and Wllmmgton Trust Company

Amended and Restated qut Agreement dated as of December 20, 2002 among The PB Financial
_ Services Corporauon Wllmmgton Trust Company and others ‘

Indenture dated as of March 29, 2005 between The PB Financial Services Corporation and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association :

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of Seplember 29, 2006 between A]abama National
BanCorporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

Guarantee Agreement dated as of March 29, 2005 between The PB Financial Services Corporation
and JP Morgan Chase Bank, National Association

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trllst of PB Capital Trust Il dated as of March 29, 2005,
aamong The PB Financial Services Corporation, Chase Bank USA National Association,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, and others

Alabama Natlonai BanCorporation Code of Business Conducl and Ethics (filed as an Exhibit to
- Alabama National’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Subsidiaries of Alabama National BanCorporation

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers L.L.P.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursvant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002 .

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Alabama National BanCorporation:

We have comp]!eted integrated audits of Alabama National BanCorporation’s consolidated financial statements
and of its 1ntern|al control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Umlcd States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are
presented belowr. . - .

Consolidated financial statements
| .
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and the related consolidated

statements of i income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in
all material respects the financial position of Alabama National BanCorporation and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period énded December 31, 2006 in conforniity with accounting principles generally accepled in the
United States of América. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s managemem Our
responmbllny is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining,
on a test basi&l. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, a:';sessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

!

Internal control over financial reporting

"Also, in our ()plnlOn management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” which appears under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective
internal comro'l over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integraied Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (r‘OSO) is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reportmg as of
December 31,2006, based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and' for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal .control over
financial rcpomng in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those slandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

' i
An audit of imjemal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial repohing, evaluating management’s assessment, lesting and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

| b
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the 1'ellab|hty of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in
accordance wnh generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those. policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

’ I
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accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. '

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. ‘

As described in Management’s Report on.Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded
The Peachtree Bank from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006
because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination on October 1, 2006. We have also
excluded The Peachtree Bank from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. The Peachiree Bank
represented approximately 7.5%. 8.5% and 9.49% of Alabama National’s consolidated total assets, loans and
leases (net of unearned income), and deposits, respectively, as of December 31, 2006, and approximately 3.8% of
Alabama National’s consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Birmingham, Alabama
March 1, 2007




Alabama National BanCorporation and SubS|d1ar|es
Consolldated Statements of Financial Condition ' :
(in thousanqs, except share data)

December 31, 2006 and 2005

2006 , 2005

: . ASSETS ]:
Cash and due from banks ... ..... ................................................. $ 200209, § 189256
ln[eresl-bearingd:epositsinolherbanks..........................................:...‘. 16,350 19.428
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements toresell ...................... 89,865 - 70.472
Trading qecunues atfairvalue ... i 532 - 402
Investment <ecunues (Fair value $705,460 and $576,424 for 2006 and 2003, respectively) . ... ... 716,406 , 591,153
Securities avmlablle forsale, at fair value ... ... ... . . e e 549,368 545,334
Loans held for sale . ... .o e 27,6521 14,640
Loans and leases 1. . . ....... A 5',46I,40()“ 4,147,739
Uneamed INCOME' . ... .. .. U (5.264)  (3,644)
Loans and leases, net of uneamed income .. .. ... .. e 5456,136 4,144,095
Allowance for loan and lease [0sses ............ ..o i (68,246)% (52,815)
Nel loansand leases . ...... ... ... . ... ... L.l 5.387.890 4,091,280
Property, equ1pml*m and leasehold IMPrOVEMENtS, MEE ... v vttt ir e iiiar et an s 155,176/ 114,159
Goodwill ... .. e T 314276 . 148,071
Other intangible A8Se15, MEL . . ...\ttt et e P 16,842 " 9,358
Cash surrender value of life insurance ... i 104,992, - 74,593
Receivables from investment diviSion CUSIOMErS . . ... ... .ot e 1,114 - 7,166
OUNET 5518 . & . oo it et et e e e e e e e e 90.602 56,061
TOtal BSSEIS ... ..o _$7.671.274" $5.931.673
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY :
Liabilities ! : ' .
Deposits - ! ’
Nonintérest bearing . ... ..ottt i e e $ 849,127 . § 729,045
INIEIESE DEATING - . . - o o oy e e 4.718.476" 3,614,219
Tdtaldepoqm..............................' ......................... 5.567.603 4,343,264
Federal funds pun:h.:qed and securities sold under agreements to repurchase .................. 627,297 545,337
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ... ... . i e i 57,076! 61,361
Payables for c.(:currmeq purchased for investment division customers ................ .. .0... 1446t 5.886
Shon[ermborrowmgs....................................f ....................... 161,830 34,700
Long-termdebt ... .. o e 402,399 | 369,246
TOMETABIES . . o2 ee e oo oo 6817.651" 5.359.794
Commitments an:d contingencies {see Notes 10 and 11) i ;
Stockholders™ equity: :
Comm(l)n stock, $1 par; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 20,562,467 and 17,124,3 l6 ) 1
shar( s issued at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively ..............oo....s T 20,5624 17,124
Addlt]onal paid-incapital . .. ... . 573,756/ 347,434
Retained s 1 14 P . 266.668 , 216,144
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, netoftax .......... ... ... . ... (7.363) . (8.823)
T(:nlal stockholders” eqUILY .. ... oo 853.623 571,879
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .............. ... ... . ... ... ... $7.671,274 1 $5,931,673
‘ inkiddetheel
1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
|
' F-3
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Alabama National BanCorporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income .
(in thousands, except share data) .
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
2006 2005 2004
Interest income:
Interestand feesonloans . ......... ... . . i e $376,680 $258,033 $184.464
INtErest ON SECUTTLES . . ..ottt ittt it e et i i 52,715 48,149 43,611
Interest on deposits inotherbanks ....... ... ... i 723 274 65
Interest on trading securities . ................... ... P 50 - 21 55
Interest on federal funds sold . ... ... o i 3,499 2,783 99]
Total INterest INCOME .. . ... oottt it it e iin i tiea e r it meaieaeas 433,667 309,260 229,186
Interest expense:. ' '
Interest on deposits ......... e e 144025 77,487 46,348
Interest on federal funds purchased . .. .. ... . L e 29,856 15,515 5,345
Interest on short-term BOMOWINGS . . .. ...t e 5,737 2,614 1,027
Interest on long-term DOMMOWINES . . ..ot vu et it iii e e iiiie i iiiea e 19941 - 13,797 13,214
Total INETESTEXPENSE . . ...ttt i ann e 199.559 109413 65,934
Net IMIErESLIACOME . . oo ottt ettt et et ettt 234,108 199,847 163,252
Provision for loan and lease losses ... ... i e 5,393 7.615 4,949
Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses ................ 228715 192232 158,303
Noninterest income: - ‘ :
Service charges on deposit aCCOURES ... ..ottt o i s 15,896 16,335 17,126
Investment Services INCOME .. .. ... .. . i it or e aeenens 4,291 4,210 11,652
Wealth management inCOME ... ... ..o i ot 21.902 19,220 16,863
Gain on sale of mortgages .......... P 10.990 12,522 11,566
INSUrance COMIMISSIONS . . oo vttt et i e ettt s i et ae e 4.047 3.549 3,604
Commercial mortgage banking income .......... e 2,251 525 —
Bank owned life insurance ....... ... .. i e e 3,632 2,886 2,690
Securities (l0SSES) ZAINS .. .. ..ottt it e (1.250) 72 —
Other ..... e e s 16,531 12.404 9,284
Total noninterest income . . .. ... R 78,290 71,723 72,785
Noninterest expense: ' : . -
Salaries and employee benefits ... ..o o o 96,717 85,402 74,983
Commission based compensation ........... . ..o i 17,961 15,458 17,500
Occupancy and equipment expense, net ............... B 20.656 17,653 15,488
Amortization of intangibles . .. ... ... o e 4911 3,189 3,034
Legal and professional fees ... ... ... ... . e 4,527 5,400 5,235
DR ot ettt e e e T 40422 35,378 32,082
Total NONIBLErESt EXPENSE .. oot e 'ttt iee s ieie e iiaanaars s 185,194 162,480  148.322
Income before provision for income taxes ................. e 121,811 101,475 82,766
Provision for INCOME taXes .. ... .. ... ittt ia i iinaaann 41,995 34,802 28,122
NEtIMCOME ottt ettt e ettt et e ie et e eas $ 79816 3 66,673 % 54644
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
5 T O U 18,942 17,216 15,848
B F 19,147 17,445 16,100
Earnings per common share: '
23 S OO $ 421 $ 387 § 345
DIIULEd . . . . e e $ 407 $ 382 § 339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Alabama Natlonal BanCorporation and Sub5|d|ar|es
Consolldated Statements of Comprehensive Income ,
(in thousands) i
Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 and 2004

2006 2005 . 2004
NELICOME .« ol e e e et ettt e e e e e e e e e e $79.816° $ 66,673 $54,644
Other comprehznsive income: ‘ .
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale arising during the
period ... e 2,156  (12,114) (1,767)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net (losses) gains included in net ;
im:omﬁ| ..................................................... (1,250) 72 —
Other comprehensive income texpense). before taxes - .. ... e 3406 (12,186) (1.,767)
Provision for (benefit of) income taxes related to items of other comprehensive : '
INCOME (EXPEASE) et te ettt et e e 1212 (4,329) (624)
Other compreh}:nsive income (loss) ......... e 2,194 (7,861) (1,143)
Comprehensive INCOMME . . ..o\ttt ettt et e $82,010 8 58,812 $53,501

l
! ! I

+

| . B R 3

i . ., ik
)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Alabama Natlonal BanCorporation and Sub5|d|ar|es
Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows - -
(in thousands) .
Years Ended lDecember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

CoL 2006 2005 © 2004
Cash flows from'operaling activities ‘
TG 11 ToL 0 1 1= P $ 79816 § 66,673 $ 54,644
Adjustments to reconcile net income 1o net cash provided by operating - - |
activities! : b
Provision for loan and lease losses .. .. ....... e e 5,393 7.615 1 4,949
Deferred 12X PrOVISION . ...\ ov'eereerneeeeeinennnns. (5,135 (6,027)" 795
Depre('lauon and amortization ... .......... ... .. o 14 887 9,984 9,664
Gain on disposition and liquidation of assets and liabilities . .. .. (590) 230t (84)
Securmes losses(Zains) . ... ..ol 1,250 (72). —
(Gam) loss on disposal of other real estate .............. e (13 (645)". (101
Write- Idown of otherreal estate owned ............. ... ..... 62 140 173
Income earned on bank owned tife insurance ................ (3,632) (2,886) - (2,690)
Stock based COMPENSAION ...\ttt ee et eeannnns 1,428 2,229 - 1,784
Net’ amomzauon of securities .. .......... ... ... .. .. ...... ‘ (8) 303 152
Net (mcrease) decrease in trading securities ................. (130) 188 : (481)
Change inloans held forsale ........... ... ... ... .. ... : (12,712) 7,373 (5.898)
(Incre;'lse) decrease inotherassets . .................. e (10,482) . (14,77])|  18,739
(Decr(':ase) increase in other liabilities ............ ... ....... (21,445) 16,520 ©  (14,346)
Other |l i e 39) (130)" 134
Net cash provided by operating activities ............... 48,650 ~ 86264 ' ' 67,434
Cash flows froni investing activities : '
Purchases Of inVeStmeEnt SECUTIES . . . oo v ev et eeeee e (216,986) (121,777) (449,219)
Proceeds flf'om calls and maturities of investment securities . ........ 94,229 99,143 177,205
Purchases of securities available forsale ........................ (37,079) (119,162) (589,839)
Proceeds fl"om sales of securities available forsale ...... ... ...... 49.779 15,987 12,866
Proceeds fll'om calls and mawurities of securities available for sale . ... 66,570 177,312 7 736,325
Net decrease (increase) in interest-bearing deposits in other banks ... | 4,478 . 1,846 (11,255)
Net decrea:se (increase) in federal funds sold and securities purchased :
under agreementstoresell ......... ... . 4,998 30,498 (82,860}
Netincrease in JOAnS .. ... 0t e e e  (465,483)  (651,774) (386,078)
Purchases of property, equipment and leasehold improvements ... ... (35,468)  (21,735),  (16,999)
Proceeds from sale of property and liquidation of assets . ;... ....... 813 635", 122
Proceeds fli'om sale of other real estateowned . ................... 733 3,409 2,347
Cash paid for bank owned life insurance . ....................... (18,428) 27 (7.071)
Net cash a'cquired in business combinations .. ................... 12,311 3,800 35,166
Il\Tct cash used in investing aclivities . .................. (539,533) (581,845) (579,290}

i i
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financiat statements.
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Alabama National BanCorporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Cash flows from financing activities

Netincrease indeposits ............ i,
Increase {decrease) in federal funds purchased and securities sold
under agreements torepurchase . . ........... .. ... ... . ...,
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings .. ...............
Proceeds from long-termdebt ...... ... ... .. ... ... . ... ...,
Repayments of long-termdebt ... ......... ... ... ... . ... ...
Dividends on commonstock . ......... ... i
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation . ..............
Proceeds from underwritten public offering, net ......... FE PP
Other e

Net cash provided by financing activities . .............. TR

Increase in cash and cash equivalents ..................

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .......................

Cash and cash equivalents,end of year ....................... L

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid forinterest . ........ ... ... ... ... L

Cash paid forincome taxes . ...... ... ... i,

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing activities:

Foreclosure of otherreal estateowned .........................
Transfer of property to other real estate owned . .. ....... PP

Change in unrealized holding gains and losses on securities available
forsale ... . R

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in merger transactions
(Note 2)
Assets acquired in business combinations . ..................

Liabilities assumed in business combinations ................

Common stock issued in connection with business

COmMbBINALIONS . .. .. e e .

2006 2005 2004
317,471 408,541 529,198
69,125 166223  (21,127)
122,576-  (17.017)  (20,150)
171,000 168,000 24,000
(152,464)  (173,000) —
(28,126)  (23,038)  (20,235)
2481 _ _
— — 49,673
(227) 101 2,438
501,836  :529,810 543,797
10,953 34229 31941
189,256 155,027 123,086

" $ 200209 $ 189256 $155.027
$ 192,949 '$ 104979 $ 64.988
$ 56677 $ 31,719 § 22,847
$ 887 $ 199 $ 2365
$ —_ 8§ — % 886
$ 2,194 $ (7.861) $ (1,143)
$1,206,590 $ 4,991 $874.916
$ 953012 $ 4,643 $748.401
3,358 65 3016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Alabama b'latlonal BanCorporation and SubS|d|arles
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . o

|
.

December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004 ‘ '

1.

y

Nature of f!usiness and Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

Alabama National BanCorporation and Subsidiaries {the Company) provi'clés a full range of b?ﬁiking and

- bank-related services to individual and corporate customers through its twelve subsidiary banks, located in

Alabama, Georgla and Florida. . i
Basis of Presentatlon and Principles of Consolidation ¢

The accounung and reporting policies of the Company conform with accountmg principles generally
accepted m the United States of America and with general financial services industry "practices. The
consohdated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant
1ntercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

'
r

Use of Estilmates . :

In preparin‘g the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Staies of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the statement of condition dates and revenues and expenses
for the penods shown. Actua! results could differ from those estimates. Estimates that are particularly
suscepuble'to significant changes in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan and
lease lossel,, valuation of goodwill, other intangible assets and related impairment analyses benefit plan
obllgatlom and expenses and income tax assets and liabilities, .
Cash and k,ash Equivalents

For purpov's of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and due from banks

Securities. -
Investment securities are stated at amortized cost as a result of management’s ability and intent (o hold the
securities unul maturity. Premiums and discounts are amortized/accreted using the effective mterest method.
||
Securities avallable for sale are those securities intended to be held for an indefinite period of time. The
Company may sell these securities as part of its asset/liability strategy in response to changes in interest
rates, changec; in prepayment risk, or similar factors. Securities available for sale are recorded ag fair value.
Unreallz'::dI holding gains and losses on secuirities classified as available for sale are carried as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity, net of taxes.

Trading secunnes are securities held for sale and are stated at fair value. Bond purchases and sales are
recorded on the trade date. Accounts receivable from and accounts payable to bond customers represent
security transactions entered into for which the securities have not been delivered as of the statement of
financial cond:uon dates. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities classified as trading are reported
in eammg' during the period in which they occur. . i

b .
Gains and losses on the sale of securities are computed using the specific identification method. :

Loans aml Leases

Interest m'come with respect to loans is recognized when earned. Loans are reported at [he]l‘ outstanding
principal balances net of any unearned income, charge-offs, and unamortized deferred fees and costs. Loan
origination fees and costs are deferred and recognized as adjustments to income over the llfe of the related
loans. Unearned income is amortized to income using the interest method.

|
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Alabama National BanCorporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

The Company provides equipment financing to its customers through a variety of lease arrangements.
Leases are carried at the aggregate of lease payments 10 be received plus estimated residual value of the
leased property, less unearned income.

A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable-that the Company will be
unable to collect alt amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans
are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, or as a practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value-of the
collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. When the fair value of the impaired loan is less than the
recorded investment in the loan, the impairment is recorded through a specific reserve allocation which is a
component of the allowance for loan and lease losses. . '

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses is established through a provision for loan and leaqe losses charged
to expense. Loans and leases are charged against the allowance for loan and lease losses when management
believes the collection of principal is unlikely. The allowance is management’s estimate of probable
inherent losses on existing loans and leases, based on evaluations of the collectibility of loans and pricr loan
loss experience. The evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of
the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific loans and leases, and current economic
conditions which may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. Accrual of interest .is discontinued on a loan
when management believes, after considering economic and business conditions and collection efforts, that
the borrower’s financial condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful. When a loan is placed on
nonaccrual status, all interest which is accrued on the loan is reversed and deducted from earnings as a
reduction of reported interest. Paymenis received on such loans are applied first to principal until the
recoverability of the obligation is assured. Any remaining payments are then allocated as additional
reductions of principal and interest income.

Property, Equipment, and Leasehold Improvements

Property, equipment, and leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amottization. Depreciation is principally computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of each type of asset. Leaschold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the improvements or the terms of the related leases. Maintenance and
repairs are expensed as mcurred improvements and betterments are capitalized. When items are ‘retired or
otherwise disposed of, the related costs and accumulated deprecmuon are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gains or losses are credited or charged to income.

Other Real Estate

Other real estate, which primarily consists of property acquired by foreclosure, is initially recorded at the
fair value less estimated selling costs. Other real estate is not depreciated. Subsequent to foreclosure, the
assets are carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less estimated cost to sell. Losses, representing
the difference between the sales price and the carrying value of the property, are recorded on the date of the
sale, while gains on sales financed by the Company are deferred until the initial and continuing investment
by the borrower equals or exceeds specified levels. Gains on all other sales are recorded when realized.
Other real estate at December 31, 2006 and 2005 totaled $790,000 and $623,000, respectively.

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets relate to core deposits and customer lists. Other intangibles are amortized over a
period based on the expected life of the intangible, generally five to ten years, using either the straight-line
or accelerated methods of amortization.

F-10




Alabama Natlonal BanCorporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements—{Continued) .
December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004

Goodwill

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142 Goodwill and Orher Intangible
- Assets, the Company does not amortize goodwill. The Company tests goodwill for impairmient at least
annually. TE‘here has been no impairment resulting from impairment tests. '
Software Costs "

Software éosts,..which primarily represent costs to acquire third party software packages, have a recorded
cost of approximately $7,491,000 and $6,293,000 and related accumulated amortization of approximately
$6,057, 00() and $4,805,000, and are included in other assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Amomzauon expense related to capitalized software costs totaled approximately $671,000, $582 000 and

$564,000 during 2006, 2005,.and 2004, respectively.

| : !
Income Taxes v

There are two components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current income tax expense reflects
cash to be'paid for taxes for the applicable period. Deferred income taxes are recognized due to temporary
d1fferences between the financial reporting basis and the income tax basis of assets and liabilities.
Recognm(m of deferred tax assets is based on management’s belief that it is more likely than nol that the 1ax
benefit aq‘{omated with certain temporary differences, tax operating loss carryforwards and tax. credits will
be realued A valuation allowance is recorded for the amount of the deferred tax items for Wthh it is more

likely than not that realization will not occur.

¥
Stock-Bas ed Employee Compensatmn ‘
As requn‘ed by SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, the Company uses a fair value-based method of
accounting for compensation costs. Compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation
arrangemem‘; is measured at the grant date based on_the value of the award and is recogmzed over the
related service period. The Company had fully adopled and lmplemented the expense recognition provisions
of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and has recorded compensauon costs in
accordancle with these provisions for all periods presented herein. For addmonal information on share based
payments see Note 13. . .

Advertising Costs .
The Company expenses the costs of advertising when those costs are incurred.

| . ) 5
Collateral Requirements

The Company requires collateral for certain transactions with retail and commercial customers. Specifically,
margin Io:zms made for the purpose of borrowing against marketable investment securities generally do not
exceed 50% of the otal market valve of a customer’s marpinable securities portfolio at thé time of the
lransactioh and no more than 70% at anytime thereafter. Repurchase agreements, limited to,commercial
" customers and correspondent banks, generally do not exceed the market value of securities used to secure
such traniactlons at the time of the transaction or thereafter. Federal funds sold are made to correspondent
banks on ‘an unsecured basis and generally do not exceed limits established for each bank resulting from
evaluation of the bank’s financial position.

t
“

|
Reclassnﬁcatlons
Certain relclassxﬁcauone have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform with the 2006
presenmtlon i

Recently llssued Accounting Standards
In Sepiember 2006, the Financial' Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) released FASB Statement
No. 158! Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post Retirement Plans, an

b
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Alabama National BanCorporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contmued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (“FAS 158”). FAS 158 requires companies to
recognize a net liability or.asset to report the funded status of their defined bénefit pension and other post
retirement benefit plans on their balance sheets siarting with balance sheets as of December 31, 2006. The
Company adopted the statement effective December 31, 2006. See Note 12 for more information regarding
the Company’s adoption of FAS 138.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fuir Value Measurements. Among other requirements,
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair -value and also expands
disclosure about the use of fair value 1o measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective beginning
the first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The adoption of this standard is not expected to
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.-

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108 (“SAB 108”) which provides guidance on quantifying financial statement misstatements. SAB 108
requires financial statement misstatements to be quantified in relation to both its impact on the current year
income statement (the “rollover” approach) and the current year balance sheet (the “iron curtain”™ approach).
If a misstatement is material under either approach (the “dual approach”) the financial statements must be
adjusted for the misstatement.

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF Issue No. 06-04, Accounting for Deferred
Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar  Life Insurance
Arrangements (ETTF 06-04). EITF 06-04 establishes that for certain split-dollar life insurance arrangements,
an employer should recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with curremly existing accounting
pronouncements based on the substantive agreement with the employee. EITF 06-04 will be effective for
fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of EITF 06-04 and has not yet determined the impact EITF 06-04 will have on the Company’s
" consolidated ﬁnancxai statements upon adoption.

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues. Task Force lsv.ued EITF Issue No. 06- 05 Accounting for Purchases
of Life Insurance-Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical
Bulletin No 85-4 (“EITF 06-05"). EITF 06-05 clarifies the accounting for bank-owned life insurance
(“BOLI”) and stipulates that policyholders should consider any additional amounts included in the
contractual terms of the insurance policies other than cash surrender value in determining the amount that
could be realized under the insurance contract in accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4. EITF
06-05 also establishes that policyholders should determine the amount that could be realized under the life
insurance contracts assuming the surrender of an individual-life by individual-life policy. EITF 06-05 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2006. The Company has evaluated the impact of the
adoption of EITF.06-05 and determined that the adoption of EITF 06-05 will not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB released FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for
uncertainties in income tax law. This Interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial
- statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in income tax returns. The Company will adopt this Interpretation in the first quarter of 2007. The
cumulative effects, if any, of applying this Interpretation will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings
as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company has commenced the process of evaluating the
expected effect of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements and has preliminarily determined that
. adoption will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Alabama Natlonal BanCorporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) T ‘
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 . '

In March 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No.156, Accouniing for Servicing of Financial
Assets—an ‘amendment of FASB Statement No. 140 (“FAS 1567). FAS 156 clarifies when to’ separately
account fori servicing rights, requires separately recognized servicing rights to be initially measured at fair
value, and provides the option to subsequently account for those servicing rights (by class) at either fair
value or under the amortization method previously required under FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities. For the Company this
Statement is effective for calendar year 2007. The adoption of this standard will not have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company. '

In Februaryf 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Instruments (SFAS 155).
This Statemnent amends SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instrumenis and Hedging Activities, and
SFAS 140, 'Acmunring for Transfers and Servicing of financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,
and resolves issues addressed in SFAS 133 Implementation Issue D1, Applrcanon of Sraremem 133 1o
Benef cicd Interests in Securitized Financial Assets.

SEAS 155 permits, but does not require, fair value accounting for any hybrid financial instrumemt that
contains and embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation in accordance with SFAS 133,
and amends SFAS 140 to eliminate the problem on a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a
derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial
instrument.) In addition, SFAS 155 establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial
assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that
contain and embedded derivative requiring bifurcation. This statement also clarifies which interest-only
strips and prmc1pa] only strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133 and makes clear that
concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives.

SFAS 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued afler the beginning of an en:‘lily’s fiscal
year that bégins after September 15, 2006. The fair value election provided for in this guidance may also be
applied upbn adoption of this Statement for hybrid financial instruments that had been bifurcated under
SFAS 133 Ipnor to adoption of this guidance. The changes required by SFAS 155 are not expected to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In January [2007 the FASB issued SFAS 133 Implementation Issue B0, Application of Paragraph 13(b) 1o
Securm?ed Interests in Prepayable Financial Assets, which provides a narrow scope exception from the
SFAS 155, requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets for embedded derivatives that
would require bifurcation. The bifurcation tests outlined in paragraph 13(b) of SFAS 133 W1ll not be
required for securitized interests containing only an embedded derivative that is tied to the prepaymem risk
of the undl\:rlymg prepayable financial assets and that meet certain criteria. B40 is required 10 be applied
upon adopl’:non of SFAS 155.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets ana‘ Financial
Liabilities, which permits companies to elect to measure certain eligible items at fair value. Subsequent
unrea]nzed'gamq and losses on those items will be reported in earnings. Upfront costs and fecs related to
those items will be reporied in earnings as incurred and not deferred.

SFAS IS9|1s effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. If a company elects to apply the
provisions 'of the Statement to eligible items existing at that date, the effect of the remeasurement to fair
value wnlll be reported as a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.
Relrospecnve application will not be permitted. The Company is currently assessing whether it 'will elect to
use the fanl' value option for any of its eligible items.
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On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment, which is a revision of SFAS
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and amends SFAS 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally the approach in
SFAS 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123, However, SFAS 123(R) requires all share-
based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income
statement based on fair values. The Company adopted SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006. The Company
previously used a fair value-based method of accounting for compensation costs and had fully adopted and
implemented the expense recognition provisions of SFAS 123. Accordingly, the changes required by
SFAS 123(R) did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
See Note 13 for more information regarding the Company’s adoption of SFAS 123(R) and the required
disclosures. ; )

Business Combinations

During the last three years the Company has grown substantially through acquisitions. On April 3, 2006, the
Company completed the acquisition of Florida Choice Bankshares, Inc. (“Florida Choice™). On October 1,
2006, the Company completed the acquisition of The PB Financial Services Corporation (“‘Peachtree”). On
February 20, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Cypress Bankshares, Inc. (“Cypress”). On
July 9, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Coquina Bank (“Coquina”). Coquina was merged
with Cypress Bank on August 20, 2004 to form CypressCoquina Bank. In addition to the Coquina and
Cypress acquisitions, the Company completed the acquisition of Indian River Banking Company (“Indian
River™) on February 27, 2004,

The Company acquired all of the voting stock of the acquired bank in each acquisition. The Company’s
results of operations include the operations of the acquired banks since the acquisition date. The table below
summarizes the details of the bank acquisitions completed during the last three years.

The PB Indian River

Financial Services Florida Choice Banking Cypress
Corporation Bankshares, Inc, Coquina Bank Company Bankshares, Inc.

Location ............ Duluth. GA Mt Dora, FL. Ormond Beach, FL Vero Beach, FL Palm Coast, FL
Merger.closing date . .. 10/1/2006 4312006 71912004 2/27/2004 2/20/2004
Shares of Alabama

National common _

stock issued ....... 1,878,069 1,480,394 543,571 2,017,053 455,449
Stock options assumed .

(as converted) ... ... 66,771 © 2,356 — 123,430 52,130
Additional cash '

consideration ...... $0.4 million ~ $18.3 million $2.0 million $5.1 million $1.9 million
Total purchase price . . . $140.6 million  $113.0 million $31.7 million $111.6 million  $27.3 million
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- The foilowing table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Peachtree.
Florida Choice, Coquina, Indian River and Cypress at the date of acquisition (in thousands): i

Florldu
' Peachtree Choice Caoquina Indian River ; Cypress
Cash and interest bearing deposits in - ':
banks . ... ... ..o L $ 15352 316989 § 8,281 $ 26178 ' § 9691
SECUMTHES L \vvrt ettt 56,292 27,344 11.421 241,905 26,111
Federal funds sold and securities purchased .
under dgreernenls toresell ............. 18.273 6,! 18 233 384 - 959
Netloans ............ooiiiiiiiiin... 458,712 378,696 89,229 282.857 ' 75.396
Other aswl, ........................... 31.132 19514 6,267 10,299 7,636
Goodwill .L ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 100,056 66,149 21,893 72,446 ;i 17,688
Core depos;l intangible .................. 3,111 9.284 1,006 7542 1.644
T'otal assetsacquired .. . ......... 682,928 524,094 138,330 641,611 . 139,125
Deposits .' ............................ 526.109 380,759 102.829 444697 104.250
Other llabl]lhe% .......... e 16,208 30,368 3,763 85,333 1.529
Total liabilities assumed .. ....... 542317 411,127 106.592 530,030 - 111,779
Net assets acquired .......... ... $140611 $112967 $ 31,738 $111,581 | $ 27.346

The acqmsmom of Peachtree, Florida Choice, Coquina, Indian River and Cypress resulted in the
recogmuon of $103,167,000, $75,433,000, $22.899,000, $79,990,000 and $19,332,000 of intangible assets,
reqpeclwely The Company allocated $3,111,000, $9,284,000, $1,006.000, $7,542,000 and $1'644,000 of
the total mtanglble to core deposits, respectively. This allocation was based on the Company’s valuation of
the core dt‘posns of the acquired banks. The principal factors considered by the Company when valuing the
core deposit intangibles consist of the following: (1) the rate and maturity structure of the interest bearing
lidbilities,f(Z) estimated retention rates for each deposit liability category, (3) the current interest rate
environment and (4) estimated noninterest income potential of the acquired relationship. The core deposit
mlanglble[cre.ned is being amortized on an accelerated basis not to exceed seven years. Thc remaining
intangible 'created was allocated to goodwill.

The following table presents unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004. The 2004 results have been adjusted as if the Peachtree, Florida Choice, Coquina,

Indian Rwer and Cypress acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2004. The 2006 and 2005 ‘results have
been adju'l-led as if the Peachtree and Florida Choice acquisitions had occurred on January 1 of each year.
‘There is no adjustment needed for Cogquina, Indian River and Cypress for 2006 and 2005 since these
acquisilim]ls occurred during 2004. Since no consideration is given to operational efficiencies and expanded
products and services, the pro forma summary information does not necessarily reflect the results of
operations as they would have been, if the acquisitions had occurred at the dates presented. ‘

2006 2005 2004

(in thousands, except
per share amount)

Total revenue™® ... ... ... i e $335,332  $303,224 5264251

NEEINCOME ...ttt $ 86646 $ 72,120 S 60,401
Basic EPS . ...ttt PRNRTR $ 418 5 351 5 304

Diluted EPS ... . $ 413 %8 346 § 299

* Total revenue consists of net interest income and noninterest income
i
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In addition to the banking mergers described above, during 2005 the Company purchased the outstanding
minority intetest in one of its bank subsidiaries. The total purchase price was $325,000. This transaction
resulted in the recognition of $216,000 of additional goodwill. During 2005 Alabama National also acquired
a commercial mortgage banking company. Alabama National issued 64,839 shares of commeon stock in
exchange for the outstanding shares of the acquired company. The transaction resulted in the recognition of
$3.5 million of goodwill and $1.0 million of other customer intangibles that are classified as other
amortizing intangible assets.

Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill atiributable to each of the following three operating
segments of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 20035 are as foliows (in thousands):

Commercial

Retail and Mortgage

Commercial Insurance Banking

Banking Division Division
Balance, January 1,2005 .. ... ..o e $141,703 $2.693 $ —

Acquired goodwill ... 216 — 3,450
Other goodwill adjustments .. .. .. T 9 L— —

Balance, December 31, 2005 . . ... .. . e 141,928 2,693 3,450
Acquired goodwill .......... ... i e . 166,205 — —

Balance, December 31,2006 .. ... ... .. $308,133 $2,693 $3.450

Each of these segments was tested for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142 on December 31, 2006
and 2005: The fair value of the Retail and Commercial Banking unit and Commercial Morigage Banking
Division were estimated using the present value of future cash flows and the fair value of the Insurance
Division was estimated using a multiple of revenues. The impairment tests indicated that no impairment
charge was required at either test date.

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are detailed in the following table (in thousands):

As of December 31, 2006
Gross Net

Carrying  Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Value

Amortizing intangible assets

Core deposit intangibles . ... ... . ... ... ... o $30.524 $(14,633) $15,891
Other customer intangibles . ... .. ... ... ... i i 2,064 (1,113) 951
Total amortizing intangible assets ........................ $32,588 . 3(15,746) $16,842

As of December 31, 2005

Gross Net
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Yalue
Amortizing intangible assets
Core depositintangibles ........ ... .. ... ... . oo $18,130 $(10,140) $ 7.990
Other customer intangibles ............. .. ... .. . ... ... 2,064 (696) 1,368
Total amortizing intangible assets .. ... ... .. ... .. ... $20,194 $(10,836) $ 9358
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i : . :
The Compfmy recognized $4,911,000, $3,189,000 and $3,034,000 of intangible amortization expense for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Based upon the recorded intangible assets as
of December 31, 2006, aggregate amortization expense for the years ending December 31, 2007 through
December 31 2011 is estimated to be $5,287,000, $4,127,000, $3,134,000, $2,250,000 and SI 220,000,
respecuvcly

Core depo:lt intangibles have a weighted-average amortization period of 3.2 years and other customer
intangibles have a weighted-average amortization period of 2.9 years. The weighted-average amortization
period for all amortizing intangible assets is 3.2 years.- ‘

1 W
Securities.

~ |
The amortized costs and estimated market values of investment securities (carried at amortizéd cost) and
' i . . .
securities available for sale (carried at market value) are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2006
: ’ Gross "~ Gross o
Amartized’ Unrealized Unrealized =~ Market
Cost Gains Losses . Value
Investment securities !
u.s. l:reasury securities and obligations of '
U.S. government corporations and.
AZEOCIES .o i i it $ 24227 3 — $ 595 3 23632
Obliglations of states and political
subdivisions . .. ... R 74,785 537 154 75,168
Mortzage-backed securities issued or '
guaranteed by U.S. government
corporations and agencies .............. 617,394 1,222 11,956 606,660
Totals ... ... ... - $716,406 31,759 512,705  $705,460
Securities available for sale
U.S. éreasury securities and obligations of -
U.S. government corporations and
agencies ........... .o $192.887 $ 112 $ 3985  $189.014
Obligations of states and political "
sulidwnsnons .................. S 57.805 765 261 58,309
Mortoage -backed securities issued or ' ‘] '
guarameed by U.S. government - E
eorporauons and agencies .............. 264,795 260 7,145 257910
Other securities ............ P 1,000 — — "~ 1,000
Equity securities .............. . 43,135 — — 43,135
iTotals ............................ $559,622 1137 $11,391  $549,368
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December 31, 2005
Gross Gross .
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
Investment securities

U.S. treasury securities and obligations of

UJ.S. government corporations and .

QEENCIES « oottt e $ 24,217 5— $ 753 ..% 23,464
Obligations of states and political : ‘

subdivisions ........... ... .. ... ... ... 21,152 165 159 21,158
Mortgage-backed securities issued or

guaranteed by U.S. government :

corporations and agencies .............. 545,784 92 14,074 531,802

Totals - .o e $591,153 3257 $14986 3576424
Sccurities available for sale

U.S. treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. government corporations and ,

AEENCIES ..ttt $212,793 $— $ 6,100  $206.693
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions ... ... .. e 36,234 . 651 389 36,496
Mortgage-backed securities issued or .

guaranteed by U.S. government .

corporations and agencies .............. -277,706 191 7.970 269,927
Equity securities . ........... ... . ... 32,261 — 43 32,218

Totals ... $558.,994 $842 $14,502  $545334

Equity securities are comprised primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta and Federal Reserve Bank

stock. These holdings are required under regulatory guidelines.

Maturities of securities at December 31, 2006 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Investment Securities

Available for Sale

Amortized Market Amortized Market

Cost Value Cost Value
Dueinone yearorless ............... e $ — § — $12964 $ 12,885
Due after one year through five years ... ............ 25,769 25,171 181,822 178,049
Due after five years through tenyears .............. 9,636 9,762 28,973 29,220
Dueafterten years ... .. ... i, 63,607 - 63.867 27,933 28,169
Mortgage-backed securities ...................... 617,394 606,660 = 264,795 257,910
Equily securilies ......... ..ot — — 43,135 43,135
Totals ............... e PP $716,406  $705.460  $559,622  $549,368

Gross gains of $0, $72,000 and $0 were realized on the sale of securities during 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, and gross losses of $1,250,000, $0, and $0 were realized on the sale of securities during 2006,

2005 and 2004, respectively.
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lnformatlon pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2006, aggregated by

investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position,
follows (in thousandq)

. . ;

. Less Than Twelve i

Months Over Twelve Months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized .~ Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses  Fair Value Losses  Fair Value  Losses

Investment securities
Debt securities: S
U.S. treasury securities and "
. obligations of U.S.
. government corporations ‘
" and agencies ..........., $§ — $— $24227 § 395 % 24227 § 595

*

()bllgauons of states and _
political subdivisions . . . .. 22,658 121 4,281 33 26,939 ¢ |54

Mortgage-backed securities

v issued or guaranteed by
U.S. government : “
corporations and

‘agencies ............... 17,982 144 459,519 11,812 477,501 11,956
‘Total investment _ '
! securities .......... $40,640  $265 $488,027 $12,440 $528,667  $12,705
Less Than Twelve '
. Months Over Twelve Months - Total
, Gross Gross Gross
’ Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses  Fair Value  Losses  Fair Value  Losses

Securities Available for Sale )
Debt !securities: : i
LS. treasury securities and

, obligations of U.S.
govemment corporations

. and agencies ............ $ 6,172 35142 $161,788 $ 3,843 $167.960 §$ 3,985
Obligations of states and L
, political subdivisions ... .. 5,726 38 10,178 223 15904 ' 261

Mortgage-backed securities !
issued or guaranteed by ' .
U.S. government
corporations and : :
AgENCIES . ... ... ... .. 19,374 151 217,754 6,994 237,128 . 7,145

Total debt securities .... 31,272 331 389,720 11,060 420,992 11,391
Equity securities .. ............. — —_— C— —_ .

l !

Total securities available ' '
forsale ............ $31,272  $331  $389,720 $11.060 $420.992 $11,391

[
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment no less frequently than quarterly, and
more {requently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to
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(1) length of time and the extent to which fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the
issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

As of December 31, 2006, 505 debt securities have been in a loss position for more than twelve months and
101 debt securities have been in a loss position for less than twelve months. The losses for all securities are
considered to be a direct result of rising interest rates and the effect that rising rates has on the value of debt
securities and not refated to'the credit worthiness of the issuers. Further, the Company has the current intent
and ability to hold the securities to an expected recovery in market value. Therefore, the Company has not
recognized any other-than-temporary impairments.

5. Loans and Leases

M

Major classifications of loans and leases at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows (in

thousands}. .
2006 2005

Commercial, financial, and agriculwral ... .. ... .. ... .. ... oL $ 401,057 $ 287,014
Real estate . :

Construction ........... e e 1,901,671 1,225,451

Mortgage—residential ......... ... ... i 1,166,847 1,092,514

Mortgage--—commercial ............ L 1,517,744 1,100,794

Mortgage—other . ... ... .. ... e . 20,129 9,828
L0000 1511177 =) (S 94, 563 82,908
Lease financing receivables . ... ... .. 87,018 62,423
Securities brokerage margin loans ... ... .. .. .. oL il 18,642 17,928
L0 1417 O PP 253,729 268,879
Gross loans and receivables . ... .. L 5,461,400 4 147739
Less unearned INCOIMIE oot ittt ettt i et e (5,264) (3,644)
Loans and leases, net of unearned iNCOME .. . ...\ v eve e e 5,456,136 4,144,095
Less allowance forloan and lease losses ............. ... ... ......... (68,246) (52,815)
Netloans and Jeases ... ..ottt e e e e $5.387,890  $4,091,280

In the normal course of business, loans are made to directors, officers, and their affiliates. Such loans are
made on substantially the same terms as to other customers of the banks. The aggregate of such loans was
$108,849.,000 and $81,204,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During 2006 and 2005, new
loans of $85,828,000 and $59,851,000 were funded and reductions totaled $58,183,000 and $43,899,000,
respectively. ‘ :

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued or reduced amounted to approximately
$10,921,000 and $6,446,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. If these loans had been current
throughout their terms, gross interest income for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 would have
increased by approximately $518,000 and $453,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2006 and 2003, the recorded net investment in loans for which impairment has been
recognized totaled $10,921,000 and $6,446,000, respectively. Management of the Company believes that
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l
the fair value of these impaired loans is equal to or greater than the amount recorded on Ihe,Company $
books. Th:_ Company did not recognize any material interest income on impaired loans during the portion of
the year thal they were impaired. The impaired loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were measured for
impairmenit primarily using the fair value of the collateral. The average investment in these loans for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $6,616,000 and $6,791,000, respectively.

] - b
All of the'loans identified as being impaired have been specifically allocated a portion of the allowance for
loan and lease losses. This specifically allocated portion of the allowance totaled $886,000 and $254,000 at

" December. 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. : '

The Company grants real estate, commercial, and consumer leans to customers primarily in Alabama,
Georgia, and Florida. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, significant concentrations

include loans collaterahzed by improved and undeveloped commercial and residential real estate,
|I

|
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses :

A summary of the allowance for loan and lease losses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004 is as follows (in thousands): .
2006 2005 ! 2004

Balancé, l?eginning of year ...l $52,815 346,584  $36,562
Loans charged Off L (2,322) (2,918) (4,583)
Recoveme!s ....................... I e cees P - 1,424 1,534 2,746
Netcharge-offs ... ... ... {898} (1,38'4) (1,837
Provision' charged TOOPETationNs ... ..ottt it e 5,393 7615 4949
Addmons to allowance through acquisition . ....................... 10,936 — 6,910
Balance, end of Year .. ..ot e $68,246  $52.815  $46,584

PropertyL Equipment, and Leasehold Improvements

Major clalssiﬁcations of property, equipment, and leasehold improvements at December 31, 2006 and 2005
are summrarized as follows (in thousands): .

Estimated

, Useful Lives 2006 . 2005

| .
Land ... . . .. $ 38,860 $ 31,025
Buildingﬁ and IMProvements . .........ovuruvuneurernnann. 5—40 years 82,102 65,979
Leasehold improvements . ..........ooeeeiiinivnneeennnns 10—30 years 8,086 8.155
Furniture, equipment, and vault . ........... ... ... ... ..., 3—30 years 69,4601 58,517
Construction in Progress .. ...vov ittt cinaee s 28,355 11,009

; 226,864 174,685
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............. (71,688) (60,526)
Pr()perty,| equipment, and leaschold improvements, net ........ $155,176  $114,159
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8. Depos:ts

Dcposus at December 3k, 2006 and 2005 are summanzed as fol]ows (in thousands):

. 2006 2005
Demand deposit 4CCOUNLS . . ..o vttt it i i e $ 849,127 % 729,045
CNOW aCCOUNLS & ettt e n e s e e e 1,179,686 1,021,494
Savings and money market accounts ............... . . ..., 1,120,683 . 884,496
Time deposits less than $100,000 . ..... ... oo i e 1,211,208 - 760,832
Time deposits of $100,0000rmore ........ ... i e 1,206,899 947,397
.Total deposits ........ e e e o $5,567.603 34,343,264
At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows (in thousands).
00T ot e e $1,972,993
2008 . e 223,706
200 L e 69,218
2000 L e i 76,926 -
7.1 1 1 74,370
Thereafter ..t e e e 894
Total ...t e e $2,418,107

Certain directors of the Company, including their families and affiliated companies, are deposit customers.
Total deposits of these persons at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were approximately $44,212,000 and

$39,406,000, respectively.
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|
9. Short and Long-Term Borrowings

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are summarized as follows (in

thousands)::
i

Federal fUIlldS purchased .. ... ... ... e e
Securities sold under agreements torepurchase ........ . ... Lo s

Total federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
FEPUICHASE . ...ttt

Short-term borfrowings are summarized as follows (in thousands):
1

Note payalL]e to third-party bank under secured master note agreement; rate varies
with LlBOR and was 6.00% at December 31, 2006; collateralized by the
Company s stock in subsidiary banks. Matures on May 31,2007 .............

FHLRB open ended notes payable; rate varies daily based on the FHLB Daily Rate
Credit interest pnce and was 5.50% and 4 44% at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respecllvely ..... e e

FHLB borrowmgs due at various marurities ranging from January 18, 2007 through
Decembcr 14, 2007 at December 31, 2006; at December 31, 2005, maturities
ranged Irom May 12, 2006 to July 13. 2006; bearing interést at fixed and
vanable rates ranging from 2.93% to 5.44% at December 31, 2006 and at
December 31, 2005.included fixed interest rates ranging from 4.17% 10 4.35%. -

Total'short-term DOTOWINES « o vttt e e e e e e eai et

| s . .
Long-term borrowings are summarized as follows (in thousands):

i

FHLB bor}owings due at various maturities ranging from January 29, 2008
through' December 19, 2016 at December 31, 2006; at December 31, 2005,
maturities ranged from March 26, 2008 to November 23, 2015; bearing interest
at fixedlrates ranging from 2.91% to 6.00% at December 31, 2006 and bearing

) interesl[at rates ranging from 2.05% to 6.00% at December 31, 2005;
convertible to variable rate advances at the option of the FHLB at dates ranging
from January 23,2007 to December 21,2009, .......... ... ... ... .

FHLB borrowings due at various maturities ranging from November 5, 2008 to
April 6!/ 2011 at December 31, 2006; maturity was November 5, 2008 at
December 31, 2003; rate varies quarterly with LIBOR and was 5.37% at
December 31, 2006 and at December 31, 2005 rate was 4.29%. .............

Note payable to third-party bank under secured master note agreement; rate varies
with LIBOR and was 6.15% at December 31, 2006; collateralized by the
Company s stock in subsidiary banks. Matures on March 31,2009, ..........

Junior suhordmated debentures payable to unconsolidated trusts due at dates

' rangmg from December 18, 2031 to March 29, 2035; rates vary quarterly with

LIBOR and ranged from 7.31% to 9.25% at December 31, 2006; at
December 31, 2005 ratés ranged from 7.58% 0 8.10%. ...................

Tota] long-term DOTTOWINES « « « v e e ee et e e e e e e
| S '

1

006 2005
$417,472 . $380,729
209,825 164.608
$627,297 1 $545,337

2006 | 2005

i
$ 15800 $ —
7530 10,700

138,500 24,000
$161.830  $34,700

006 . 2005
$283.978  $285,636

b
55.0000 30,000
16.000 —
K

47421, 53610

$402399  $369,246
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Aggregate maturities of long-term borrowings are as follows for fiscal vears (in thousands):

2007 $  —
2008 L 33,000
2009 L 86,000
2000 ........ P 18,000
200l 50,000
T 1o 1= S P 215,399
$402,399

The short-term note payable to a third-party bank at December 31, 2006 is payable in full on May.31, 2007.
Maximum borrowing under the secured master note agreement is $20,000,000 and interest is payable
quarterly. The long-term note payable to a third party bank is payable in full on March 31, 2009 and interest
is payable quarterly. The notes are cross collateralized by the stock of a subsidiary bank.

At December 31, 2006, the Company has approximately $1.5 billion of unused available credit with the
FHLB in addition to the approximately $485,008,000 above, approximately $4,200,000 of unused available
credit with a regional financial institution, and federal funds lines of approximately $465,700,000 with
various correspondent banks, of which approximately $376,700,000 remains available,

The Company has also pledged approximately $122957,000 in loans to the Federal Reserve Bank of
Atlanta as collateral for a discount window credit facility. At December 31, 2006, the Company had access
to approximately $92,218,000 under this facility, with no outstanding borrowings.

The FHLB has a blanket lien on the Company’s 1-4 family mortgages, commercial real estate mortgages,
home equity lines of credit, and certain multifamily mortgages. In addition to these liens, the Company has
also pledged securities as collateral for the outstanding debt. These securities had a carrying value of
$55,707,000 at December 31, 2006.

Additional details regarding short-term borrowings, federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements are
shown below (in lhousands): ‘ '

2006 2005 2004
Average amount outstanding during the year .. ................ $ 757,767 $583,046  $454,863
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend ............... $1,009,163  $681,962  $536,539
Weighted average interesl rate: ' ' _
During year ............ .. 4.70% 301% - 1.40%
Endofyear ...... ... ... ... . . i 4.89% 3.85% 2.17%

Operating Leases

One of the Company’s subsidiary banks leases its main office building from a partnership, which is partially
owned by certain directors and stockholders of the Company, under a noncancelable operating lease
expiring in 2020. Rent expense under the terms of this related party lease was $1,587,000, $1,463,000 and
51,380,000, respectively. during 2006, 2005 and 2004. Additionally, several subsidiary banks lease branch
offices and equipment under operating leases. '
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Minimum future rental payments for operating leases are as follows (in thousands): {

0[1eraling

Leases
2007""& ................................................................. $:3,649
200 . e e 3415
2000 . e e 3,124
20]0"". .................................. e . 2,827
L0 I 22,371
Thereafter .................. e e e e e e e e e 24,060
" Total mini:mum payments .. .... et e e e e $39,446

Rent expense charged to operations under operating lease agreements for the years ended December 31,
2006, 200‘) and 2004 was approxnmately $3,997.000, $3,334,000 and $2,903,000, respectwely )

Commitnients and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company makes commitments o meet the financing needs of its
c:ustcumereI These commitments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These
instruments include, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial condition. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is the extent of
nonperforinance by thé counter party io the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit and is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company
uses the same credit policies and procedures in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does
for loans ;

Al Dec’ember 31, 2006 and 2003, unused commitments under lines of credit aggregated aﬁproximately
$1,740 353 ;000 and $1,275.894,000, of which approximately $68,148,000 and $43,293,000 pertained to
related pames respectively. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on an individual
basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is
based on fnanagemem’s credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
recelvable inventory, property, plant, and equipment, residential real estate and income-producing
commercml properties. -k

The Company had approximately $78,627.000 and $53,458,000 in irrevocable standby lettérs of credit
outstandmg at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, of which approximately $1, 399 000 and
$1,179,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, pertained to related parties. Thé credit risk
involved i in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers The collateral varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and
equipment, and residential real estate for those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary.

The Comlpany, in the normal course of business, is subject to various pending and threatenéd litigation.
Based on. review and consultation with legal counsel, management does not anticipate that the ultimate
liability, 1f any, resulting from such litigation will have a material adverse effecl on the Company’s financial
condition’ or results of operations. w

The Company has received preliminary tax assessments for certain state taxes from a taxing authority for
subsidiaries holding investments outside of the state. Based upon a review of the assessment and the
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relevant tax laws and based on review and consultation with counsel, management does not anticipate that
the ultimate hability, if any, resulting from such assessment will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company, through two of its subsidiary banks, sponsors two defined benefit pension plans. Each of
these plans has been frozen with regard to future benefit accruals and participation by new employees. The
Company adopted FAS 158 effective December 31, 2006. The adoption of this accounting standard required
the Company to reflect the funded status of pension plans on the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. The following table shows the impact of adopting FAS 158 on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition of the Company.

Before After
Adoption of Adoption Adoption of
FAS 158 Adjustments FAS 158

Assets

OEhEr 85615 . .. oo\ttt et $91.336 $(734) £90.602
Equity

"Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... .... P $(6,629) $(734) $(7,363)

The components of net pension income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 are as
follows {in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

IVICE COSL oo vt ettt ettt e e e e e s $ — $ — 5 —
Interest cost .......... et e e e (A7) 363y - (367)
Expected return on planassets .......... ... .. . il 479 486 470
Recognized net actuarial foss . ........ ... .. . i (80) (32) 33
Net periodic pensionbenefit ... ... ... ... o ool 28 g1 70,
Settlement 0SS ..o e (13) — (53)
PENSION IMCOMIE . . . e e e et e e e et e e e e e e e $ 15 §$ 91 § 17

The estimated net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit over the next fiscal year is $34,000. °

The amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income upon adoption of FAS 158 are as
follows (in thousands):

2006
Net actvarial loss . . . .. e P $(1,187)
Taxbenefit .................. e R R R R caaaees 453
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income ........................ $ (734)
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The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and plan-assets,
as well asldlsclosure of the plans’ funded status for the years ended December 31, 2006 and:2005, is as
follows (in thousdnds)

! 2006 . 2005

: I
Change in plan assets
Fair value'of plan assets at January 1 ........ .. .. ... ... o0veineennnins $6,932 $7.013
Actual returnon planassets ............. .. .. e 694 199
Beneﬁts DA . e (208) (280
Benefits paid Settlements ......... e e 6hH v —
Fair value'of plan assets at December 31 ... ... .. .. . . e $7.357 1$6,932
Change il!n benefit obligation |
Projected benefit obligation at Januwary 1 .............. ... ... ... ... ... .. 56,813 $6.330
Interéstcost ........ooio.. e AP 370, 363
Aclu?rial (gain)loss ........................ e .. AR (239 400
Benefitspaid . ... . IR (208) - (280)
Settlements . ... e e e (61 —
Projected benefit obligation at December 31 .. ...........oooueeiiee .. $6,675  $6,813
e
Funded sltatus
Plan assets in excess of pro;ecled benefit obltgauon ........................ $ 682 '§$ 119
: Unreeogmzed netloss ... .. e - N/A % 1,734
Accrued pensnon L= e $ 682 §1.853

The accumulated beneﬂt obligation for the combined defined beneﬁt pension plans is $6,675,000 and
$6.813, 000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. .

Assumphpns
Primary assumptions used to actuarially determine benefit obligations and net pension expense are as
follows:

| . . Benefit Obligation
2006 2005 2004
Discountrate ........ ... .. e 5.75% 5.50% 5.75%
Salary rafe INCrBASE . . . ..t N/A  N/A' N/A
: Net Pension Income
(Expense)
2006 2005 2004
Diqcounl!rate .................................................... 5.50% 5.75% 6.00%

7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
N/A  N/A  N/A

The dl‘;COl.ln[ rate has been determined by maiching the expected benefit payment stream against the
CmgroupF Pension Discount Curve, which produced a result comparable with using the Moody s Aa-rated
Corporale Bond rate as the benchmark,

Expecled long-term return on plan assets
Salary raLe EMCIEASE . o ottt e

The exptl:cted long-term return on plan assets assumption has been derived by applying the weighted-
average larget allocation to the expected return by asset category, shown in the table below: Overall, the
expected'return assumptions for each asset class utilized is generaily based on expectation of future returns.

! ‘
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Plan Assets . : ~ :
The consolidated pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2006 and 2005, by asset

category are as follows:

Expected
Plan Assets at Target Return By
December 31, Allocation Category

2006 2008

Asset Category

Equity securities .......... oottt i 787% 12.8% 51.3% 9.0%
Debtsecurities . .......... .. . i i 172% 21.6%  46.7% 5.0%
Cashequivalents ............ ... ... ... .. ... ...... 41% 56%  2.0% _2.0%
Total/weighted average expectedretarn .............. 100% 100%  100% 7.00%

The target asset allocation shown above represents the weighted-average target allocation of total plan assets.
Each plan’s stated investment policy allows for a range of percentages within each asset class that generally is
10% above and below the target. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the plans were out of policy due to an
increase in value of the equity securities and a decline in market value of debt securities. The plan trustee
monitors the asset allocation relative to the target and determines whether to rebalance the portfolio
immediately or allow the asset allocation to remain different from the target. The stated investment goals are to
generate a return in excess of 7.0% (the current long-term return assumption), to meet or exceed the rate of
return of similarly balanced market indexes and to provide an appropriate amount of liquidity to meet
distribution requirements of current and future retirees. The risk management practices employed by the plans’
investment policies include diversification criteria, requirements that fixed income investments be of
investment quality, an annual assessment of investment managers, analysis of fund performance against
benchmarks and substantiation that investment results are consistent with stated objectives, goals and
guidelines. Finally, there are several categories of investments that are not eligible for investment without
specific approval. These include: short sales, margin purchases, private placements, commodities, security
loans, unregistered or restricted stock, warrants, real estate mortgages, real estate equity, options and futures.

Equity securities include Alabama National BanCorporation common stock in the amounts of $1.34 million
(18.2% of total plan assets) and $1.26 million (18.2% of total plan assets) at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.

v

The Company does not anticipate making a contribution to its pension plans during 2007.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments are expected to be paid (in thousands):

2007 e e e e e e $ 177
2008 e e e $ 184
20,0 $ 204
2 0 $ 235
2000 ...... e e e e e e e e e $ 242
Years 20012-2016 ... . e e $1,926

The Company has a qualified employee benefit plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code
covering substantially all employees. Employees can contribute up to 90% of their salary to the plan on a
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pre-lax baslis and the Company matches 100% of- participants’ contributions up to the first 6.0% of each
part1c1pant s salary. The Company’s matching contribution charged to operations related to this plan was
approxlmately $3,460,000, $2,641,000 and $2,634,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

- 2004, respe \ctivel y. co

The Comphny and several of its subsidiary banks own life insurance policies to provide for the payment of
death beneﬁts related to existing deferred compensation and supplemental income plans maintained for the
benefit of the Company’s former chief executive officer who retired from the company in 1996 and certain
presidents,jemployees and directors of the Company or its subsidiary banks. The total cash surrender value
of such policies at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $20,813,000 and $20,117,000, respectively. The total
liability of the deferred compensation plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 totaled $4,582,000 and
$4,465, 000 respectively, The Company recorded expense of $386,000, $353,000 and $304,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 20035, and 2004, respectively, for these plans.

One of lhe Company’s subsidiary banks has a deferred compensation plan whereby non- employee directors
may elect to have all or a portion of their compensation deferred in cash. Compensation ellglble ‘for deferral
under the plan was $22,000, $22,000 and $21,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, At December 31,
2006 and 2005, amounts payable under the plan totaled $218,000 and $196,000, respectively. ’

- :
Share Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASE issued SFAS No. 123 {revised 2004) (SFAS No. 123R), Share Based
Payment. Alabama National has used a fair value-based method of accounting for share based compematlon
COStS under SFAS No. 123. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS No.123R on January 1, 2006, did not have a
mgmﬁcam impact on Alabama National’s financial condition or results of operations. The primary changes
are related to disclosures and the treatment of estimated forfeitures of share based payments. f

| . . Il

With the .idoption of SFAS No. 123R, Alabama National recorded an increase in net earninés based on
SFAS No. 123R’s requirement to apply an estimated forfeiture rate to unvested awards. Previously,
Alabama thlonal recorded forfeitures as incurred. As of January 1, 2006, the impact of adopuon decreased
salary expense $73.000.

The primalry types of share based compensation consist of the performance shares issued pursuant to the
Performance Share Plan (“the PSP”) and stock options issued pursuant to the 1999 Long Term Incentive
Plan (“theiLTl Plan”). -

i

I

Stock Options
N

1
1

During 1999, Alabama National adopted the LTI Plan which provides for the award of ir;centive and
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and performance awards eligible 1o
employeesI of the Company. The total number of shares reserved for distribution under the plan is 300,000
shares. On Januvary 1, 2000, Alabama National granted 160,500 non-qualified stock options, which vested
over 2 91xty month period. As of December 31, 2004, these options were fully vested. During 2006, 2005
and 2004,,’the Company did not grant any stock options. Total compensation expense recorded for the stock
option pla:ns was $0, $0 and $126,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, r'espectively.
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At December 31, 2006, 158,000 shares remain available for distribution under the LTI Plan. Alabama
National has not issued any additional share based compensation under the LTI Plan.

In addition to the stock options Alabama National issued in 2000, the Company has assumed various stock
option plans of acquired companies. All of the stock options under these assumed plans became fully vested

at the time of the acquisition. No additional stock options may be awarded under any of the assumed plans.

A summary of the status of the Companjr‘s stock options as of December 31, 2006 is presented below:

2006

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding, January 1 ... ... i iiiiiii e, 2001828 2139
EXpiTed . e (7.037) 21.62
Assumed in business combinations ........ ... ... ... e 69,127 14.79
EXETCISEd . o o o ettt e e S (71,994) 17.55
Outstanding, December 31 ... ... e e 190278 § 2044
Options exercisable, December 31 ... ... ... ... . o i 190278 $ 2044
Aggregate intrinsic value ... ... . L e $9,188,728
Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised ......... ... ... oo $3.631.000

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006:

Options Qutstanding

Exercise ' Number Remaining Options
Price OQutstanding Contractual Life Exercisable
8949 e e - 4,748 May 2010 4,748
S12.90 11,594 July 2012 11,594
S15.00 . s 9.895 November 2009 0,295
$I560 .. 2,184 September 2009 2,184
B16.6] . e 132 March 2012 132
S17. 3] e 30,935 July 2014 30,935
K 207 £ TS 1,649 December 2009 1,649
FI18. 02 s 10,597 September 2012 10,597
BI8 88 68.900 December 2010 68.900
2076 . 7,010 December 2010 7,010
$2460 . ... 8513 February 2012 8,513
326,32 1,368 January 2015 1,368
$27.05 .. e A 110.349 April 2012 10,349
3479 20,052 January 2013 20,052
$35.08 ... 2,352 August 2013 2,352
' 190.278 190,278

At December 31, 20086, the average weighted life of outstanding stock options was 5.} years.
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Performatllce Shares

Alabama National sponsors the PSP to offer long- lerm incentives in addluon to current compensation to
certain cmployccs of the Company. The PSP is governed by Alabama National’s Compensation Committee,
which mdy prescribe different criteria for different participants in the PSP. Such criteria may be expressed
in terms 01 {i) the growth in net income per share during the award period. (i) retern on average equity in
companson with other banks and bank holding companies during the award period, (iii) growth in
Gtockholde'rs equity per share or tangible stockholders’ equity per share. or (iv) other reasonable bases. The
vesting per od is generally four years. Under the PSP 800,000 shares of common stock have been reserved
‘ for issuance and at December 31, 2006, approximately 634,806 shares are available to be issued. i

The fair vfx]ue of grants under the PSP is based on the market value of the Company’s stock on the grant-
date and t]'le total number of shares expected to be issued. The following table presents a summary of the
status of nonvested performance share grants and changes durmg the year ended Deccmber 31, 2006

I Weighted
" Average

- Grant-Date

. } _ Shares . Fair Value
Nonvested shares at December 3L,2005 .. 144,836 ‘ $50.86
Granted .. ... 37470 . 64.76
Awarded ©........... . e (23.855).  33.33
I U 12,1000, 54.73
Performance adjustment . . ... ... ... i e T4, 228) 4914

Nonvested shares at December 31,2006 .................. EETET L. 132, 123 $58.22

The number of shares presented in the table above is based on the expected share payout usmg current
pcrformance measurements. The actual share payout may differ from the amount presented above As of
December 31, 2006, there was approximately $3.7 miltion of unrecognized compensation cost related (o
nonve~.ted| PSP awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average peried of 2.1 years.
Compemauon expense related to the PSP for years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
$956,000.' $1,714,000 and $1,235,000, respectively. Tax benefits related to PSP compcnqauon totaled
$363 000,'$65| 000 and $469,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respeéctively.

In accordance with the terms of the PSP, a base grant of 31,705, 33,050 and 41,300 qhares (net of
forfellures) was made in each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, re<pect1ve1y The
market value per share was $64.76, $64.74 and $52.31 at each grant date for the years ended December 31,
2006, ZOQS and 2004, rcspectively. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, 23.855,
29,030 and 25,906 shares, respectively, were awarded to participants. At December 31, 2006, outstanding
awards of;expected and maximum payouts were 132,123 and 175,588 shares, respectively. During 2006 PSP
shares with a fair market value of $1,616,000 were awarded to plan participants.
The Com||3any continuously updates its estimate of the total number of shares that will be issued related to
each PSPJ grant based on the Company’s actual performance compared to the performance memc‘; of the
PSP. As .] result of this evaluation, the Company reduced the expected shares to be awarded by 24,228
shares dunng the year ended December 31, 2006.

| .
Alabama [National recognized an excess windfall tax benefit of $2,481,000 and $362.000 related to the
payment of stock-based compensatien during years ended December 31, 2006 and 20035, -respectively.
J .
‘ ' F-31 '




Alabama National BanCorporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-—{Continued) - .
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Alabama National received $518,000 and $805,000 during the years ended 2006 and 2005, respectively, for
the exercise of stock options.

Other Share-based Awards

Additionally, the Company and three of its subsidiary banks maintain deferral of compensation plans for
certain directors who are not employees of the Company or its subsidiary banks. Under the plans,
non-employee directors may choose to have all or part of the cash and/or stock equivalents they would
normally receive as director fee compensation deferred for future payment, at such time and in such manner
that the directors specify at the time of the election, so long as any pay out period does not exceed ten years.
The cash portion of the deferral of compensation account earns interest at a rate which approximates the
Company’s short-térm borrowing rate. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were no deferred cash
payments under directors deferrai of compensation plans. Dividends earned on stock equivatent portions are
credited to the deferral of compensation account in the form of additional stock equivalents. At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the amount deferred under the terms of these plans totaled $3,283,000 and
$2,953,000, respectively. For the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, approximately
“$411,000, $375,000 and $333,000, respectively, was expensed under these plans.

During 2000, the Company adopted a separate Performance Share Plan to provide long-term incentives 1o
non-employee directors of a subsidiary bank (the 2000 Subsidiary PSP) and made a base grant of 20,000
shares, with a market value per share of $19.22 to vest over a sixty-four month period. The actual number of
shares distributed during fiscal 2006 was 25,000 shares. Since the shares were fully vesied as of
December 31, 2005, no expense was recorded during 2006. Expense recorded for the 2000 Subsidiary PSP
was $90,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

+

14. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes consist of the following for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands): 7 o

2006 - 2005 2004

Current ) ) ]

Federal ...... R S . $43,092 337,319 $25,005

Sl o e 4,038 3,510 2,322
Total current EXPENSE .. ...\ .vn.. o B 47,130 40829 27,327
Deferred . . '

Federal .............. ... . ... o il . (4,482) (5,301) 679

0 - (653 - (7206) 116
Total deferred (benefit) expense . ... .. ... .. .. i, (5,135) (6,027) 795
Total provision for income taxes ............................ $41,995  $34,802  $28,122
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Temporary differences and carryforwards which give rise to a significant portion of the Company’s deferred
tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands): G

l . 2006 2005
Deferred tix assets
.Allov\;ance forloan and tease losses .......... ... ... ..., $25,249  $20,456
Netoperating 1085 .. ... oo 968 1,266
Deferred COMPENSAUON . ... .o eer e 5014 4,034
Net uiirealized losses on securities ........... ..., 3,637 . 4,835
Loanfees . ... .. e 3275 12,147
B 1 1,907 1,392
Total deferred (X ASSELS - . ... v o v v et 40,050 34,130
Deferred tax liabilities: .
‘Depreciation ... A 5,129 , 5,928
Leasing ............ R 11,186 13,302
Intangibles and purchase accounting adjustments .................... 2,510 " 1,601
Other ... e 1,357 1,318
Total defelf*red tax liabilities . ... .. 20,182 22,149
Net deferrcd tax (liabilities) aSSEIS . ..o vvvvu oottt eetiiaans $19,868  $11,981

i
The Company did not establish a valuation allowance related to the net deferred tax asset'recorded at
December!31, 2006 and 2005 due to taxes paid within the carryback period being SufﬁClCl‘ll to offset future
deductions resulting from the reversal of these temporary differences. .

Total prov_ision for income taxes differs from the amount which would be provided by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate of 35% to pretax earnings as illustrated below for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands): -

2006 2005 2004
Provision tor income taxes at statutory federal income tax rate ...  $42,634  $35516  $28,968
Increase ((Ilecreme) resulting from ' i
State|income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit ..... ... 2,200 1,810 1,585
Tax €xemptincome . ... ... e (2,849} (2,094 (1931
Incor;ne X CEditS oo v ettt e e (691) (861) (861)
Other, et .. ... e e e 701 431 ' 381
Total provision forincome taxes . ........... ... ...vvonn... $41,995  $34.802 $28,l22
1

For federal income tax purposes, one of the Company’s subsidiaries has a net operating loss canyforward
totaling $2 779,000 and $3.655,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which'will expire
beginning.in 2018.
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I5. Noninterest Expense

The following table sets forth, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the principal

components of noninterest expense (in thousands).

2006 2005 2004
Salaries and employee benefits ........... ... . $ 96,717 $ 85402 § 74983
Commission based compensation . ...... ... ... ... 0 17,961 15,458 17,500
Occupancy and equipment expense, net ..........ooonnn- 20,656 17,653 15,488
Amortization of identifiable intangibles ................... 4911 3,189 . 3,034
Travel and entertainment . ... ...ttt ie e ie e 2,832 2,303 1,926
AVELSING .. - 3,855 3,308 2436
Banking assessments and charges ........... .. oo 2,615 2.429 2,183
Data processing @XPenses . . ... ... vt 3332 2,751 2,615
Legal and professional fees .. .. .. R, T 4,527 5,400 5,235
Noncredit Tosses . ... i e . 298 740" 940
Postage and courier Services . ........ ... ..., 3373 3,060 2,893
Suppliesand printing ......... ... . .o 3,316 2,922 2,813
Telephone .. ......oooonivnn.. e 2,571 2,355 2,183
Electronic banking eXpenses .. .......c.ooviiviiiieeannnn. - 4,560 3,571 2,961
Software eXpense’ . . .. ... i 2,706 2,335 2,025
Commercial insurance ........... e 1,415 1,057 1,207
L DITECIOTS RS .\ttt e e 1.392 1,176 1.083
Business licenses and other LIXES ... ... .ovvveenneannane.. T 1,011 920 1,013
ONET . .o oo et 7,146 6,451 5,804
$162.480

Total NONINIErest EXPENSE .« oo v vttt et e eenas $185,194

The following table reflects the reconciliation of the basic EPS computation to the diluted EPS computation

(in thousands, except per share data):

$148,322

Year Ended December 31

16. Earnings Per Share
|
|

2006 2005 2004
Basic Earnings Per Share
Net income available to common shareholders ............. $79.816  $66.673  $54.644
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding ........ 18,942 17,216 15,848
Basic Earnings Per Share .. .. ... ... ... ... . oo $ 421 $ 387 3 345
| Diluted Earnings Per Share o .
' Net income available to common shareholders . ............ $79.816  $66,673 554,644
Weighted average common shares outstanding ............. 18,942 17.216 15,848
Effect of dilutive securities .............. ... .cooin... 205 229 252 -
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding .. ... .. 19,147 17,445 16,100
Diluted Earnings Per Share ......... ... it $ 417 $ 382 § 3.39
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17. Fair Valuj: of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable 10 estimate that value. ‘ .

Cash, Due From Banks, Interest-Bearing Cash Balances, and Federal Funds Sold )
Due to thelshort-term nature of these assets, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Investment, Available for Sale, and Trading Securities ‘
Fair value is based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. I
| . . !

L
Loans
The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rale'; at which

similar ioans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remammgtmaturmes

"l
Deposits | -
The amoulm payable on demand at the reporting date is a reasonable estimate of fair value due lo the short-
term nature of demand deposit, savings accounts, and certain moncy market deposit liabilities. The fair
value of flixed-maturily centificates of deposit is estimated by discounting the future cash ﬂov"vs using the
rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. \

1
Federal Funds Purchased and Short-Term Borrowings
The carryi_ng amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value,

Long- Term Debt : i

The fair value of the Compdny s fixed rate borrowings are estimated using discounted cash ﬂows based on
the Complany s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing drrangemems The
carrying dimount of the Company’s variable rate borrowings approximates their fair values.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in

thousandsj:
' 2006 2005 '
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
. Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets :
Cash! and due frombanks ............... $ -200,209 $ 200209 $ 189,256 $ 189,256
lnterﬂel-beanng deposits inotherbanks .... $ 16350 $ 16350 $ 19428 § 19,428
Fedelral funds sold and securities purchased 3
unlder agreements toresell ... ... ... $ 89865 $ 89865 § 70472 $ 70472
Investment securities and securities . b
avzailable forsale .................... $1,265,774 $1,254,828 $1,136,487 $1,121,758
Trading securities ..................... $ 532 % 532 % 402 3 , 402
LOANS - o o v oo $5,483,788 $5,444,773 34,159,035 $4,089,655
Financial liabilities '
Dcptgsils .................... e $5,567,603 $5,564,147 $4,343.264 $4,330,309
Federal funds purchased; securities sold '
ur:der agreements to resell; and treasury,
[a.;c, and loan account . ............... $ 627297 % 627,297 $ 545337 % i545,337’
Short-term borrowings ................. $ 161,830 § 161,830 $ 34700 $ . 34700
Long-termdebt .................... ... $ 402399 $ 403,728 $ 369,246 $ 368,495

1

F-35




Alabama National BanCorporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

18. Parent Company

The condensed financial information of the parent company only as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is presented as follows (in thousands}):

2006 2005
Balance Sheets
Assets
Cash™ e $ 2682 § 7807
Securities available forsale ....... ... ... .. ol 527 289
Investments in subsidiaries™ ... ... .. i i e e 643,571 5i4,319
Goodwill ... e e 264,088 97.883
Other intangible assets ......... e e e e e e 229 291
OLheT ASSeIS . . ot e 26,417 14,582
B T £ O $937.514  $635.171
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity . :
Accounts payable . ... $ 4238 % 9534
Accrued interest payable . ... e 432 . 148
" Short-term borrowings ... ... e e 15,800 —
Long-termdebl .. ... oot e 63,421 53,610
Total Habilities . .. ..o e i e s 83,891 63,292
Stockholders’ equity )
COMIMION SLOCK . oLt ittt ittt i e r it e e e e 20,562 17,124
Additional paid-incapital .. ... . L e 573,756 347,434
Retained eamings ... ... ..ourion e 266,668 216,144
Accumulated other comprehensive income, netof taxes . ...... ... o iii.. . (7,363) (8,823)
Total stockholders” equily .. ... ... o i i i e 853,623 571,879
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity-. . .............. .. e $937,514  $635,171
* Eliminated in consolidation
2006 2005 2004
Statements of Income
Income .
Dividends from subsidiaries® .. .......... ... ... . i $53,250  $29,122  $19.430
1015 = PP 156 131 83
Tolal iNCOME .. .. .. e 53,406 29,253 19,513
Expenses
INterest eXpense . ... ..ot e 6270 3,759 2774
Other expenses . .............. LR 6,368 9,372 6,732
Total @XPEISES « o v vttt e e 12,638 13,131 9,506
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and taxes .. ... 40,768 16,122 10,007
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiartes* . ................... . ... 34,680 45,862 41,254
Income before iNCOMETAXES .. .. vt i i re i ie e 75,448 61,984 . 51,261
Income tax benelit .. ... .. i e {4,368) (4,689) (3,383)
N IMCOIMIE . ottt ettt e s ettt e e e ettt st re e $79.816  $66.673 554,644

* Eliminated in consolidation
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19.

| .
2006 2005 2004

Statement:ls of Cash Flows .

Cash ﬂows? from operating activities: . ‘
NEUINCOME ..t $79816 $66673 $ 54,644
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities: !

Amortization and depreciation expense ... .............. 490 454 T 448
Equi!}:f in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries .......... (34,680) (45,862) (41;254)
Deferred tax benefit .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... .. ... . (89) -(88) 4 (210)
Stock!based Compensation . ....... e 1,428 2,229 i 1,784
lncrease {decrease) in other assets and liabilities . .. ....... (12,939) 2,399 v 213
Net cash provided by operating activities ........... 34,026 25,805 15,625
Cash flows from investing activities ' :
Addmonal investment in subsidiaries .................. (14,250) (1,000)  (40,800)
Decrease in loans . ... .. e e .. — (325 . —
Net cash paid in business combinations . ................ ©(16,349) — ;'(1,2 19)
Purchases of fixed assets ... .. e (33) — (2,388)
"Other ........ e e e - (238) (2000 S —
I;\Tet cash used in investing activities ............... (30,870) (1,525) (44,407
Cash ﬂow::; from financing activities: ' N ‘ '_
Dividends paid oncommon stock . .................... (28,126)  (23,038) (20,235
Net (decrcaqe) increase in borrowings .. ........ ... ... 16,336 (500) *(1,150)
Net proceeds from underwritten public offering, net .. .. ... — — 149,673
Exces 1 tax benefits from Share based compensation . ...... 2,481 — —
Other . . e e e 1,028 101 2,438
'll\Iet cash used in financing activities ............... ; (8,281) (23437 '.30,726
Net increase (decrease) incash ................... (5,125) 843 1,944
Cash, beginning of year ....................... e 7.807 6,964 - 5,020
Cash, end'of year ............... ST FONI $ 2682 $ 7,807 § 6,964
* Eliminated in consolidation ;3
RegulatolLy

The subsndlary banks are required by law to maintain reserves in cash or deposits with the Federal Reserve
Bank or other banks. At December 31, 2006, the required reserves totaled $23,184,000. "

At Decer:nber 31, 2006 and 20035, securities with carrying values of $500,476,000 and $440,853,000,
respectively, were pledged to secure U.S. government deposits and other public funds for:purposes as
required (}r permitted by law.

The Company has a policy of collecting amounts from its subsidiaries sufficient to cover expenses of the
Company and to service Company debt. Such amounts have been received in the form of dividends declared
by the subsndxanes Payment of dividends is subject to the financial condition of the subsidiaries and the
Company}s judgment as to the desirability of uwtilizing alternative sources of funds. The payment of
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dividends by the subsidiary banks is also subject to various regulatory requirements. At December 31, 2006,
$112,855,000 of the retained earnings of the subsidiary banks are available for payment of dividends to the
Company under the various regulatory requirements, without special approval from the applicable
regulators. :

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory—and possibly
additional discretionary—actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s - financial condition and operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total qualifying capital and Tier { capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital {as defined) to average
assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2006, that the Company meets all capilal
adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank categorized the
Company’s subsidiary banks as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, except for Peachiree Bank which is categorized as adequately capitalized at December 31, 2006. To
be categorized as well capitalized the subsidiary banks must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier [ risk-
based, and Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in.the'gable. There are no conditions or events since that
notification that management believes have changed an instituwtion’s category, except for the Company has
injected capital in Peachtree Bank during February 2007 to make Peachtree Bank well capitalized.

At December 31, 2006, the regulatory capital ratios of the Company’s subsidiary banks, except for
Peachtree Bank, exceeded the minimum ratios required for well-capitalized banks as defined by federal
banking regulators. To be categorized as well-capitalized, the Company’s subsidiary banks must maintain
minimum Total Qualifying Capital, Tier [ Capital and leverage ratios of at least 10%, 6% and 5%,
respectively,
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.+ The actual Ic:apllal amounts and ratios of the Company, First American Bank and Indian River NaEional Bank
(the Company’s two most significant subsidiaries) at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are presented in the table

below (do]lars in thousands}): <o . R
;

- - o © To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
' L . - . Adequacy Prompt Corrective
i . Actual Purposes Action Provisions
- ) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount | Ratio
As of Deceimber 31, 2006: ff
Total gualifying capital (to risk- i
weighted assets) ' : : : . -
Alaba:ma National BanCorporation .. $644,373 10.98% $469,489 . 8.00% "
First ﬁ\merican'Bank ............. $256,202 11.21% $182,838 B8.00% $228,548 * 10.00%
Indian River National Bank ....... . $ 63976 11.72% % 43,670 8.00%-% 54,587  10.00%
Tier I'capital (to risk-weighted assets) : : ‘ . I
Alabama National BanCorporation .. $576,127 ~9.82% $234,675 400% i
First American Bank ............. $230,255 10.07% $ 91,462 - 4.00% $137,193 ;. 6.00%
Ind‘ialfl River National Bank ........ $ 57,860 10.60% $ 21,834 4.00% $ 32,751, 6.00%
'_I'ierl'capita] (to average assets) .o ' . |
Alabama National BanCorporation .. $576,127  7.95% $289.875 4.00% K
First zi%merican Bank ............. $230,255 7.84% $117,477 4.00% $146,846 @ . 5.00%
Indian River National Bank ........ $ 57860 7.36% § 31,446 4.00% $ 39,307 i 5.00%
As of l)ecemher 31, 2005: ' h
Total quallfymg capital (to risk- I
wei ighted assets) (
Alabama National BanCorporation .. $528,352 12.10% $349,324 8.00% )
First-.!American Bank ............. $248,195 . 11.88% $167,135 8.00% $208,918 f‘ 10.00%
Indian River National Bank ........ $ 65,281 13.10% $ 39,866 8.00% $ 49,833 1 10.00%
Tier I: capital (to risk-weighted assels) ‘ |
Alabz:ma National BanCorporation .. $475,535 10.89% $174,336 4.00% i
First American Bank . ............ $223.248 10.69% $ 83,535 4.00% $125,303 "+ 6.00%
Indian River National Bank ........ $ 59,587 11.96% $ 19,929 4.00% $ 29,893 ;i 6.00%
Tier ll capital (to average assets) t
‘Alabama National BanCorporation .. $475,535 8.29% $229.450 4.00% "
First American Bank ............. $223.248  8.15% $109,570 4.00% $136,962} ! 5.00%

; 1
, | i
20. Segment Reporting i
+
l;
In addition to traditional commercial and consumer retail banking products, the Company offers residential
mortgage | lending services, commercial mortgage banking services, investment serv1ces wealth
managemﬁrm services and insurance services to its customers. The wealth management division includes a
full service broker-dealer operation and also manages the assets and provides custodial; investment
rnanagemi ‘nt, and trust services for both institutional and individual customers located primarily in the
Birmingham, Alabama market. The residential mongage lending division makes home loans to individuals

1

1 Indizu:'l River National Bank ........ $ 59587 7.98% $ 29,868 4.00% $ 37,335, 5.00%
| .

|
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throughout the markets served by the Company. The majority of the loans made are sold to corporate
investors, who also service the loans. The commercial mortgage banking division acts as a broker to arrange
permanent long-term financing for primarily real estate transactions. In addition to the broker fee earned, the
division also services many of the loans and earns servicing fee revenue. The investment services division
selts fixed income securities and provides trading services to both individual and corporate customers. The
insurance division offers a full line of insurance products including life, and property and casualty insurance
to individual and corporate customers primarily in the state of Alabama. These five divisions, along with the
commercial and retail banking division, are considered the Company’s reportable segments for financial
disclosure purposes.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant

accounting policies except that certain overhead expenses are not allocated among the segments.

Additionally, the fixed assets utilized by the various divisions are not separately identified by management.

Accordingly, the results of operations for the residential mortgage lending, commercial morigage banking,

investment services, wealth management, and insurance segments are not indicative of the results which

would be achieved if each of the segments were a separate company. Intersegment transactions are
. accounted for at fair market value. '

The development and application of these methodologies is a dynamic process. In addition, unlike financial
accounting, there is no authoritative literature for management accounting similar to generally accepted
accounting principles. Consequently, reported resuits are not necessarily comparable with those presented
by other financial institutions.
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The Company s reportable segments represent the distinct major product lines the Company offers and are
viewed separately for strategic planning purposes by management. The following table is a reconciliation of
the reportable segment revenues, expenses, and profit to the Company’s consolidated totals (in thousands):

| Retail Commercial ,
¢ Investment  Wealth Mortgage Mortgage Retail and
. . Services Management Lending Insurance Banking Commercial Corporate Fllmlnanon
Division Division  Division(2) Division(3) Division(4) Banking Overhead(l) Entries Total

Year ended '

December 31, !

2006:; ) '
Interest income .. ... $ — $ 1,861 $ 1,384 § 2 3 — $ 431003 8§ (115) $(468)  § 433,667
Interest expense . . . . . e 468 930 — — 192,474 6,155 (468)" 199,559
Nel interest . '

income .......... — 1,393 454 2 — 238,529 (6.270) — 234,108
Provision for toan and

lease losses ...... . . : 5,393 . 5,393
Noninterest N

income ........ . 4,291 21,989 11,834 4,082 2,281 33,657 156 78,290
Noninterest ;

expense ........, 4,987 21,428 10,053 3,627 1,618 136,491 6,950 } 185,194
Net income before

axes ........... $ (696) ¥ 1954 § 2,235 $ 457 $ 663 $ 130,302 5(13,104) $— % 121811
Total assets ........ $ 2,101 $36.332 $28,606 $4,483 $4,221 $7.578,013  $ 173518 $— . §7671,2714
Year ended

December 31,

2005:
Interest income . . . ., 5 — $ 1.486 $ 1,238 $ 4 5 — $ 3068% 5 (115 $(243) § 309,260
Interest expense ... .. — 242 550 ! 105,219 3.644 (243) 109,413
Net interest '

income . ......... — 1,244 688 3 — 201,671 (3,759) — 4 199,847
Proviston for loan d]ld '

lease losses ... ... — 7.615 — — 7.615
Noninterest '

income .......... 4,210 19,220 13,673 3,549 525 30,940 131 — 72,248
Noninterest

EXPENSE . ........ 4,852 17,946 9,720 3,352 332 117,238 9,372 — 162,812
Net income before '

xes ......... Loo§o(642) § 2,518 $ 4,641 $ 200 5 193 $ 107,758 $(13,000) $— + § 101,668
Total assets ........ $ 7310 $41,006 $16,517 $4234 $6,760 $5844306 511,540 §— , §5931.673
Year ended

December 31,

2004:
Interest income ...\ . 5§ — $ 1109 $ 1,053 $ 2 5 — $ 227243 % (11%5) $(106) § 229,186
[nterest expense . . .0, . — 105 294 1 62,981 2,659 (106) 65,934
Net interest .

income.......... — 1,004 759 1 164.262 (2,774) e 163,252
Provision for loan and :

lease losses ...... 4,949 4,949
Noninterest "

ncome .......... 11,652 16,863 12,398 371 28,078 83 — 72,785
Noninterest i i

expense ......... 8,998 15,907 8,858 3,641 104.186 6,732 — 148,322
Net income before ... $ 2,654 $ 1.960 $ 4,299 3 7 § — $ 83205 3§ (9423) 5 — $ 82766
Total assets ........ 3 2986 $28.786 $22,783 $3.633 I — $5,246,124 % 11,557 $— . 35315869

(1) Corporate 0vc1hcad is comprised primarily of compensation and benefits for certain members of management, mergei related costs,
interest on parent company debt, amortization of intangibles and other expenses.

(2) Morigage lending includes allocated intercompany income totaling $844.,000, $1,151,000 and $832,000 at December 31, 2006 2005, and
2004, respectnely

(3) Noninterest i income for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2004, includes $35,000 and $107,000, respectively, of revenue other
than insurance commlsswns

(4) The Company acqulred the commercial morgage banking division in September 2005.
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21,

Related Party Transactions

In addition to the previously disclosed related party transactions (Notes 5, 8, 10 and 11), the Company
received trust and money management fees from related parties of approximately $1,341.000 in 2006,
$479,000 in 2005, and $457,000 in 2004.

. Treasury Stock Repurchase Plan

The active stock repurchase plan for 2005 expired on December 31, 2005 and was not renewed by the Board
of Directors during 2006. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Board of Directors of
the Company authorized the repurchase of up 1o 300,000 shares of its common stock. The Company did not
purchase any shares during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
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